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Roles
£7%

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body corporate
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Its
functions are stipulated in Section 4 of the Hospital
Authority Ordinance (Chapter 113).

The Hospital Authority is responsible for:
e Managing and controlling public hospitals

e Advising the Government of the needs of the public for hospital
services and of the resources required to meet those needs

e Managing and developing the public hospital system

e Recommending to the Secretary for Health appropriate policies
on fees for the use of hospital services by the public

e Establishing public hospitals

e Promoting, assisting and taking partin the education and training
of persons involved in hospital or related services
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Vision, Mission and Values
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The corporate vision, mission and values (VMV) of
Hospital Authority reflect aspirations of the Board, the
management and staff in fostering a healthy community.
Guided by the mission of “Helping People Stay Healthy”,
the Authority collaborates with community partners
to strive for continued success and works towards the
vision of “Healthy People, Happy Staff and Trusted by
the Community”.
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Corporate Strategies
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The Hospital Authority (HA) aims to achieve its
corporate VMV by adopting four strategic goals as
outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2023-2024:

The Authority formulated corresponding programme targets
under the above strategic goals with 22 strategies for 2023-24.
Implementation progress of the Annual Plan was reported quarterly
to the Board and available for public access on the Authority's
website. Overall, most of the programme targets in 2023-24 were
achieved on schedule or partially achieved, while some programme
deferrals due to related works progress and manpower shortage
were noted. Major achievements made during the year are set out
in The Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6.
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Membership of the
Hospital Authority
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Mr Henry FAN
Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SRR Bt
® Appointed as Chairman of the

Authority on 1 December 2019

® Managing director of
a property investment
company
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Mr Thomas CHAN
Chung-ching, JP

BRIAE B4
Permanent Secretary for Health
BEFHLEREANER
® Appointed on 5 June 2020

® Board Member in capacity
as Permanent Secretary for
Health of HKSAR Government

* M 20204 6 A 5 AEZ(E
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Prof Francis CHAN
Ka-leung, SBS, JP
RRSHIIR
(up to 31.1.2024)
(FEfZ 2024 F 1 H 31 H)

® Appointed on 1 April 2013

® Former Dean of the Faculty
of Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

e R20134 4 A1 RERFE
s BERPNARBRELAIERK

Mr Lawrence CHAN Prof CHAN Wai-yee Mr CHAN Wing-kai Ms Margaret CHENG
Man-yiu PR EHIR BRAKESRE Wai-ching, JP
BT E * Appointed on 1 April 2019 * Appointed on 1 August 2021 BIEL+
* Appointed on 1 April 2023 ® Pro-Vice-Chancellor of * Registered social worker * Appointed on 1 April 2020
* Director of an international the Chinese University of ) * Human Resources Director
hotel group Hong Kong * N2021%F 8 A1 ARELE of MTR Corporation
. ) o AT Limited
o NO023%E 4 A1 AREE e A20194 4 B 1 BEZRT
o HFREEEEES o BERNXKREIRE o 20204 4 B 1 AEEE
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The Hon Duncan CHIU Prof Philip CHIU Ms Anita FUNG Mr Ambrose HO,

ERER S Wai-yan Yuen-mei, BBS, JP SBS, SC, JP
e Jo [ Syl M| Y =
® Appointed on 1 December HECHR KRB L RS £
2019 ® Appointed on 27 February * Appointed on 1 December * Appointed on 1 December
e Co-founder of a venture 2024 2022 2018
capital fund and Member * Dean of the Faculty of * Independent non-executive * Senior Counsel
of the Legislative Council Medicine of the Chinese director of a listed bank and .
(Technology and Innovation University of Hong Kong a listed property e R20184 12 A 1 HEZE
Functional Constituency) development company o BRALE
. e JA2024 4 2 A 27 BEZR(E )
e 20194 12 A 1 HEZT o Efrhw ABRERFEE e N2022F 12 A1 HEZRE
P 7 MANF e Zhtin i )
o AIRESHEARAIHAR o FTHIRITR PR
SUEEES (RHRAR) RRINEIENITES
Ms Maisy HO Chiu-ha, Ms Mary HUEN Mr JAT Sew-tong,
BBS, JP Wai-yi, JP SBS, SC, JP
BBzt BEELL BRERE
* Appointed on 1 December 2021 ® Appointed on 1 April 2020 ® Appointed on 1 April 2023
® Executive director of ® Executive director and e Senior Counsel
a listed company chief executive officer of )
" - . a listed bank ° A2023%F 4 A1 BERT
e 2021412 A1 BEZMF o BIRAEAD
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Membership of the
Hospital Authority
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Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP
SHREELE
Chief Executive, HA
B B 5 TBAEE
* Appointed on 1 August 2019

® Board Member in capacity
as Chief Executive of the
Hospital Authority
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Dr LEUNG Wing-cheong
RKEBE
¢ Appointed on 1 April 2021

® Consultant of the Department
of Obstetrics and Gynaecology
of Kwong Wah Hospital
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Dr Ronald LAM Mrs Sylvia LAM YU
Man-kin, JP Ka-wai, SBS
M EELE MRRELtL
Director of Health * Appointed on 1 December
HEEER 2022

® Former Director of

® Appointed on 21 September 2021 Architectural Services

® Board Member in capacity as
Director of Health of HKSAR * R 202412 B 1 HEEME

Government e IEEZEER

* M 2021 9 A 21 REZ(E
o UHBKAITRERNEEE
ERFNLIBRERRBKE

Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

IEEHRERREREINER

* Appointed on 11 July 2022

® Representing Secretary
for Financial Services and
the Treasury of HKSAR B
Government

e N 20226 7 A 11 BEEE
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MEEBREBBRE
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Prof LAU Chak-sing,
BBS, JP
BEER®
* Appointed on 1 December
2018

® Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty
of Medicine of the University
of Hong Kong
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Mr Aaron LIU Prof David SHUM
Kong-cheung, JP Ho-keung
BEAxE LIEBABR

e Appointed on 1 November 2018

® Dean of the Faculty of Health
and Social Sciences of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University
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Prof Agnes TIWARI
Fung-yee
EREHR

® Appointed on 1 December 2018

® Chairman of the Nursing
Council of Hong Kong
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Mr Henry TONG
Sau-chai, BBS, MH, JP

BIEERE
e Appointed on 1 December 2022

* Managing director of
an enterprise
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o DB RMILIE

Mr Philip TSAI
Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BB SE
Appointed on 1 April 2019
Certified public accountant
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Mr Anthony TSANG Dr Thomas TSANG Mr WAN Man-yee,
Hin-fun Ho-fai, BBS BBS, JP
BEFEE BEEEL BXERE
Appointed on 1 December * Appointed on 1 December ® Appointed on 1 December ® Appointed on 1 December
2022 2020 2021 2019
Certified public accountant * Former Controller of the ® Registered professional ® Registered professional
Centre for Health Protection surveyor
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This Chapter provides an overview of the overarching corporate
governance principles and framework of the HA, as well as major
achievements made by the HA in 2023-24 for further enhancing
corporate governance. The Governance section under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report in Chapter 7 sets out
further information on the key structure and mechanisms in HA to
facilitate implementation of effective corporate governance, and
elaborates on the related initiatives and achievements in 2023-24.

Principles

Good governance is at the heart of HA and will continue to be of
the highest importance as the Authority continues to develop. The
Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment to
corporate governance principles and recognises that the Authority's
stakeholders expect the highest standards of performance,
accountability and conduct.

Hospital Authority Board

Under the HA Ordinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
appoints members to the HA Board. The HA Board membership
is not remunerated. As of 31 March 2024, the Board consisted of
27 members, comprising the Chairman who is not a public officer,
three public officers, one principal officer who is the HA Chief
Executive, and 22 non-public officers. Details of the membership
are listed in Appendix 1.
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The HA Board meets formally about 12 times a year and any other
times as required. In 2023-24, the Board conducted 15 meetings and
considered over 110 agenda items. They covered an array of important
matters in leading and managing HA, including formulation of policies
and strategies; steering and monitoring of the planning, development
and operation of hospital services and facilities; collaboration
projects; resource management; risk management and internal
control; preparedness for contingency and demand surge; corporate
governance, etc. The Board also steered and monitored organisation-
wide risk management in HA across different functional areas and
management structures, covering both clinical and non-clinical risk
management in the Authority.

As in the past, the Board proactively reviewed and enhanced its
governance structure to ensure the structure dovetails with the
service development and organisational change in HA. In this regard,
the Board upgraded a subcommittee to a functional committee, viz.
the Development and Works Committee, in 2023-24 to serve as a
dedicated platform for overseeing and advising on the planning and
delivery of major capital projects and other works related subjects
under the Hospital Development Plans. The Board also continued
to pay dedicated effort in enlarging the talent pool for appointments
to its Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) and Regional Advisory
Committees (RACs) to tap the community resources for enhancing
governance of hospital services and operation, and succession
management of the Committees, and continued to strengthen
empowerment of the HGCs in the governance of the hospitals.

In addition, the Task Group on Sustainability (Task Group) formed
under the HA Board in December 2019 continued to examine
various major challenges facing HA amid the constantly changing
environment, and monitor the implementation of the endorsed
strategies to drive for the sustainable development of HA in the
public healthcare system. In 2023-24, the Task Group, together
with its subgroups, examined strategic issues on a wide array
of strategies crucial to HA's sustainability, including manpower
recruitment, development and retention; service model review;
smart hospital and smart manpower development; management
of waiting time; environmental initiatives; strategic procurement;
patient-centric services, hospital safety, etc.
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Board Committees

For optimal performance of its roles and exercise of powers, the
HA Board has established various functional committees. As of
31 March 2024, the 12 functional committees established under the
HA Board include: Audit and Risk Committee, Development and Works
Committee, Executive Committee, Emergency Executive Committee,
Finance Committee, Human Resources Committee, Information
Technology Services Committee, Main Tender Board, Medical
Services Development Committee, Public Complaints Committee,
Staff Appeals Committee and Supporting Services Development
Committee. Among all, Executive Committee continues to advise the
Board on changes to the Board and Functional Committee structure
to address the service evolvement and development. Membership of
the committees and their terms of reference and focus of work in
2023-24 are outlined in Appendix 3.

Hospital Governing Committees

To enhance community participation and governance of public
hospitals, HGCs were established in the hospitals and institutions,
and appointments to the HGCs are made by the Board in accordance
with the HA Ordinance. These committees are listed in Appendix 4.
In 2023-24, atotal of 133 meetings were conducted by the 33 HGCs.
HGCs received regular management reports from Hospital Chief
Executives, monitored operational and financial performance of
the hospitals, reviewed risk management issues, provided policy
guidance on hospital management, and participated in human
resource and procurement functions, as well as hospital and
community partnership activities.
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The Board maintains close connection with HGCs in developing
corporate policies and strategies. During the year, continuous
efforts were made to actively engage HGCs in corporate-wide issues
and two-way communication, such as regular briefings by Cluster
Chief Executives at HGC meetings, following-up on and reporting of
comments and views of HGCs to the HA Board and courtesy visits
by HA Chairman and Chief Executive to HGCs. Besides, designated
Task Groups on Enhancing Patient-centric Services established
in respective HGCs provided significant contribution in driving the
development of a wide range of initiatives to improve patient-centric
services and staff convenience, and enhance experience of patients
and visitors. These initiatives included convenient medication pick-
up via HA mobile app “HA Go";improved access to charging facilities
for mobile devices; wider food choices at hospitals, streamlining
of patient journey for outpatients, enhancement of Vvisiting
arrangement, etc. HGCs also actively participated in the work on
enhancing hospital safety. In line with the practice adopted by the
HA Board and its functional committees, HGCs also conducted
annual self-assessment to drive for continuous improvement.

Regional Advisory Committees

To provide HA with advice on the healthcare needs for specific
regions of Hong Kong and assist the Authority with better
performance of its functions in relation to the regions, HA has
established three RACs. Appointments to the RACs are made by the
Board in accordance with the HA Ordinance. These committees and
their respective membership are listed in Appendix 5.

In 2023-24, each of the RACs met four times and received reports on
various corporate initiatives. Each RAC was also briefed on annual
plan progress and targets of the respective clusters, as well as key
development of services and programmes.
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Executive Management

The executive management team of HA is outlined in Appendix 2(b).
The executives are charged by the HA Board with the responsibility
to manage and administer day-to-day business and operations of
the Authority. During the year, a dedicated division was established
at Head Office level to oversee the planning and delivery of capital
works. To ensure that the management can discharge duties in
an effective and efficient manner, the HA Board has set out clear
delegated authority, policies and codes of conduct. The Board
approved the 2023-24 annual plan prepared by the executives in
accordance with the Board's direction. Regular executive reports
on the progress of agreed performance indicators and targets were
presented to the Board.

Under the powers stipulated in the HA Ordinance, the Authority
determines the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment for all HA employees. Remuneration packages
of executive directors and other senior managers are devised
to attract, motivate and retain high calibre individuals in a
competitive talent market. Remuneration packages of all senior
executives are considered and approved by the HA Board or its
Executive Committee.
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Chapter 2
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With the end of COVID-19 pandemic, the Hong
Kong society had swiftly regained its vibrance
with a sense of renewed vigour. The Hospital
Authority (HA) also resumed its normal
services, and had been pressing ahead on
various fronts to drive the sustainability of
the public healthcare system. A wide array of
policies and initiatives had been implemented
in stages in 2023-24. HA had been vigorously
developing smart hospital projects and
promoting “Smart Care” with the application
of advanced technologies, with a view to
enhancing patient experience and improving
workflow. Among which, the wider use of
the HA mobile app “HA Go" and telehealth
enabled convenient healthcare management
for patients, as well as enhanced accessibility
to HA's services.


https://player.vimeo.com/video/1012226410?h=16597cb1f6

Meanwhile, we had been proactively revamping our service models
through promoting ambulatory care, strengthening Integrated
Chinese-Western Medicine services, developing Integrated Model
of Specialist Outpatient Service through Nurse Clinics, launching
medication delivery services, etc., so as to provide more treatment
choices for patients. With good use of existing facilities supported by
our country, we implemented the Ambulatory Diagnostic Radiology
Service Pilot Programme and other healthcare services at the
Central Government-Aided Emergency Hospital, which had greatly
shortened the waiting time for patients. My sincere thanks to the
Central People's Government for its staunch support to Hong Kong
healthcare which benefited the public at large.

As an indispensable part of a robust public healthcare system,
modernised infrastructure and facilities are conducive to reinforcing
positive health outcomes and patient experience, and thus achieving
clinical excellence. We continued to press ahead with the two public
Hospital Development Plans to upgrade hospital hardware with an
aim to modernise our services and meet the growing healthcare
needs of the community. With a view to providing a full spectrum
of leadership for the tremendous increase in magnitude of hospital
development bestowed to HA, the HA Board had strengthened the
organisational structure of HA Head Office and established a new
functional committee at the Board level, namely the Development
and Works Committee to steer and oversee the related work. The
HKSAR Government has been staunchly backing HA up for its long-
term development, and had allocated to HA a total of $89.2 billion
of recurrent subvention in 2023-24 under the triennial funding
arrangement. | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the
HKSAR Government for its sterling support and commitment to the
public healthcare despite the pressure on public finance.
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Talent is the driving force that boosts the development of medical
services. HA strived to retain, attract and nurture healthcare
talent, with a view to building a sustainable workforce that could
respond and adapt to the dynamic medical environment, so as to
expand and groom the talent pool for our public healthcare system.
Not only did we reach out to different countries and regions to
participate in recruitment activities, we also provided short-
to-medium term exchange opportunities in Hong Kong public
hospitals for non-locally trained healthcare professionals through
the Global Healthcare Talent Scheme. Further, we established the
HA Global Healthcare Professional Recruitment Centre in late
2023 to coordinate the recruitment and exchange programmes
of global healthcare professionals, including doctors, nurses and
allied health professionals. In parallel, we endeavoured to increase
training opportunities for colleagues and foster staff's professional
development through the establishment of the Hospital Authority
Academy which consolidated training resources.
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On the other hand, HA had also actively commenced various
exchange programmes and collaboration agreements with major
Mainland cities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area (GBA). The GBA Healthcare Talents Visiting Programmes had
been further developed this year, with doctors, nurses, Chinese
medicine experts and radiographers from the Mainland coming
to Hong Kong public hospitals for experience and knowledge
exchange. HA also sent our doctors, nurses, radiographers and
medical physicists to various renowned hospitals in the Mainland
so they could learn from each other. HA would continue to
capitalise on the opportunities arising from the development of
GBA to deepen the professional exchange of healthcare talents to
achieve mutual benefits.
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My heartfelt appreciation goes to all members of the HA Board,
Regional Advisory Committees and Hospital Governing Committees,
and co-opted members of the Functional Committees, whose
valuable guidance and advice had enabled HA making promising
headway in various areas. We welcome Mr Lawrence Chan Man-yiu,
Mr Jat Sew-tong and Prof Philip Chiu Wai-yan for joining the Board
last year. Their expertise and rich experience shall inject fresh
ideas and impetus to HA. We also thank the outgoing members
Prof Francis Chan Ka-leung, Mr David Fong Man-hung, Mr Franklin
Lam Fan-keung and Dr Leung Wing-cheong, who made significant
contribution to HA with their wise counsel. In addition, | am indebted
to all parties including members of the Legislative Council and
District Councils, patient groups, volunteers, as well as the wider
community for their unfailing support to the works of HA.
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Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to all
dedicated and passionate members of the HA. Through all
challenging times, their determination in safeguarding people’s
health has never wavered. | am deeply honoured to be able to
continue joint endeavour with such an outstanding team serving
Hong Kong citizens. There is a long way to go along the pathway of
a sustainable public healthcare, but the HA team shall stay united
and dauntless, and forge ahead bravely, towards a promising future.

Henry Fan Hung-ling
Chairman
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The success of public healthcare services hinges on a robust
pipeline of talent. In this regard, the first and foremost task we had
undertakenin2023-24 is to recruit suitable healthcare professionals
with our utmost efforts. HA had proactively reached out to various
parts of the world to promote the latest pathway for medical
students and medical practitioners to join HA. Positive responses
were received. The number of non-locally trained doctors coming to
Hong Kong for work or exchange has more than doubled to nearly
140 in 2023-24. Separately, the passing of the Nurses Registration
(Amendment) Bill 2023 would help attract eligible non-locally
trained nurses to join HA.

At the same time, HA implemented multi-pronged measures to
recruit local healthcare professionals. In 2023-24, we recruited over
660 doctors, 2 530 nurses and 920 allied health professionals, while
continued to increase manpower by recruiting part-time healthcare
professionals via Locum Office and introducing flexible employment
options. We also spared no effort in retaining and nurturing the
serving HA team, by enhancing promotion prospects, improving
remuneration packages, as well as providing great opportunities for
training. To this end, the Hospital Authority Academy (HAA) was
established, integrating the current corporate training institutes of
different staff groups. HAA coordinates over 4 000 courses each
year with the commitment to providing structured, comprehensive,
and innovative training to power skills and nurture a stable and
smart workforce.
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Adhering to the vision of sustainability, HA continued to uplift service
quality and efficiency, so that the public healthcare system could take
care of the healthcare needs of our citizens in the long run. Ceaseless
efforts were devoted in the development of smart hospitals and the
provision of “Smart Care”, with new service models implemented
leveraging the application of innovative technology. One of our key
focuses was to enhance the capability of the HA mobile app “HA
Go" as the “Digital Front Door” of HA's services. The functions of
“BookHA" in “HA Go" were enhanced to facilitate patients to book
new case appointments for services of six allied health specialties,
including Dietetics, Occupational Therapy, Physiotherapy, and more.
In addition, the Medication Delivery Service had been extended, and
was made available to all patients attending specialist outpatient
clinics (SOPCs), general outpatient clinics, and those discharged
from the hospital, and receiving accident and emergency services
by end of April 2024, providing patients with a convenient choice of
medication collection. HA had been actively expanding the scope of
telehealth services as well, including outpatient, day patient, inpatient
and outreach services, so that more suitable patients could receive
healthcare services from HA at ease.

To address the issue of long waiting time for specialist outpatient
services, we introduced various measures to enhance services in
the SOPCs, which included strengthening referral management,
streamlining cross-specialty consultation services, as well as
expanding Public-Private Partnership programmes, etc. With all
these enhancement measures, HA successfully achieved the target
setin The Chief Executive’s 2022 Policy Address to reduce the waiting
time for stable new case bookings for Medicine specialist outpatient
services by 20% in 2023-24. We will continue our efforts in improving
the service.
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To facilitate a sustainable healthcare service in HA, we had adopted
new service models including ambulatory care, community-based
care, as well as more Integrated Model of Specialist Outpatient
Service through Nurse Clinics so that timely and appropriate
treatment and care would be provided to patients on the waiting list
for specialist outpatient services by multi-disciplinary teams. In 2023-
24, there were a total of 117 Nurse Clinics in HA's SOPCs, covering 23
specialties and sub-specialties. We had also set up pharmacist clinics
in a number of hospitals, where pharmacists provided personalised
drug counselling and assessments for patients with cardiac diseases
and relatively stable conditions, so as to alleviate the demand for
specialist outpatient services.

In addition, in support of the Government to promote Chinese
medicine, HA had regularised the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine (ICWM) services and further expanded the services to
26 public hospitals, adding up the hospital sites from eight to 53,
providing ICWM services to patients under the designated disease
areas, including stroke care, musculoskeletal pain management,
cancer palliative care and cancer care pilot programme. HA had
also increased the annual guota of Government subsidised Chinese
medicine services in the Chinese Medicine Clinics cum Training and
Research Centres from about 600 000 to 800 000, with a view to
enhancing the role of Chinese medicine in primary healthcare and to
benefitting more patients.
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Expanding and enhancing the hospital infrastructure and facilities to
meet future service needs and models of care is essential. A series
of hospital development and improvement projects are underway,
among which the Phase 1 Building of the Kwong Wah Hospital
Redevelopment Project commenced services in the second quarter
of 2023. Projects commenced in 2023-24 included main works
for redevelopment of Prince of Wales Hospital, phase 2 (stage 1),
Kwong Wah Hospital, phase 2 and Grantham Hospital, phase 1 as
well as expansion of Lai King Building in Princess Margaret Hospital.
Following the establishment of the Development and Works
Committee under HA Board, HA Head Office set up a Development
& Works Division to oversee and execute the strategies and works
projects set in the HA Hospital Development Plans.
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Senior appointments in 2023-24 included, in chronology, Dr Bonnie
Siu was appointed as Hospital Chief Executive (HCE) of Castle Peak
Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital; Dr Frank Chan as HCE of Hong Kong
Buddhist Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital; as well as Dr Flora Tsang
Hau-fung as HCE of Grantham Hospital and Tung Wah Hospital. At the
Head Office, Ir Kelvin Lo served as Director (Development and Works).

Safeguarding the health and well-being of the community is no easy
task. Only with the full backing of the HKSAR Government and all
sectors of society, as well as the professionalism of all HA staff, HA
was able to tide over any adversities through the years. Regardless
of the challenges and difficulties we may face, so long as we stride
forward resolutely in the right direction, it will lead to a broad runway
for a sustainable public healthcare system.

Tony Ko Pat-sing
Chief Executive
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Hospital Authority

at a Glance 2023-24
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Total Manpower of Hospital Authority’
No. of Full-time Equivalent Staff

(as at 31 Mar 2024)
BirEERAF &
EREBABEA

(2024 % 3 A 31 H&T)

. 90,785

Medical /%
7,350

Nursing 7%
28,8065
Allied Health Z 5 B /5

9,497

Others (including Supporting (Care-related),
Management / Administration, and Others)

Hith (BHEEESR - B8 / THREMD)
45,073
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, 30,671

Number of hospital beds’
(as at 31 Mar 2024)

Bl RAE A’
(BE 202493 A31H)

Number of Hospitals and
Institutions under the Hospital
Authority (as at 31 Mar 2024)
Bl e R Nk / B E
(= 202443 A31AH)

Number of Specialist Outpatient
Clinics (as at 31 Mar 2024)
BRI 2 M8
(BiE2024F 3 H31H)

Number of General Outpatient
Clinics (as at 31 Mar 2024)
IR E b=

(BZE 20243 A 31H)



Total Specialist Outpatient
(Clinical) attendances’

BRIPIY (BR) 2BAR

8,368,107
VY

Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances’

2REE (F2) Ejl—:u/,v%'}\/

3,301,186

Total Inpatient and Day Inpatient
discharges and deaths’

{EB R ARER R A LR AR
EIARIN &

. 1,955,999

Remarks:
Manpower on full-time equivalent basis includes all full-time and part-time staff in Hospital Authority (HA)'s workforce i.e. permanent, contract

1

and temporary. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.
2. For detailed statistics of the services of HA, please refer to Appendix 9 of this report.

et
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2. FHBERFMARBATET  FSRARFERMEI -

General Outpatient attendances2

PR N

6,008,083

Total Accident and Emergency attendances’
SEERZEA

2,142,830

Family Medicine Specialist Clinic
attendances’

REBEFMMZHZA

351,698
@
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04 | 2023

The HA launched the Ambulatory Diagnostic Radiology
Service Pilot Programme. Patients with suitable
clinical conditions were invited to receive radiological
diagnostic services at the Central Government-Aided
Emergency Hospital (CGAEH). The scope of services
of CGAEH was further expanded from October,
with the increased service capacity for Computed
Tomography (CT) scan, the launch of contrast CT scan
and ultrasound scan services, an endoscopy service
pilot scheme, provision of sleep test, as well as multi-
drug resistant organism screening.
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0412023

The Hospital Authority (HA) held a welcome ceremony
for the Greater Bay Area (GBA) Healthcare Talents
Visiting Programmes to greet more than 80 healthcare
professionals from Guangdong Province coming to
Hong Kong. With the successful implementation
of the programmes, more doctors, nurses, Chinese
medicine experts and radiographers from Guangdong
Province came to participate in the exchange in the
year. HA also sent our medical professionals to various
renowned hospitals in the Mainland for experience
and knowledge exchange.
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0512023

The Phase 1 Building of the Kwong Wah Hospital
Redevelopment Project was completed. Following the
commencement of services in phases in late April,
the new Accident and Emergency (A&E) Department
opened on 31 May, to provide a more comprehensive
24-hour emergency medical care to patients.
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04 | 2023

The HA delegation staged recruitment events in
London and Sydney in April and June respectively
to promote the latest registration arrangements
for working in Hong Kong to medical students and
medical practitioners, with a view to attracting more
non-locally trained doctors to serve in the public
healthcare system in Hong Kong.
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06 | 2023

The HA announced the report of the Review Committee
on Medical Equipment and Facility Maintenance, and
has actively followed up on various improvement
recommendations about the maintenance of medical
equipment and facilities in public hospitals, so as to
protect the safety of patients and staff.
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06 | 2023

The Tuen Mun Hospital Operating Theatre Extension
Block commenced operation in phases since late
2022. The extension part of the A&E Department,
Intensive Care Unit, as well as operating theatres
were gradually put in service during the year.
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06 1 2023

A cluster-based cardiology team formed by the
cardiology teams from Princess Margaret Hospital,
Caritas Medical Centre and Yan Chai Hospital was
set up to provide 24-hour Primary Percutaneous
Coronary Intervention service for patients with acute
myocardial infarction.
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06 | 2023

United Christian Hospital has become the eighth
public hospital that obtained “Baby-Friendly
Hospital” accreditation.
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08 | 2023

The HA and the Health Bureau of the Government of
the Macao Special Administrative Region renewed a
collaboration agreement to continuously strengthen
the developments of healthcare and medical
administrative management between the two places
and fully support the healthcare collaboration in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
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0712023

The HA took up the Clinical Genetic Service
previously under the Department of Health to
dovetail with the latest developments in genomic
medicine and to strengthen the provision of one-stop
multi-disciplinary support for patients with genetic
diseases and their families.
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0912023

The HA delegation participated in the Thematic
Exhibition on Health Services of the 2023 China
International Fair for Trade in Services to showcase
HA's achievements in medical technology and
innovation to the participants from around the world.
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092023

The HA signed a collaboration agreement with
the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks
Corporation (HKSTP) to establish a data platform
in the Hong Kong Science Park, allowing eligible
scientific research companies in the Science Park
to access the HA's healthcare data for scientific
research and development purposes. The HKSTP HA
Data Collaboration Lab was officially opened in March
2024, which would help promote the development of
healthcare technology and enhance the standard of
clinical research in Hong Kong.
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10 12023

The scope of HA Medication Delivery Service
was gradually expanded, with the extension to all
specialist outpatient clinics in August, and all patients
discharged from the hospital and those receiving A&E
services in October. The service was further rolled
out to all general outpatient clinics from January
2024 onwards. Patients can place a delivery request
through the HA mobile app “HA Go” to receive their
medications at home.
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10 1 2023

The HA actively developed Chinese medicine services
by increasing the annual quota of Government
subsidised Chinese medicine services in the Chinese
Medicine Clinics cum Training and Research Centres
to 800 000 starting from October. In addition, in the
first quarter of 2024, the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine (ICWM) services have been expanded to 26
public hospitals, adding up the total number of hospital
sites to 53, providing ICWM services to patients under
the designated disease areas.
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1112023

The HA established the Hong Kong Poison Control
Centre to coordinate poison control work in the
public healthcare sector of Hong Kong, with a view
to enhancing clinical toxicology and treatment for
patients suffering from poisoning.
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11| 2023

The HA provided gene therapy to a patient with spinal
muscular atrophy with the drug Nusinersen for the
first time, which is the first of its kind in Hong Kong.
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1212023

The HA established the Hospital Authority Global
Healthcare Professional Recruitment Centre to
coordinate the recruitment and exchange programmes
of non-locally trained doctors, nurses and allied health
professionals from around the world, with an aim to
expand the manpower pool of the Hong Kong public
healthcare system.
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01 | 2024

In response to the announcement of resumption
of hospital accreditation in 2022 and 2023 Policy
Address, the HA invited experts from Shenzhen
Hospital Accreditation Research Center to hold
briefings at HA Head Office, Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital (PYNEH) and Prince of Wales
Hospital (PWH) to share with colleagues the standards
of China's International Hospital Accreditation
Standards, followed by the first consultancy visits at
PYNEH and PWH in March 2024.

IF2m2&2m3¢<mﬁﬁi>hmi@Emmm

H%'@@%ﬁ Y Th AR BT LR A E I ZT
DR FTER HEA%“%$F %@tF%A%
IT&E &ﬂﬂ@%ﬁi NA (BB EFRTER

ERE (FE) ) 2R -
TE—RBSHE

K2W4¢3Hﬂﬁﬁ

1212023

Queen Mary Hospital and the University of Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Hospital signed a collaborative agreement
to promote exchange and cooperation, thereby
enhancing the level of medical services in both places.
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0112024

The inauguration ceremony of the Hospital Authority
Academy (HAA) was held, marking an important
milestone in talent training for Hong Kong's public
healthcare industry. The HAA consolidates the current
corporate training institutes under HA to strengthen
collaboration with external training institutes, and
enhance training programme credentials.
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01 | 2024

The HA and the Peking Union Medical College Hospital
signed a collaborative agreement to strengthen
exchanges and cooperation between the two parties in
the development and management of public hospitals.
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02 | 2024

The HA delegation visited the Sun Yat-sen University
and the First Affiliated Hospital, Sun Yat-sen University
(FAH-SYSU) to promote healthcare talent exchange
in GBA. In March 2024, HA and FAH-SYSU signed a
collaboration agreement to foster exchanges and
collaborations in hospital management, healthcare
services development and talent nurturing.
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02 | 2024

To cope with the service demand surge during and
after the Chinese New Year holidays, various special
measures were implemented, which included a
special refund arrangement in A&E Departments
that allowed stable and less severe patients to have
more flexibility in choosing alternative healthcare
arrangements, thus alleviating the service pressure
on A&E Departments. The special arrangement was
implemented again during the following Easter and
Ching Ming Festival public holidays.
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03 | 2024

The HA Board established the Development and Works
Committee to serve as a dedicated platform with
construction and development experts to focus on
planning and delivery of major and minor capital works
as well as facility management in HA in January 2024.
Subsequently, HA Head Office established a Development
and Works Division in March 2024 to oversee the capital
projects and execute the strategies and works projects
set in the HA Hospital Development Plans.
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The HA Chairman and Chief Executive also listened to staff's
opinions on corporate matters through staff forums and hospital
visits. Moreover, the online and newly launched mobile version
of staff letter box facilitated colleagues to raise their concerns
and suggestions, and to read the management's responses. Staff
could also stay up-to-date with the latest corporate news via staff
newsletters HASLink and various HA social media platforms. At the
local level, Cluster Chief Executives and Hospital Chief Executives
exchanged views with staff through regular staff forums, meetings
and newsletters. As the public hospitals scaled down the response
level from Emergency Response Level to Alert Response Level, the
last issue of staff publication COVID-19 Bulletin was published at the
end of May 2024. Over the past three years, 320 issues of bulletin
were published, keeping HA staff abreast of the COVID-19 situation.

The myHR App has enabled HA staff to access and handle
HR-related information and matters at their fingertips. As of
31 March 2024, the myHR App was used by over 98% of all HA
staff members. In 2023-24, the myHR App was further upgraded
with new functions, including the Electronic Sick Leave System
(Phase 1) that makes sick leave application more convenient.

A Focused Staff Survey was conducted in early 2024 targeting junior
supporting staff with less than two years' working experience in HA.
This survey served to understand the supporting staff's intention to
stay at HA, evaluate the relevance of staff measures in recent years
to their needs and tap on their intelligence for the formulation of
more effective staff retention measures. Based on the feedbacks
collected, a series of follow-up measures will be formulated and
implemented by the Head Office and clusters to address colleagues'
concerns and improve staff well-being continuously.

Meanwhile, occupational safety and health (OSH) for staff is of
prime concern to HA. We have maintained a zero-tolerance policy
towards workplace violence (WV), supported by a wide range of
training initiatives including de-escalation techniques and control
and restraint methods, to improve our staff's ability in handling WV
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incidents. In response to the new “Guidance Notes on Prevention of
Heat Stroke at Work" issued by the Labour Department, we updated
our Safety Guideline on Heat Stress Assessment and Management
to deploy targeted preventive measures and adjust work-rest
schedules, further reducing the risk of heat stroke when working
in a hot environment. Additionally, our OSH training programmes
were designed to address specific risks, including simulation training
for the prevention of sharps injuries, workshops with practicum on
ergonomics, management of ventilation, prevention of dog bites and
laboratory safety. We have also continually enhanced staff awareness
and engagement in our safety culture by releasing OSH information
through the “myOSH" module in myHR App.

Following the end of the COVID-19 epidemic, various recreational,
sports and family activities for staff have been gradually resumed
to promote a healthy lifestyle. New types of activities, such as HA
eSports Championship and “Chill N Stay”, have also been explored
and launched to attract and engage staff, in particular the young
generationin HA. “Chill N Stay" allowed staff to enjoy hotel staycation
with their family and friends at a special price subsidised by HA.
In view of the enthusiastic responses, the enrolment quotas were
expanded to enable more staff participation.

To recognise staff for their distinguished performance, HA presents
the Outstanding Staff and Teams and Young Achievers Award
annually. In 2024, 13 Young Achievers were awarded, nine staff
and seven teams won the Outstanding Staff and Teams Awards
respectively. A further five staff and six teams were honoured with
Merit Staff and Teams Awards, and another five staff received Young
Achievers (Merit Award).
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https://www3.ha.org.hk/CC_Publication/HAAR2324/OSTA_award_list_2024.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=S3cirpjtV2U

Outstanding Teams

PYNEH Robotic Surgery Team
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital (Hong Kong East Cluster)

Heart Transplant Team
Grantham Hospital / Queen Mary Hospital (Hong Kong West Cluster)

Multidisciplinary Care of Parents and
Babies at Periviable Gestations
Queen Mary Hospital (Hong Kong West Cluster)

Operation “New KWH" Squad
Kwong Wah Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)

Central Government-Aided Emergency Hospital Team
New Territories East Cluster / Hospital Authority Head Office

New Territories West Cluster (NTWC)

Integrated Acute Stroke Care Team

Tuen Mun Hospital / Pok Qi Hospital / Tin Shui Wai Hospital
(New Territories West Cluster)

HA Go Health in Your Hand
Hospital Authority Head Office

Outstanding Staff

Dr SIU Yuet-chung, Axel
Chief of Service (Accident & Emergency)
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals (Hong Kong East Cluster)

Dr TSUI Sik-hon
Deputy Hospital Chief Executive / Consultant (Accident & Emergency)
Queen Mary Hospital (Hong Kong West Cluster)

Dr LEUNG Wing-cheong
Consultant (Obstetrics & Gynaecology)
Kwong Wah Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)

Dr TSANG Ka-kit
Nurse Consultant (Orthopaedics & Traumatology)
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)

Miss FUNG Chi-king
Ward Manager (Anaesthesia and Operating Theatre Services)
Tseung Kwan O Hospital (Kowloon East Cluster)

Dr TSANG Tak-yin, Owen

Consultant (Medicine and Geriatrics) /

Medical Director (Hospital Authority Infectious Disease Centre)
Princess Margaret Hospital (Kowloon West Cluster)

Mr SHEUNG Ka-sang
Patient Care Assistant Il (Accident & Emergency)
Prince of Wales Hospital (New Territories East Cluster)

Ms MA Angel Cho-kan
Ward Manager (Medicines and Therapeutics)
Prince of Wales Hospital (New Territories East Cluster)

Dr AU YEUNG Kam-chuen, Sidney
Consultant (Obstetrics & Gynaecology)
Tuen Mun Hospital / Pok Oi Hospital (New Territories West Cluster)
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Chapter 6
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Head Office and
Cluster Reports
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The Hospital Authority (HA) provides public
healthcare services to the people of Hong Kong
through its Head Office and seven hospital
clusters. This chapter presents an overview
of the performance of HA Head Office (HAHO)
and the clusters under four corporate strategic
goals, while the performance and initiatives
of Environmental, Social and Governance are
demonstrated in Environmental, Social and
Governance Report in Chapter 7.
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HAHO aligns corporate values and directions. It plays a strategic role in leading corporate
development and supporting hospital clusters through interactive collaboration of eight divisions,
namely Cluster Services, Corporate Services, Development & Works, Finance, Human Resources,
Information Technology & Health Informatics, Quality & Safety, and Strategy & Planning.
In 2023-24, HAHO initiated corresponding programme targets under the four strategic goals
outlined in the HA Annual Plan.

BERANSRE (BMSRE)RE//ESF - SRBRRESE - EEH - TRARS - B
2 ADERED - BRI REEEEM EERZ 2 RBEEES - RNSEESHAK
BEENTRERAM  BRSNFINEESF - HEERBRE  WHBRBRREHSE - &

2023-24 FE - SIS EREEER TIET IR NARE B - HITHENIT/FESE -

Strategic goal: Provide smart care

In 2023-24, HA continued to provide Smart Care with the aid of
technology, promote ambulatory care and community-based
care to develop personalised care for patients and alleviate
pressure on inpatient services, thereby driving the sustainability
of healthcare services.

We actively explored and implemented diversified healthcare
and care options. Services of the Integrated Model of Specialist
Outpatient (SOP) through Nurse Clinics for joint replacement and
chest pain were enhanced at Hong Kong East Cluster (HKEC) and
Hong Kong West Cluster (HKWC) with the provision of additional
attendances to meet the service demand. To enhance the safety and
effective use of medications, pharmacist clinics were established
in various hospitals to provide personalised drug counselling and
assessments for SOP patients with cardiac diseases and relatively
stable conditions. Meanwhile, HA re-orientated service models and
promoted ambulatory care, including the provision of additional
Geriatric Day Hospital places and additional related attendances
at Tuen Mun Hospital (TMH) to enhance the ambulatory care for
geriatric services. Rehabilitation day attendances for cluster-based
cardiac day rehabilitation services at Kowloon West Cluster (KWC)
were also augmented.

44 Hospital Authority Annual Report BB B2 /5 F 3k 2023-2024

REEER  RRESEBE
AREBRRBNTRMAN BERE
2023-24 FEBEEANBREEBE
% D AMEEREEATER - B
EREAMGERRS - TFEERRH
B -

HMERRRESEREMEEREE -
RESRMESTBBIEMNT S5 (B
ERFM) ORI S RAER
FIZ L2 TRV BRIE AR - AN BRFE
Ko BIN - HAES BB R LD
P BEEIE R RRA LS MR BREYR
EMEMPIZRA - REREAMCEY&HE
Kt AIRTT R BER 2 MK - AT 4%
BEMPIDHNRBEFER - A - BERE
BRBEEN - #HEAHEBREE - 25N
PR RIE I AR A E B B L2
AR PisgE AT B EARFS o FfPI XA
B AER - RMARABAREOREER
BIREART - B INAEREARTSBAZ AKX ©



HA is dedicated to utilising technology to enhance patient-centric
services, and the development of telehealth is one of the key directions.
We have been proactively expanding telehealth services to more
suitable service areas, including outpatient, day patient, inpatient, and
outreach services, so that patients with stable condition and who do
not require physical examination can attend follow-up consultations
without visiting hospitals or clinics. Allied health telehealth services
have been successfully implemented in the outpatient departments of
Clinical Psychology, Dietetics, Occupational Therapy, Physiotherapy,
Prosthetic & Orthotic and Speech Therapy to provide patients with
a choice of treatment modes. In 2023-24, around 15 000 allied
health telehealth attendances, including outpatient and community
services were provided.

We continued to enhance genetic and genomic services of HA by
strengthening manpower to support the clinical services arising
from HA's participation in the pilot phase of Hong Kong Genome
Project. In support of the transfer of clinical genetic services from
the Department of Health (DH) to HA, Hong Kong Children’s Hospital
(HKCH) built up the infrastructure and augmented the attendances
for clinical consultation and genetic counselling services, as well
as clinical consultation and neonatal genetic screening services,
in addition to providing neonatal screening tests and genetic and
genomic tests. We also increased the testing capacity of laboratory
by providing additional tests for minimal residual disease assays
and Next-Generation Sequencing (NGS) panels for adult with
myeloid blood cancers at Queen Mary Hospital (QMH), Queen
Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) and Prince of Wales Hospital (PWH), while
additional tests by NGS for lung cancer patients were provided in all
clusters. HA also supported the Government's initiative on newborn
screening by piloting Spinal Muscular Atrophy screening tests and
regularising Severe Combined Immune Deficiency screening tests
at HKCH for all live births born in public hospitals.
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For cancer services, we provided molecular tests for additional
biomarker count at Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(PYNEH), QMH and PWH, so as to improve the diagnosis of patients
with high-grade glioma. Besides, modernised treatment was
arranged for patients with Glioblastoma Multiforme by providing
additional Tumor Treating Field therapy across clusters. In
PWH, the capacity of Chimeric Antigen Receptor T Cell Therapy
was increased to treat patients with blood cancer. In terms of
rehabilitation services, additional early mobilisation treatment
sessions were arranged for patients in Intensive Care Units at HKEC,
Kowloon East Cluster (KEC), KWC, New Territories East Cluster
(NTEC) and New Territories West Cluster to maintain physical
mobility and improve functional status of patients.

HA continued to expand various Public-Private Partnership (PPP)
Programmes in the year to alleviate the pressure on public hospital
services and provide patients with more treatment choices. These
included Cataract Surgeries Programme, Project on Enhancing
Radiological Investigation Services through Collaboration with the
Private Sector, General Outpatient Clinic (GOPC) PPP Programme
and Co-care Service Model, Colon Assessment PPP Programme,
Glaucoma PPP Programme and more.

Strategic goal: Develop smart hospitals

HA has been striving to adopt digital technology and artificial
intelligence (Al)-enabled tools in the clinical workflow and
healthcare facilities to develop Smart Hospitals. Continued efforts
were made to develop and utilise Al and data analytics products
to improve clinical efficiency. These included the implementation
of Al Chest X-ray in GOPCs and the launch of Feeding Tube Al in
a number of hospitals. Meanwhile in all Accident and Emergency
(A&E) Departments, we conducted additional screening for “mass
and nodule” with an enhanced algorithm, and piloted hip fracture
detection to support clinical decision.

46 Hospital Authority Annual Report BB B2 /5 F 3k 2023-2024

REAERRTS O E - RPN RERABRAET
=Ebr - HEEL MBI T B AR
S YIRS R D FORIBUIRSS - psR ¥
=SARRERERBENDE - WX S
BRBEZMEBESARENR AR
BIMNVEREL AR - RIEEREHA
BRTS - TR EBRIB MR AR
BTAMELRE - RILERARMUAE -
MEFRERGTE BERRNESER
NUBER - NEER ~ STAR K AR S
RN EDE AL INF RESHN AERED
81 LMRFTRAREENRE N M Bk E F BE

ok,
BE °

BERNFAEERRSEANLE HIET
g UFEALBRIREE S - X S%
AREEZaREE 81 BRITH
(BREFTE)] - [ RS HIERS
PHER S - [EBRMPIZANER
et &l RARBAERN - [BERER
REmEE] K [FRBRAREBIERT
gl F-

KRBT  XRESEkK
BERB I RERARRIZME B iE5 AR
BRERALER BREZBHK - R
MUEBERENERAALSREMNEBRITT
B FEULIRITERAR R - flande & AR
PORTHET A TR ERBEXS R 2 - A
REZRBREETATSRRRERA
BATRAEREERBERENEE
% IRRTE N AT TRRSM AR - AT
BWEB BT IR A SR ERARORTE



To facilitate smart hospital management, command centres were
set up at KEC, KWC and NTEC to enhance operational efficiency.
A number of acute hospitals have also implemented Capacity
and Resource Command Centres to support service planning and
resources deployment. We continued to implement electronic bed
panels and eVitals in various wards, while the latter was piloted
in selected clinics, in addition to the rollout of other IT solutions
including Corporate Queue Management System, Smart Kiosks,
hospital navigation app and blood-taking scheduling system in
specialist outpatient clinics (SOPCs) to support the operation
of smart hospitals and smart clinics. Meanwhile, modernised
pharmaceutical services were provided through Supply Chain
Standardisation to support the development of smart dispensing
and new automations. To optimise medication safety, the Closed-
Loop Inpatient Medication Order Entry system was extended
to Kwong Wah Hospital (KWH) and Kwai Chung Hospital (KCH).
Besides, various robotic solutions have been piloted across seven
clusters to support hospital operation in delivery, cleansing and
patrol, together with a pilot of tele-visit solution with robotics in
several wards to provide convenient access for carers of patients.

The HA mobile app “HA Go" was further developed to facilitate
the digitalisation of HA's services. The new case appointment
booking function in “HA Go" was extended to cover six allied
health specialties, facilitating appointment booking for patients
at fingertips. Through “HA Go", we have also expanded telehealth
services and rolled out medication delivery service so that patients
can request to receive their medications at home. To facilitate the
public accessing “HA Go" services, the registration process was
streamlined so that citizens could register online via “iAM Smart”
and “eHealth".
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To support HA's new model of digital healthcare, the fourth
generation of Clinical Management System (CMS V) was further
developed along the fundamental principles of providing paperless,
protocol-driven, closed-loop, personalised and patient-centred
services. In 2023-24, 25 projects were launched under CMS IV. For
instance, “IT Features for eAED” improved patient safety and quality
care with enhanced record comprehensiveness for A&E patients.
“Medication Safety - Clinical Intention” was implemented to ensure
medication safety during the transition of care and subsequent
clinical care. We also implemented the centralised Anaesthesia
Clinical Information System at Tseung Kwan O Hospital and
Caritas Medical Centre to improve central coordination and risk
management at HA.

HA remained the technical agency to assist the Health Bureau in
the development of the Electronic Health Record Sharing System,
and was engaged as the technical agency to provide IT services
for development and implementation of the Clinical Information
Management System Stage Il Project for the DH.

Strategic goal: Nurture smart workforce
Cultivating smart workforce to create a pool of robust, adaptable
and flexible talents is crucial to maintaining professional healthcare
services. During the year, ongoing and substantial efforts were
devoted to attract and retain talents, with over 660 doctors,
2 530 nurses and 920 allied health professionals recruited. HA
set up the HA Global Healthcare Professional Recruitment Centre
to coordinate the recruitment and exchange programmes of non-
locally trained healthcare professionals worldwide, and conducted
recruitment and promotion activities all over the world to recruit
suitable healthcare professionals. The number of serving non-
locally trained doctors under the Limited Registration Scheme or
the Special Registration Scheme in HA was significantly increased
to 138 in 2023-24.
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The implementation of the “Policy of Extending Employment
beyond Retirement” was continued to attract experienced staff to
take up further employment in HA upon reaching or passing their
retirement age. In 2023-24, 154 doctors, 468 nurses, 92 allied
health professionals and 2 990 supporting and other grades staff
were serving in HA on contract full-time terms after retirement.

At the same time, we committed to enhancing the career
prospects and promotion ladders for all staff grades. For
doctors, additional promotion opportunities were continued to
provide through the centrally coordinated additional Associate
Consultant (AC) promotion mechanism. Moreover, HA upgraded
AC posts to Consultant posts as planned to address the service,
manpower and training needs. The HA Board approved to scale
up the promotion scheme in 2021. As at March 2024, around 300
upgraded Consultant posts were created.

To develop structured succession planning for nurses, HA has
deployed various strategies, including the enhancement of career
structure, increasing promotion opportunities, improvement of
clinical supervision, provision of specialty training, etc. Apart from
increasing Nurse Consultant and Associate Nurse Consultant posts,
opportunities for Enrolled Nurses (ENs) promoting to Registered
Nurses (RNs) and for RNs promoting to Advanced Practice Nurses
(APNs) were also enhanced. To encourage and recognise the
professional development of nurses, HA introduced the Specialty
Nurse Allowance to eligible RNs, as well as offering training
sponsorship to ENs who undertake RN Conversion Programmes to
support their clinical practicum.
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In regard to the career development of allied health professionals,
HA upgraded 40 advanced practice posts of physiotherapists,
occupational therapists and radiographers to senior posts in
phases, based on service needs and the senior-to-junior ratio of
allied health departments. Besides, in order to retain junior and
middle-level allied health professionals, we have introduced a
number of measures after conducting a review of the career ladder
of allied health professionals, including the implementation of the
time-limited measure of adding an additional pay point from 1 April
2023 onwards, which is subject to review in 2025-26.

Meanwhile, the regularised progression exercise for Patient Care
Assistant (PCA) of inpatient services on 24-hour shift, Operation
Assistant (OPA) in inpatient services, and Executive Assistant
(EA) (Ward) was continued to improve the career development
opportunities for related staff. In addition, llIA and llIB ranks of PCA,
OPA and EA have been merged into one rank respectively, and the
entry pay for new recruits during training has been increased to
attract and retain staff to support clinical services.

We have also put forward a series of training strategies and
initiatives with a view to enhancing staff professional knowledge and
competencies. Training opportunities in various types were offered
for doctors, nurses and allied health professionals in different
specialties, including simulation training programmes, specialty
nursing programmes, competence enhancement programmes, and
more. A number of core clinical training series were also provided
to pharmacists and dispensers. APNs were recruited by clusters
as part-time clinical preceptors to provide guidance to junior
nurses. Furthermore, HA developed a training subsidy programme
to provide subsidies to nurses taking nursing-related courses in
tertiary institutions to promote the professional development of
the nursing workforce. Meanwhile, training subsidies were offered
to allied health staff who participated in recognised service-related
postgraduate programmes.
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In order to meet the demand for maternity services in public
hospitals, HA offered an 18-month midwifery training programme
to about 80 trainees in the year. Mandatory cardiotocography
training was also offered to all obstetricians and midwives to
enhance their professional knowledge. In addition, 240 overseas
training scholarships were provided to doctors, nurses and allied
health professionals to keep them abreast of the latest healthcare
technology and lead the development of clinical services in HA.

Last but not least, we have always attached great importance to the
mental well-being of staff. We actively enhanced staff's well-being
and cultivated caring culture by implementing diversified activities,
including various psychological trainings, treatment groups and
mental health promotion campaigns, so as to improve colleagues'
psychological competency and resilience.

Strategic goal: Enhance service supply

HA is committed to bolstering its service capacity to cope with
the rising tide of public healthcare demand due to a growing and
ageing population. In 2023-24, we have augmented the capacity of
inpatient services by adding acute medical beds at various hospitals,
extended care and rehabilitation beds at Kowloon Hospital, and
psychiatric beds at KCH. Meanwhile, the SOPC service capacity was
increased with the provision of additional new case service quotas,
while manpower was mobilised flexibly and the service capacity of
GOPCs was strengthened during service demand surge period to
cater for the medical needs of the community.

To address the service demand, we continued to build up the
capacity of diagnostic radiology services, by installing a new
angiography system at Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital, an
additional computed tomography scanner at the A&E Department
of Ruttonjee Hospital, as well as a new Magnetic Resonance
Imaging scanner at Yan Chai Hospital. Additional attendances for
ultrasound scan were provided in KWC, while the manpower of
care-related supporting staff for diagnostic radiology services
were strengthened across all clusters. The service capacity of the
laboratory testing of HA was also augmented with the provision of
additional tests for pathology services at HKWC, Kowloon Central
Cluster, KEC and NTEC. Furthermore, we established specialised
drug of abuse testing service for high-risk neonates and children
by providing extra tests capacity at the Toxicology Reference
Laboratory of Princess Margaret Hospital (PMH). In enhancing
endoscopy services, three additional endoscopy sessions for ear,
nose and throat per week were provided at HKEC.
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Pharmacy services were further strengthened in the year. Clinical
pharmacy services on discharge medication management for
patients admitted to acute medical wards and medical wards were
rolled out to various hospitals. Moreover, clinical pharmacy services
for haematology oncology patients were implemented at PYNEH.
Drug refill services were launched in medical SOPCs in QEH, KWH,
PMH, and North Lantau Hospital for high-risk elderly patients to
enhance medication safety while reducing risks of excessive drug
storage by patients. In addition, with reference to current clinical
evidence and international guidelines on the use of drugs, HA
expanded the coverage of drugs in the HA Drug Formulary. Three
self-financed drugs were repositioned as special drugs for managing
cancer and ulcerative colitis, while the therapeutic application of
five special drugs was extended for treating asthma, tuberculosis,
diabetes mellitus and cardiovascular disease.

As for uplifting the quality of cancer care, we provided additional
inpatient consultations of hepatobiliary and pancreatic oncology
services at HKWC, and enhanced chemotherapy services by
providing additional SOPC follow-up attendances at NTEC.
Meanwhile, we prepared for the installation of an additional Linear
Accelerator at HKEC, and strengthened the manpower at NTEC
to support radiotherapy services for cancer patients. Efforts have
also been made to improve care for renal patients. Additional
stations for haemodialysis were installed at Tung Wah Hospital,
while additional patient capacity for automated peritoneal dialysis
were provided across clusters to expand the capacity of renal
replacement therapy for patients with end-stage renal disease.

In support of the Government's policy direction in the development
of Chinese medicine, HA has actively expanded the Integrated
Chinese-Western Medicine (ICWM) services to 26 public hospitals.
This expansion added up from the original eight hospital sites to
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53 sites, covering three designated disease areas including stroke
care, musculoskeletal pain management and cancer palliative care.
A new pilot programme on cancer treatment was also launched
at PMH and TMH. The annual quota of Government subsidised
Chinese medicine services in the Chinese Medicine Clinics cum
Training and Research Centres was increased to 800 000 at the
same time. HA will continue to explore the feasibility of extending
the ICWM services to cover more disease areas with a view to
benefiting more patients.

Following the subsiding of local COVID-19 epidemic situation and
cessation of various anti-epidemic measures since early 2023, HA's
services have generally resumed to normal in 2023-24.

In 2023-24, the Government continued its staunch support to
sustain the development of public healthcare and provided
increasing subvention to HA, having regard to population growth
and demographic changes, under the prevailing triennium funding
arrangement. During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, HA's
total income was $98.4 hillion, representing an increase of 3.1%
from $95.4 billion in 2022-23. To ensure the proper and efficient
use of resources, HA continued to undertake prudent financial
measures through the annual planning exercise, whereby resource
allocation was guided by the Government's healthcare priorities, HA's
strategic priorities and service directions as well as the operational
readiness of proposals.

HA's total expenditure for 2023-24 was $97.4 billion, representing
an increase of 2.6% when compared to $94.9 billion in 2022-23.
With the subsiding of local COVID-19 epidemic situation, HA has
been progressively resuming its services. The cessation of anti-
epidemic measures has resulted in lower operational spending, and
HA recorded an underspending for 2023-24. Upon Government's
agreement for HA to set aside some of the year's funding for meeting
HA's future needs, HA recorded an overall underspending of $1 billion
for the year. With this underspending, the Revenue Reserve increased
to $9.3 billion as at 31 March 2024. Such reserve will serve as an
important safeguard to help maintain financial stability of HA in the
event of unexpected contingency.

To move towards a sustainable healthcare service, HA is
implementing various strategies to drive for better performance
and efficiency improvement, through evaluation of service outcome
and funding utilisation at different levels and development of
internal service cost control and benchmarking. To meet the
ever-increasing service demands arising from the growing and
ageing population, HA will continue to work out a viable funding
arrangement with the Government and exercise extra prudence
in the use of its available financial resources for meeting service
needs in a sustainable manner.
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Hong Kong East Cluster (HKEC)
BERERBHE CBBREH)

To manage the rapid growing service demand associated with the ageing
population in the catchment area, HKEC made every endeavour to enhance
its service capacity and quality by providing additional acute orthopaedics
and traumatology beds at PYNEH, and commencing audiology service at
Ruttonjee Hospital (RH). HKEC also took advantage of new technology
and equipment to provide Smart Care, which included introducing
robotic-arm technology for total joint replacement surgery in PYNEH,
as well as installing an additional computed tomography scanner at the
Accident and Emergency Department of RH. RTSKH, TWEH and CCH also
fully adopted electronic vital signs and smart bed panels during the year.

In addition, collaborative efforts were channelled into optimising patient
experience. For instance, cross-hospital blood-taking services were
made available to enhance service accessibility for patients, especially
for those residing on outlying Islands within the catchment area of
HKEC. The use of electronic kiosks and mobile application “HA Go" were
actively promoted with the support of patient service ambassadors team.
Patients were also provided with one-stop service for managing referrals
and follow-up appointments upon hospital discharge via the integrated
patient service station.

Celebrating its 30" anniversary, PYNEH organised a series of activities to
share the hospital's achievements with staff and community stakeholders
and to express gratitude for their unwavering support. Additionally, the
year 2024 marked the 30" anniversary of the Accident & Emergency
Training Centre, which highlighted its significant contribution in providing
comprehensive training opportunities for healthcare professionals,
government departments and citizens. Staff of HKEC were recognised
for their outstanding performance with the 2023 HA Outstanding Staff
Award and Young Achiever Award, while the HKEC End-of-Life Community
Care Project Team received the Outstanding Team Award. PYNEH also
received widespread local and international recognition for its innovative
concept and invention of 3D printed organ replica models for clinical
trainings and pre-operative planning processes, which contributes to
improved surgical outcomes.

As one of the first batch of hospitals participating in the resumption of
Hospital Accreditation Programme, PYNEH will continue to strive for
improvement and work towards attaining the accreditation target. HKEC
will also keep on enhancing the quality of patient care by promoting
smart healthcare in accordance with the strategies outlined in the HKEC
Clinical Services Plan.

CCH - Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok ZH) A 25 i &

PYNEH - Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
RELBRAIITZER (RRER

RTSKH -  Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals #2208 M BfEE EX & fe

SJH - St. John Hospital &M &Bz

TWEH - Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 52 5

WCHH - Wong Chuk Hang Hospital 277371 2Pt
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Hong Kong West Cluster (HKWC)
AEEEREHE BEABEA)

HKWC has been working in line with the HA's strategic goals to implement
Smart Care in managing the demands of hospital services. Capacity of
high demanding services was enhanced through re-orientating service
models and strengthening ambulatory services. In 2023-24, additional
Family Medicine Specialist Clinics attendances were provided under the
collaborative model of Family Medicine and Medicine departments in
HKWC. Also, there were additional day patient attendances provided for
patients with coronary artery disease for comprehensive cardiologist
assessment, medical consultation and cardiac investigation at QMH. The
service hours of the Integrated Ambulatory Centre in QMH were extended
with the provision of additional day patient attendances. Further, in support
of HA's participation in the Hong Kong Genome Project (HKGP), the
manpower was reinforced to provide clinical care. Over 1 700 patients had
been served under HKGP at QMH in the year, and mobile team services of
HKGP were made available at DKCH, GH and TWH.

Patient-centric care has been further enhanced with a view to providing
patients with better experience throughout the entire healthcare journey.
Smart Care initiatives such as tele-consultation, electronic result screening,
electronic payment, medication delivery and tele-pharmacy service
were implemented to provide the patients with greater convenience.
For inpatient services, improvement measures were put into action to
optimise the treatment process in a holistic manner. For examples, patient
information checklists for pre-admission and discharge were provided, and
the patient’s outfits and beddings during hospitalisation were re-designed
to enhance patient's comfort. In addition, the Geriatric team conducted
a pilot study, with an aim to integrate multiple subspecialties follow-up
(Cardiac clinic, Geriatric clinic, Endocrine clinic and Respiratory clinic)
into a single holistic follow-up, so that patients are able to have their
follow-up consultations for various specialties in one go without having to
travel long distances repeatedly.

To equip for tomorrow's healthcare challenges, QMH and the University of
Hong Kong-Shenzhen Hospital signed a collaborative agreement for future
collaborations to enhance interaction and exchange on talent training,
management, academic, innovation and technology, quality and safety, and
clinical development. This serves to promote complementary advantages
and enhancement in the level of medical services in both institutes, so as
to benefit patients of both places.
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New Territories West Cluster (NTWC)
MR Fa BB AY (TSR AR ERAR)

The continuous population growth has resulted in pressing demand for
specialist services, posing a major challenge for NTWC. It is estimated
that the population in the catchment area will grow from 1.17 million
in 2022 to 1.29 million in 2029, with a significant increase of 47% in
the elderly population in particular. The cluster is implementing the
key clinical strategies and service directions outlined in the Clinical
Services Plan for NTWC, to expand service capacity by adopting a
multi-pronged approach.

In 2023-24, additional acute surgical beds as well as Geriatric Day
Hospital places and attendances were provided at TMH. Besides, renal
services were enhanced by providing additional patient capacities for
automated peritoneal dialysis, while laboratory capacity was built up with
the provision of additional tests by Next-Generation Sequencing panels for
lung cancer patients. To cope with the increasing demand for allied health
services, the cluster offered more quotas for optometry, physiotherapy
and podiatry services, as well as additional early mobilisation treatment
sessions for Intensive Care Unit patients. On pharmacy services,
pharmacist clinic for anti-coagulant therapy was set up at POH, coupled
with the provision of additional pharmacist clinic attendances. In TMH,
clinical pharmacy services on discharge medication management for
patients admitted to acute medical wards was implemented.

NTWC is also working towards the strategic direction of developing smart
hospitals by utilising advanced technology and automation in clinical
workflow, which helps improve patient experience and safety. More
resources were invested in nurturing professional team by recruiting
advanced practice nurses as part-time clinical preceptors to guide junior
nurses. Additional promotion opportunities for nurses and allied health
professionals were also provided in order to retain talents.

Following the completion of the first phase of TMH Operating Theatre
Block extension project, various facilities are being commissioned as
planned. There was a 40% increase in the number of seats in the patient
waiting area of the Accident and Emergency (A&E) Department extension,
together with additional triage stations and consultation rooms, which
significantly enhance the A&E service capacity of NTWC. The cluster will
continue to take forward the remaining alteration and addition works of
the Operating Theatre Block extension project for TMH, with a view to
providing quality patient care to the residents of New Territories West
upon full completion of the project.

CPH - Castle Peak Hospital & 1L1£Ft
POH - Pok Oi Hospital & & 8z

SLH - SiuLam Hospital /)M 2z
TSWH - Tin Shui Wai Hospital X7k E 2z
TMH - Tuen Mun Hospital H P9 22Fz
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New Territories East Cluster (NTEC)
LR BB (R SR )

NTEC covers a vast area and serves a population of over 1.3 million. In
response to the service demand derived from the ageing population,
NTEC has made unremitted efforts to enhance both the quantity and
quality of services through various measures, including the introduction
of new service models and reinforcement of ambulatory care.

Aimed at shortening specialist outpatient clinic (SOPC) waiting time,
additional attendances for the Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (FMSC)
and allied health outpatient services were provided under the collaborative
model of Family Medicine (FM) with Medicine Departments at PWH and
AHNH, as well as FM with Orthopaedics and Traumatology Department
at AHNH. Moreover, SOPC new case attendances for gynaecological and
ophthalmological services were augmented at NTEC.

NTEC continued to enhance service provision on various fronts. With
regards to Accident and Emergency (A&E) services, additional acute
inpatient beds were opened and manpower of nurses and supporting staff
in the A&E Department were scaled up at PWH. The cluster also set up a
specialist-led team at NDH in phases to address the A&E Triage Category
Il (urgent) waiting time. For cancer services, the cluster built the capacity
for CAR-T Cell therapy to serve more patients at PWH. Laboratory capacity
was expanded to provide additional tests of minimal residual disease assays
and Next-Generation Sequencing panels for adults with myeloid blood
cancers, as well as molecular tests for patients with high-grade glioma.

On drug services, clinical pharmacy services on discharge medication
management for patients admitted to acute medical wards were
implemented at PWH and AHNH. The drug refill services of pharmacist
clinics were extended to all medical SOPCs of AHNH, NDH and PWH, as
well as the FMSC at PWH.

Quality healthcare services are made possible by the dedication of
our cluster colleagues. In light of this, the cluster strengthened its
workforce to facilitate the implementation of smart hospital projects.
Meanwhile, more associate nurse consultant positions and promotion
opportunities for allied health professionals were created to enhance
their career prospects. NTEC also strengthened clinical leadership for
PWH anaesthetic services by upgrading additional consultants.

Various capital projects including the North District Community Health
Centre, PWH redevelopment project, and NDH expansion project are
progressing. Smart hospital elements would be integrated into the new
designs of these capital projects to optimise patient experience.
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Kowloon West Cluster (KWC)
NERBRBE (WERBHE)

With a greater proportion of the elderly population in the catchment area,
KWC is committed to responding to the growing service demand through
stepping up coordination among the hospitals within the cluster and
multi-disciplinary collaboration, with the aim of optimising bed capacity
and ensuring effective resources allocation.

KWC launched a 24-hour Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention
(PPCI) service in the year. The service is provided by the cardiology teams
of PMH, CMC and YCH, forming a dedicated cluster-based cardiology
team to provide round-the-clock emergency PPCI surgery for patients
with acute myocardial infarction. Moreover, the Integrated Chinese-
Western Medicine programme for stroke and cancer palliative care
patients started in CMC. Weekly Stroke Multidisciplinary grand rounds,
as well as Palliative Care Multidisciplinary case discussions with Chinese
medicine practitioners were held regularly to facilitate communication
and integration between the clinical teams, enabling patients to receive
more comprehensive treatment and care.

Meanwhile, KWC continued to leverage technology and adopt electronic
vital signs and smart bed panels in more non-emergency departments
and outpatient clinics to improve work efficiency. In addition, patients of
NLTH and PMH can choose to have their blood taking at either one of the
two hospitals when making appointments since the introduction of two-
way sharing among NLTH and PMH's blood taking appointment systems
in 2024, which is particularly convenient for patients residing in Tung
Chung who might need to travel to PMH for conducting blood test.

On the other hand, the cluster devoted efforts to strengthen ambulatory
service and enhance medical-social collaboration. Apart from scaling up
day patient and cardiac rehabilitation day services, additional community
nurse attendances in Sham Shui Po were offered. As for KCH, a series of
forest bathing activities were organised to take the persons-in-recovery
and caregivers on a walk through the forest to relax their body and mind by
experiencing the five senses in nature. Hospitalised patients could also enjoy
animmersive experience of forest bathing by using Virtual Reality technology.

Several major capital projects in the cluster are in progress, including the
expansion of Lai King Building at PMH, the redevelopment of KCH, and
the construction of the Hospital Authority Supporting Services Centre
under the development of NLTH project. Automation, smart solutions
and patient-centric design would be integrated into the design of these
capital projects to align with HA's corporate direction.

cMC - Caritas Medical Centre B & &

KCH - Kwai Chung Hospital Z%f E e
NLTH - North Lantau Hospital 1t AU 1| 22F5

PMH - Princess Margaret HospitaL BRRIEERT

YCH - Yan Chai Hospital 1= /& &bz
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Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC)
NEP BN (NEPEHE)

KCC had gradually resumed all hospital services in 2023-24 with the
stabilising COVID-19 situation. In face of the escalating demand for
hospital beds, overcrowding in wards during service surge periods
and cross-cluster demand for specialist outpatient services, the
cluster has endeavoured to provide services to the best of its ability
with good use of resources. Furthermore, manpower shortage and
turnover of experienced staff have put pressure on service provision.

The Phase 1 Building of the KWH Redevelopment Project had commenced
services in phases in April 2023. Apart from the enhanced inpatient and
ambulatory services, the newly refurbished Accident and Emergency
(A&E) Department, coupled with the newly added Emergency Medicine
Ward, have greatly helped to strengthen the overall A&E services of KCC.
Besides, additional acute emergency medicine beds and rehabilitation
beds were opened in QEH and KH respectively to meet the rising demand
for inpatient services.

The cluster set up a smart hospital team to explore the usage of smart
hospital initiatives to improve clinical workflow and hospital operation
efficiency. Taking the opportunity of redevelopment, KWH introduced
various technology enhancements to develop smart hospital, such as
the implementation of 5G network, making it the first hospital in HA to
provide 5G network service covering the whole hospital. Meanwhile in
QEH, a robotic-arm was installed in neurosurgery operating theatre to
improve safety and effectiveness for neurosurgery, while a Thoracic
Navigation Device was introduced in cardiac-thoracic surgery to provide
early intervention for patients with suspected lung cancer. KCC further
expanded the scope of telehealth services, including the extension of
allied health telehealth services to specific target group of patients with
communication disorders, as well as the pilot tele-rehab services in
psychiatric outpatient department at KH to improve patient experience.

KCC is continuously upgrading its hospital facilities via major capital
projects as stipulated in the HA Hospital Development Plan, with a
view to benefiting more patients in need. The demolition works of the
OLMH redevelopment project were completed and excavation and
lateral support works are well underway as scheduled. The planning for
the New Acute Hospital in the Kai Tak Development Area is ongoing and
construction works of site B is progressing on schedule. Main works of
phase two of the KWH redevelopment has also commenced.
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Kowloon East Cluster (KEC)
NERBH BN (NEREHE)

Despite the challenges of ageing infrastructure, inadequate space and
persistent threats by infectious diseases, our professional team of KEC
has steadfastly upheld its commitment to delivering exceptional patient
care, and is dedicated to strengthening service capacity, while keeping
the community engaged.

The year 2023 marked a significant milestone in the healthcare
development of KEC. While celebrating the 50" anniversary of UCH with
a series of commemorative activities, several pivotal service centres
were launched by the cluster in response to the community's diverse
healthcare needs. Among these, the Children's Skin Centre at UCH
was established to address the specialised dermatological needs of
Hong Kong's young population. Besides, the Hong Kong Poison Control
Centre (HKPCC), one of China's two poison centres recognised by the
World Health Organisation, was opened in November 2023 and rooted in
UCH. The HKPCC is responsible for coordinating poison control work in
the public healthcare sector of Hong Kong and treatment for poisoning
cases, as well as enhancing poison control measures via collaboration
with international entities. In addition, the Integrated Carers' Support
Centre, situated within HHH, was set up to provide holistic support to
caregivers in the community, equipping them with essential caring skills
and alleviating the stress they face while caring for patients.

The cluster has accelerated the development of Smart Care. Dynamic
communication platforms were established with esteemed healthcare
institutions of the Mainland as well as overseas for exchange of
experiences in the application of digital solution and technology,
whereby KEC's remarkable strides made within the realm of smart
hospital advancements were showcased. During the year, the medical
grade 3D printing office was established to improve surgical outcome.
The carbon fiber laboratory was also set up to advance the design of
prostheses for the provision of more personalised prosthetic and orthotic
services at KEC.

KEC always places immense importance on staff retention, development,
and well-being. To this end, career prospects for staff members and
training programmes for their professional development were noticeably
enhanced. To promote well-being and healthy lifestyle, a walkathon
“Walk for KEC" was organised to engage not only colleagues but also
their families in a spirited 13-kilometer journey linking the locations of
the three KEC hospitals.

The expansion project of UCH is actively underway. Whilst advancing
towards the completion of UCH'’s new ambulatory block, KEC team
shall remain committed to delivering modernised healthcare services,
scaling up service capacity, enhancing operational efficiency, and
supporting primary healthcare, with discernment and dedication.
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NTEC NTWC

KCC KEC KWC
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HKEC HKWC

Throughput
RS E REREHE EEEBE NEPBES NERBSE  fEABS

Patient discharges*

HEEmEABE*
®
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Total A&E
attendances

BEZHD
80K 198552 117148 332509
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Total specialist
outpatient (clinical)

attendances
SR
g%g%(}ﬁf) 885 236 899870 1547024 968181 1465256 1412468 1190072

%

General outpatient
attendances

HERPIB R AR
HERPERSAN 6p176 393380 1105808 887088 1083957 1017184

aoh

196 710 217 697 387623 220334 326541 348893 258 201

286182 448042 364680 395717

958 490

Number of
hospital beds

bR A 3336 3079 6076

=

Number of general
outpatient clinics

EEMMZ
ZHEE 12 6 13 8 17 10 8
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oo
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3010 5059 5212 4899

Full-time
equivalent staff

ZE2H
ARME 9244 8469 18363 10253 14237 14316 12913

* Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths
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Governance

I
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Good governance is at the heart of HA and will continue to
be of the highest importance as the Authority continues
to develop. A robust and rigorous governance structure
and mechanism is in place to guide the development of
corporate strategies and policies, oversee the execution
of relevantinitiatives, and ensure that HA's operations and

practices are in line with the principle of sustainability.
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Robust and effective governance structure

60

The HA adheres to robust corporate governance, ensuring that
the organisation operates ethically and transparently to safeguard
the interests of the general public and our stakeholders. For
optimal performance of its roles and exercise of powers, the HA
Board has established 12 functional committees for the better
performance of its functions and exercise of its power, 33 Hospital
Governing Committees (HGCs) to enhance governance in the
management and operation of hospitals, and three Regional
Advisory Committees to advise on healthcare needs for specific
regions.

HA's Group Internal Audit is established as an integral part of its
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governance and control framework. It is operationally independent akHESR T%E'J B ES 7 - BIEE
of the HA management and functionally reports direct to the Audit TERBUREBIEE  BELBEERE

and Risk Committee in accordance with the best governance AFREREREEZESER - FAKE
practice. In addition to the financial audit conducted by external ERRETH - RINEB X EENE
auditor, HA is subject to Value for Money audits by the Director THBEERIN  BIFEEERA

of Audit of the Government, who submits reports to the Public
Accounts Committee of the Legislative Council. HA works closely
with its stakeholders, including the Government, the Legislative
Council, District Councils, the general public, staff, patients,
and a wide range of organisations and community groups.
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The HA's corporate governance structure and its relationships with ~ FTEIRREE BHKEE ARENETE
major stakeholders are illustrated in the following diagram: &R
Director of Audit Hong Kong Government
ErBER EBBUF
Approval of
Appointment of | appointment of
Conducting Value for Reporting | Advisin Chairman & [ Chief Executive
Money Audits epo ] " ig . ;’ii 9 Members | (an ex-officio
ETE T RERET B | EHER £(7 35 | member)
KB | BARZEITEAER
(BRRKE)
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B3R Hospital Authority Board
BRREERAE
External Auditor
SMNERRL B ED
89 2
12 Hospital Governing Regional Advisory
Conducting (7  Functional Committees C . . ,
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) } o Other
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Reporting Eif BEEY such as
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staff,
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Operations of Hospital Authority

BREERNVENE

e Details of HAs corporate governance structure as well as s FHABERME CHEE UKEELEES
membership, terms of references and issues discussed at BB HE *E‘M EEMNTIEEE - 13
respective Committees are outlined in Chapter 1 and Appendix 1 BNRAFRE—E [HIBER] MHEk
to 6 of this Annual Report. 1E6-
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In 2023-24, members of the HA Board (including co-opted
members) continued to participate actively in the discussion of
important matters in leading and managing HA:

Number of meetings held
L

15

Board*

BERASE’

° 2023-24 FE  BERAGE NKE
(BIILEK B ) IRB2REZEER
REREETHNERSE ¢

Average attendance rate

R

(84

Hospital Governing
Committees

BhiEA%EE

133

(84

Regional Advisory
Committees

BIEEAREE

12

80+

# Note: Please refer to Appendix 1 of this Annual Report for the number of plenary meetings attended by individual Board Members during the year
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Board diversity

62

Membership of the HA Board is appointed by the Chief Executive
of the HKSAR under the Hospital Authority Ordinance (HA
Ordinance). As of 31 March 2024, the Board consisted of 27
members, comprising:

1 1

Chairman Principal officer
(whois not a (HA Chief Executive)
public officer) EghiﬂzA g

I I *F _ (BERTTHARE)
(TEBAKE)

To meet the functional needs of the Board, HA Board Members
belong to different professions and possess diverse expertise,
skills, perspectives and experience. There are also members
related to interests and voices of patients and staff respectively.

As of 31 March 2024, among all 27 members of the HA Board,

if taking aside seven position-tied memberships*, there were six
female members, achieving 30% in gender diversity.

Gender diversity
MRIZ T

Female

pogi
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e The HA Board embraces the Government's “six-year rule” in

appointment of members so as to ensure a healthy turnover. As
of 31 March 2024, the HA Board achieved 100% compliance
with the “six-year rule”. Taking aside seven position-tied
memberships*, 13 out of 20 members (i.e. 65%) had no more than
four years of service in the Board.

Length of Service
£H5A

Having regard to the diversified background of Board Members,
induction meetings are organised for newly appointed Members
to provide an overview on healthcare services in Hong Kong,
HA's statutory functions, strategies, operations and governance
and the latest development of the HA, in addition to briefings on
specific areas or topics as and when required. Members are also
invited to join the Chief Executive (CE)'s visits to public hospitals
which enable them to familiarise and keep up-to-date with public
hospital operations and provide valuable opportunity to interact
with frontline staff.

Please refer to pages 4 to 7 of this Annual Report for the
appointment date and profession of each of the 27 Board Members
as of 31 March 2024.

o BERKSEEBA [NFEH] &5

(BB EHARERLER) - L#ERR
RN EER - N 2024 F3 A31H -
BERASRENE [ANFEH] &
5| o ENET R EBAL S 2 i EX
& 20 BREXEETE 13 & (A
65%) FEESFH R AP o

FAERSKRENZTTIEER - RIFIAH
ZEKERRREBNE G0 HA
BB EIRGEN - BE REATER
RES  EENREAMBEHER TN
SHRFHFBEAARGHKE G E R AR
WS sk o hoh - B Te BNt T
BB B AL BB GHIRE) - FELAR
BT RECUERNSIER - WILHE
WEHEARE TR

B/ 2024 £ 3 A 31 BHY 27 BAEHK
EMZTEHNEENS  BREAF
WE4LETH-o

*Note: Including public officers, HA CE, and Deans of Faculty of Medicine / Faculty of Health and Social Sciences of universities
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Good corporate governance

64

The HA Board has promulgated the “Hospital Authority Board
— Code of Corporate Governance Practices” (the Code) which
sets out a range of principles and best practices for the HA
Board in relation to its authority, accountability, stewardship,
leadership, direction and control exercised in the HA. HA is
committed to attaining the highest standards of conduct in
discharging their duties. The Code is regularly reviewed with
references to the best practices of other organisations and
advice of Independent Commission Against Corruption. A two-
tier declaration of interest reporting systemis in place for Board
Members. Regular report of duty visit, entertainment, and
bestowing and receipt of gift of the Board and CE is prepared for
scrutiny by the Audit and Risk Committee.

Hospital Authority Annual Report EB: B2 /5 F & 2023-2024
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As a statutory and publicly funded organisation, HA respects and
upholds the constitutional order enshrined under the Basic Law,
and all HA staff must comply with all laws in force in Hong Kong.
The HA Code of Conduct is an official document of the HA, stating
its commitment to ensuring the ethical conduct and standard
of its employees. It forms an integral part of the HA rules and
regulations with which an employee must comply as part of the
staff's employment terms and conditions. It underscores HA staff's
obligation to deliver professional services for all patients equally
without discrimination, through a culture of honesty, integrity and
respect for each other. In conjunction with the codes of practice of
the respective professions guiding and applicable to the staff, the
Code of Conduct serves as the foundation for staff's performance
standards.

Procedures are also in place to remind staff members to make
conscious effort to declare any actual or perceived conflict
of interests in any situations associated with their discharge
of duties, for instance, personal investments and personal
relationship with any job applicants, staff members, professional
bodies, suppliers or contractors to ensure integrity. HA also
formulates and implements its whistleblowing policy to allow
reporting by staff of suspected misconduct, illegal acts or failure
to act. The Audit and Risk Committee and the Human Resources
Committee receive regular reports from the management and
advise on the related matters. HA makes every effort to protect
the whistleblowers from any unfair treatment or retaliation.

Matters reserved for the Board

The HA Board has developed a formal schedule of matters
reserved for its decision in order to ensure that the direction and
control of the HA is specifically and demonstrably in the hands
of the Board. The “Schedule of Matters Reserved for the
Board" is subject to regular review in light of regulatory changes
applicable and the latest developments in the HA. Delegated
authority to executive management is granted by the Board on
specific functional areas such as human resources, finance and
procurement, taking into account the importance of relevant
policy and implication of decision, ranking of staff concerned, and
volume of operational work involved, etc.
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Strategic planning and annual planning

66

At the corporate governance level, the HA Board and its
committees, is responsible for giving leadership and strategic
direction, controlling the organisation, supervising the executive
management, and reporting on stewardship and performance
of HA. The HA Board has established systems and process to
direct and control HA's operations. Strategic planning in HA
plays an important role in providing the overall direction to
address key challenges and to ensure that HA's operations were
effective and efficient. Strategic Plan 2022-2027 of the HA is the
overarching document for guiding all aspects of HA's planning and
development within the five-year period. It sets out the corporate-
wide directions and strategies for the organisation to pursue, and
provides the basis on which clinicians and executives develop and
align their programme initiatives in the annual planning process.

HA prepares an Annual Plan each year to support the strategic
goals and strategies outlined in the Strategic Plan. The Annual
Plan sets out key objectives, service priorities and programme
targets and provides a basis for detailed services, resources
and budget planning. Both the Annual Plan and the associated
budget, which are approved by the HA Board at the beginning of
each financial year, serve as an important management tool for
subsequent performance monitoring.
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Provide Smart Care
IRIHEEEE

® Develop personalised care

BREACER

® Build up telemedicine and telecare

EBEREERNEREEE

® Promote ambulatory care

HE A SRR

® Enhance community-based care

iEitE R A EE

® Empower patients for self-care
RABA B R RERE

® |mplement alternative options for
specialist outpatient service

HETERFIR NN ERRE

® Enhance and develop different
Public-Private Partnership options

MRS EQLEHESS

Develop Smart Hospitals

ERESER

® Provide Artificial Intelligence support
for data-driven care

RBETERBERHATEERM

Develop smart ward, smart clinic and
smart pharmacy

BRRESRHE  EERNERER

Roll out “Mobile Patient” initiatives

HE [RERA #i

Automate services via IT tools /
solutions and robotics

BUE R RHS T BN A B 41T
BETREBE L

Establish IT platforms to facilitate
operational efficiency

BUEMBMRFERAEEYER

HA Strategic Plan
2022-2027
BEF 2022 & 2027 &£
RAgEHE

Planning Framework for 2023-24 (according to the HA Strategic Plan 2022-2027)
2023-24 FETEEHE (#RiE (2022 = 2027 FHBEEI) HIF)

Nurture Smart Workforce

EEESER

® Conduct long-term manpower
planning of healthcare staff

ETREBRADRS

Enhance staff recruitment and
employment options

BLETHRREREER

Foster staff's career prospects
RABEA=R

Strengthen staff relations,
management and recognition

IRETRAR - EERER

Drive Digital Workplace

ETHER{L TEE

Reinforce staff training programmes
ML 8 TIEIIRRE

Facilitate staff to attend training

mEE TS ML

Enhance Service Supply
IR ALAE

® |mplement Hospital Development
Plans

T [BRERTE

® Bolster the capability of healthcare
facilities in meeting demand

RABERERZREFRNRED

® Work out a viable funding arrangement
with the Government

REFHEETTHRRZH
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Management and control

e HA has put in place performance management mechanisms to
ensure its accountability to the public for the management and
control of the public hospitals system as required under the

EERE
o BRI

BIEH) KEERE
BREEAUBRAFHAREE B
ERRA T RIREEWKS - BER=IA
TEMERRAT AR

HA Ordinance. The three major performance monitoring tools

in HA include:

O The Controlling Officer's Report of the annual Estimates of
Expenditure for the Health Bureau, which sets out HA's key
activity targets and indicators in support of policy objectives
related to public healthcare services;

O Quantitative Key Performance Indicators (KPls) to drive
service improvement through performance benchmarking; and

O Performance monitoring of funded programmes against
pre-set targets or deliverables formulated through the annual
planning exercise of the HA.

KPI Monitoring and Reporting
FERRER EERERE

Internal

M EPEEER

Clinical
Service
KPI reports

i PR AR A%
FERBIEE

Corporate Level Bl EE R EE

Medical Services
Development

Committee
(for Clinical Service KPI)

BERERREZES
(BRBREEERBIEE)
Human
Resources
KPI reports

ANER
FEXRRIER

Human Resource
Committee
Directors’ (for HR KPI)

RlEstyo ANEREER
A EEEr e (ANEBREERREE)

Finance Committee
(for Finance KPI)

MEEEE

Finance
(HEEERRIEE)

KPI reports

S
TERBIEE
Cluster Level B4 B mH
Cluster Management Meetings

BEEESE

Administrative &
Operational Meeting*

BREERAS
R EE

O (ERIABRE)  BREHRHLR

WEAFHXEE  BIEERAR
LEFERGOBRKBIREMAILNE
ZTERIEMEER
EEMNEERRER  BBFIUE
BEERFIREAE &
EPRBENRRER  RREER
B TEREITARN BIZHAR -
EREYPHEANRR -

External

HMEREEER

Quarterly
Progress
Review

Report
(to Health
Bureau)

FEERR

*Note: KPI reports, presented to the Administrative & Operational Meetings, are accessible to the public on HA's website

i IBERBRERREERERASABSETERR - g LHEBEREMHARALERN
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Risk management

HA's Three-Tier Risk Hierarchy
BEERN=ERREERE

Operational
Risks
EERR

Managing risk is an integral part of HA's overall approach to good
corporate governance. The Organisation-wide Risk Management
(ORM) Policy and Strategy is overseen and approved by the
HA Board. It demonstrates HA's commitment to managing and
continuously improving the risk management process across
HA. It provides a holistic and standardised approach to risk
management, incorporating both clinical and non-clinical risks
across HA, and further promotes risk awareness across HA. HA
adopts a “top down" and “bottom up” approach in managing risk
through HA's Three-Tier Risk Hierarchy in the ORM framework.

Strategic Risks
RegtEkR HA Strategic Plan

BERXKTE

HA Annual Plan
BERAFIE
Major Project Plans

FEEBE

Divisional Annual Plans

Corporate Risks

HEER

AMEEIBAIEF TGS

Cluster Annual Plans
BB E TETE
Hospital Annual Plans

B AT T/est 8

P9 A E TAEEHE

Top Down Inputs

B4 - BBR B T8

BEMTER

Communication
R
HA has established a risk governance structure for
identifying and reporting risks. It has designated the roles and
responsibilities for risk management in HA from the hospital,
Cluster and Head Office level through to the Audit and Risk
Committee and HA Board. Risk profiles are produced annually
by the Head Office and Clusters to identify the top risks across
major functions, both clinical and non-clinical. Based on their
risk profiles, major risks and challenges at the local level are
addressed by risk mitigation measures by Clusters and Head
Office Divisions. Additional resources for risk mitigations will
be sought through the annual planning process as appropriate.

Departmental Annual Plans

Cluster / Hospital Project Plans

EREE

s AREEEEETRENELEREE LT

Al —IR - BE BHEBRRERE
BERMRESHEE DA ERMMZ -
RBEE RN ER AR LFFESCEE
E RO RREIRRIE - HEABERMER
R BB E B RAR M IFRRIR T - HE
TEEMZ—EREIRERN - SRR
REM - BERREHERREENE
RT=BRE - FBh (LM
[B Nt RIpEEEERR

HA Board Level
BERAE

HA Head Office Level
BERANRSEE

Departmental
Project /
Process Level
ERP9IEE /
BF

Bottom Up Inputs
BETmMLEER

BEREY T —ERREAREIAHES
MERRR  YEF T AEAERRE
BHRENBENEME ETREER
B - BREMARIM R - AERA AR
EELZEEMNEERAE - ARFRK
gEEFEETRREN  BAISEE
HRPIFERRIR & FE bR R 005 70 H A& =
% WHRAFIEREEHNEREAR
BB - MHIERE NERERE - &5
FITRRIE B EF TR SR B REINE

S S
TR ERBEREH
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Financial transparency

Under Section 10 of the HA Ordinance, annual financial
statements of the HA are prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. To ensure transparency
and accountability on the proper use of public funds, these
audited financial statements, together with the independent
auditor's report, are submitted to the HA Board for approval, and
incorporated into the Annual Report for tabling at the Legislative
Council via the Secretary for Health and posted onto the HA's
website to be made publicly available.

Independent Auditor's Report and Audited Financial Statements
for this year are set out on pages 97 to 163 of this Annual Report.

Self-assessment

70

The HA Board and its functional committees as well as HGCs
conduct annual self-assessment via a standard survey
guestionnaire which will be refined from time to time, having
regard to Members' views and the need to cater for the evolving
changes and the unique operating environment faced by
individual committees.

The Board highly values the self-assessment exercise for
identifying potential opportunities for further enhancing its
effectiveness in the future. Action plans are drawn up to
implement enhancements proposed by Members.
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Environmental

p= 45

The HA is committed to protecting the environment. Adhering to
the “Environmental Policy Statement”, we strive to achieve the best
practicable environmental standards and practices throughout our
operations, so as to contribute to the betterment of the environment.
We are committed to reducing HA's carbon and water footprints, as
well as sewage and waste generation. In particular, as HA's electricity
consumption accounted for around 3% of HK’s total electricity
consumption in 2023, a multi-pronged approach has been adopted
to reduce the consumption. The following are the key environmental
measures implemented and performance achieved by the HA to
promote environmental sustainability in the year.

Enhancing environmental governance

e To strengthen environmental management and formulate holistic
environmental strategies in HA, the Steering Committee on
Environmental Management was formed in February 2024,
assuming the below key responsibilities:

O Set out a holistic environmental strategy
O Lead and drive the overall environmental agenda across HA

O Define a framework for environmental management and staff
engagement

Establish an organisation-wide mechanism to enhance the
planning, monitoring and reporting of key environmental
targets

BEERBNRERE BFH (RREE
ET) WEREBRIFER  BREEFLE
BEATHREREENTR » HRERS
EHER - RMBIBRDEERNRE
BF ~ KRB - AROSKMBMNES - 8
ERE 2023 FNEEBLTBERESR
3% ALEMESHEMSEE T Wi
HEMRE - UTANFEBERTEEDR
BAHER R AN ERIER R R o

IR EER

o AIRIRIEE A M HEHIBEEEAIRE
FHS - BERN 2024 F 2 ARAEBIE
EHEBEREY =85

O HIEREAVERERES
o TEAMEENEBIRITHIE
o HEFIRFEIRME T2 EMIER

O BUMBEMAMKS - AIMBER

REBZRNMRE - BERMHmE
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Striving to achieve our goals

e To align with the Government's “Hong Kong’s Climate Action
Plan 2050", Carbon Neutrality has been integrated as a target
within the “Energy Management” principle of HA's “Environmental
Policy Statement”. A medium-to-long-term roadmap has been
formulated, targeting to achieve a reduction of 15 to 20% in
electricity consumption by 2035 and 30 to 40% by 2050.

e HA signed the Government’s 4T Charter in 2016 with a pledge to
cut energy consumption by 5% by 2023 (baseline against 2015).
Through implementation of various energy-saving measures,
HA has already achieved 6.1% reduction in energy consumption
by 31 March 2023, exceeding the original target. As of March
2024, energy consumption reduction of around 7% has been
achieved.

Building green hospitals

The HA actively promotes environmental sustainability as a corporate
direction. From introducing green elements in daily operations to
adopting environmentally friendly designs in new hospital projects, we
have strived to contribute to carbon neutrality and develop sustainable
healthcare facilities. Specifically, all Hospital Development Plan
projects are committed to achieving second highest rating (Gold)
certification under the Hong Kong Green Building Council's Hong Kong
Building and Environmental Assessment Method (HK BEAM PLUS).
This certification demonstrates HA's dedication to environmental
stewardship through adopting green building standards and energy
efficient building service systems to create more sustainable and
patient-centred healthcare facilities.
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EEE 2050) P MEHAABEE
BCRRBKRES) & [EEERE
Al SEMEF—GEZE - HMIH
FTHRRIKGE - BEZRE 2035
£ 2050 £ BRI D 15 F 20%
30 E 40% WHEE -

o BEERN 2016 FEET (4THE) -
=137 B1R1E 2023 FR1EABE 5% (L2A2015
FREE) - BREHZL IR -
A 2023 FF 3 AIREALENE T 6.1%
HEEREFRRE - BBRFTMWER : BZE
2024 F3 B BEHIETH 7% HEER
HAEE -

BB
BEREBRIZEE T SHESIRIR A AR
& - B FEFETRESIARRES - M
FEFTEE P B R IA B MEMRREGT - B
B IR A SR AR A AR R B R o
ARME  MABRERASINIRER
A HBEHREEEREREZINRE
BRERIZRG [HERF] £-5A5
() RE - HRBRREERERRE
BHENES N BB EREETEEN
ERER SR R - MR A FHERR
B IARA RN B AR ©



Energy saving

HA has installed over 900 solar panels
in 13 public hospitals so far, generating
electricity per annum was in the region of:

240000 7=

BR A9 BEIR

ZERENIBBAVEBRAHTER
B 900 HAFSREEMAR - FFAIELEN
#

About 880 typical three-member
household’s average monthly
electricity consumption*

#) 880 = AZKEEAFHREE"

HA has completed the replacement of
59 ageing chillers since 2018. In 2023-24,
HA also launched the replacement project
for an additional 13 chillers. With the
measurement and verification, as of March

E*%Q 2018 FEARTR T 59 & ELH
RAKHBANEIRTRE ° £ 2023-24 £ -
a‘tizﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ%%&l\ 13 AR KBEANERIE -
MR EMERE - BIE 2024 F3 A -
BEMAEFTEEEL

1 1 2024, the accumulated saving of electricity
consumption per annum was around: About 123 600 typical three-member
household's average monthly
34 OOO OOO kWh electricity consumption
TRE  #123600 A= ARESEATHHEE
The Retro-Commissioning (RCx) Energy EEZREEAER / KREHE [EH
@ Saving studies for HA hospitals / buildings ~ # Eﬁ | SHEMELBEEARBRIE - &
o|----|O have been commenced progressively and ~ 2023-24 F£E - BER M EHSTENE
g|----|0O relevant works were in progress. HA was IERZHMER - &£ 2024 F3 A ' 2
a a

also preparing to expand the studies
to other hospitals in 2023-24. By March
2024, the completed RCx works have
provided accumulated saving of electricity
consumption per annum around:

1800000 =

TERE [EFRE] IREAFFAHE
B2

About 6 500 typical three-member
household's average monthly
electricity consumption

#6500 A= AKEEAFHAEE

HA continued to install intelligent LED
luminaires in various hospitals and buildings
to save energy and reduce replacement and
maintenance costs. Ten new projects for
intelligent LED luminaires were launched
in 2023-24. By March 2024, projects of
intelligent LED luminaires completed so
far have provided accumulated saving of
electricity consumption per annum around:

3000 000 =z

EERFEASBRMAEREER LED
B = Lxﬁﬁé BER ~ BRI A -
10 EHMWERLEDZEAEERE R
2023-24 FERE - HZE 2024 F3 A -
B RE LED B AIB R 25 8F &%
HEE4:

About 11 000 typical three-member
household's average monthly
electricity consumption

4711000 = AXKEEAFHIREE

*Note: Based on the monthly consumption of 275 kilowatt-hours (kWh) by a three-member household
g U—EEAREBAREE 275 E5tE
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HA has built an Energy Management
( Database System (EMDS) to monitor and

analyse energy usage in hospitals. The
EMDS provides detailed reports, helping
HA identify areas for improvement, enhance
energy efficiency, and devise more efficient
energy management strategies. Currently,
the system covers all 43 public hospitals
under HA.

BEEREYT ERREEHBERS -
BRI EEMEREMRBR - WiRH
RS - ABRIB Ry - 1R
BETRE - Ml E A MHBERE IR
B - BT ZMECBEBERET 43K
NVA- T

All

43 public hospitals and the HA Building joined the

Government’s “Energy Saving Charter 2023" to promote energy
efficiency and energy saving.

Green procurement

74

The HA has laid down the direction and guidance in the
“Procurement and Materials Management Manual” that
hospitals / departments are required to take into account
environmental considerations when procuring goods and services.
When involving in the acquisitions of goods, equipment, products,
materials and services, HA staff are reminded to make reference
to the “Reference Guide on Green Procurement” which covers the
general principles and practices that should be considered in the
procurement process in order to reduce environmental impact.

In taking forward hospital projects, we will design and build the

hospitals as green buildings to the highest level practicable in a
cost-effective and efficient manner.
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Waste reduction and recycling

2R K% (3 1

Recycling waste papers, plastics, metals, glass and food waste in the year over:
B Wesn  2p - 28 - 508 - Bpzs

o 900%&

Proper handling of food waste:

(@]

HA hospitals delivered over seven tonnes of food waste
per day to various government treatment facilities, such as
Organic Resources Recovery Centre Phase 1 and 2 (O-PARK1
and 0<PARK?2), Food Waste / Sewage Sludge Anaerobic Co-
digestion Trial Scheme at Sha Tin and Tai Po, in order to
raise food waste treatment capacity and alleviate pressure
of landfills. Meanwhile, the hospitals continued using
decomposers to convert food waste into liquid fertilizer.

With funding from the Environment and Conservation Fund,
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital and
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital have
adopted the food waste pre-treatment system “Food
TranSmarter” to liquefy food waste into slurry before
transportation to the O<PARK1 for further processing. This
could allow the collection and shipping of food waste to be
more efficient, clean and hygienic.

Promoting waste reduction at source and offering low-carbon
menu in multiple hospitals

o ZERERIER :
CRAVEBREBHEXE tMEERE

ZEBREGHERRE 256
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Going paperless “GCRS-PLUS” system
BoEAEL [GCRS-PLUS | #:

Healthcare staff could arrange blood
tests and laboratory tests on mobile

Clinical and patient services devices. enhancin ici
| , g the efficiency and
i PR 32 7 A IR 75 accuracy of the processes
BEABFERBEE FdHmm kit
BRIAE - IRTHERIRAZE R R EREE
“Result Screening” mobile app . i
: Saved about in the year FAIEIE 47
(54 RerZ | EAED

Doctors could view laboratory and 5 6 O 0 O O 0

radiology results on mobile devices,
improving the review processes sheets of paper 5RAK

BARERERE LEEF (LB LT
s EERER
Saved over in the year N £i4& il “HA Go” mobile app
5000000 e
Users can now opt out from
sheets of paper 5RAK receiving paper bills
APBEEETEEREARS

“eConsent” mobile app

[FABFEZE | EARER “Electronic Medical Certificate”
Patients could sign consent forms [EFELFHZE |
on tablets . . Patients could view and save the
RANEFRER LEZEREE certificates via the HA mobile app
s “HA Go" and save papers
tinth RS s s s -
Saved about in the year F A& EATEBES BREERRER [HA Gol

4 9 O O O O O BHREFXM RO

Saved over in the year FFRE1& &

62 000

sheets of paper R4%

sheets of paper 5R#%



Administrative operation

ITBEF

“HA eForm” system
[HAZ#E | Z#
Paper request forms in hospitals could be

digitalised with this new product, moving
towards the goal of paperless wards

B B R RMERBIBRMF TA -
BYMERREERL

Digital human resources tools
ADEFRITEERIETA

The new products "eSick Leave" and "eContract” have

respectively supported

LN [EFRR] N [EFa0] =5

Over i1 Over i1

250000 4 000

electronic contracts

electronic sick leave applications

1B T =R BETF AL

Saved over in the year FREIE E

[

Team collaboration platform “HA Team”
[HA Team | B IH1EF &

It incorporates various products including “HA Meeting”,

“HA Drive", “HA TeamShare" and “HA Workgroup”, enabling
effective collaboration, file storage and sharing, thus reducing
the amount of printing. Since piloted in March 2022

#4 [HAMeeting] + [HADrive] + [HA TeamShare]
ﬂl _HA Workgroup | EZEER  RERBIE - SUHRETFEA

H= ORDFIE o B 2022 F 3 AFITIAR

Stored over B & 1FiR B

1 800 000

documents 19 31

Electronic signature solution “HA Sign”
[HA Sign | EF#EZ#

It enables paperless workflow in procurement,
recruitment, payment claims and more

(RS - BRSNS RIZEAE

Saved about in the year FFREIE 4

66 000

sheets of paper 5R#%

Saved about &Y

= 15600 000 %1 870:

sheets of paper R4%

* Reference: “Data, Statistics, and Useful Numbers for Environmental Sustainability”
22248 + (Data, Statistics, and Useful Numbers for Environmental Sustainability )

Reducing the water footprint in HA

(1 Tree 184&f = 8 333 Papers 3R#%*)

KB BR

Following government practice of “Tips for Saving Water”,
HA continuously promotes water saving strategies such as
implementing touchless and water saving devices to reduce
water use while improving hygiene. In terms of facilities
management, smart early water leakage detection system is
being extensively launched for prompt identification of water
leakage. Based on the ongoing water efficiency practices, HA
accounted for around 1.65% reduction in water consumption
in 2023 compared to the 2015 basis. In the coming year, more
signage will be posted around hospitals to promote water-saving
practices and encourage engagement from patients and visitors.
The implementation of water conservation practices will lead to
water saving and contribute to a more sustainable environmentin
our public healthcare facilities.
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Green investment

To support the Government's initiative in strengthening Hong
Kong's position as a green and sustainable finance hub in
the region, HA has integrated this factor to include more
green bonds in its investment portfolio in 2023-24. Proceeds
of these green bonds are applied by the issuers to fund
projects including green buildings, renewable energy, clean
transportation, sustainable water management and other
green infrastructures. HA will continue exploring opportunities
in green investment with a view to delivering both positive
environmental impact and investment return.

Achievements and awards

78

All new public hospital projects are designed according to the
standards of Gold ratings under the BEAM Plus certification of
the Hong Kong Green Building Council, with the goal of attaining
the Gold or higher Platinum rating. Currently, hospital projects
that have achieved Gold or Platinum rating include:

O The expansion of Haven of Hope Hospital
O Hong Kong Children's Hospital
O Tin Shui Wai Hospital

HA was awarded the American Society of Heating, Refrigerating
and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) Hong Kong Chapter
2024 Technology Award (Category llIl: Health Care Facilities
(Existing)) in recognition of our outstanding performance in the
design and operation of energy efficient buildings.

A number of HA hospitals and institutions (including HA Head
Office) were given the below Green Certificates issued by the
Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification, recognising our
environmental efforts and performances:

O Carbon Reduction Certificate: 32 units

O WastewiSe Certificate: 37 units
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Social
A

Carrying the core value of "people-first”, HA always places patients, ZEEREST [UABL | WZOEE " R
staff and the community partners at the forefront of allour endeavours.  J®/A - ETREEBBES TEMNZLD o &
Through our unwavering dedication to improve the quality and safetyof ~ I WA EBERBENEEZNZE - 1BSF
healthcare services, we leave no stone unturned in our quest todeliver ~ FTee B ™ RIEHEEEER - TEAR
exceptional care to the public and safeguard their health. Various major ~ #2E - BEEREFRNABTHBLEEE
measures were implemented to fulfill corporate responsibilities and ~ FHWEFREFMNEEE @ #HT T ZHEL
meet the diverse needs of different stakeholders in the year. Bt o

Patient-centric services

BAjR A B AN B9 PR 75

Upholding the patient-centred care ethos, HA has
adopted a multi-pronged approach to enhance the
quality and efficiency of healthcare services, so as to
cater the needs of patients and optimise their healthcare
journey.

BEREBARARRNREEN - ZBE MESR

BEZAME - LA s A BT 2RI 852
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Expediting Smart Care to empower patients in
managing own health

80

By leveraging the HA mobile app “HA Go" as the digital front
door of our services, HA has continued to expedite the use of
Smart Care throughout the entire patient journey. With the
ongoing development of “HA Go”", patients and their carers are
able to manage their own health at fingertips, from managing
appointments, tele-consultation, e-payment, drug delivery to
rehabilitation training, etc.:

O Expanding the “BookHA" feature to new case
appointments booking for six allied health specialties
including Dietetics, Occupational Therapy, Physiotherapy,
Prosthetic and Orthotic, Podiatry, and Speech Therapy

O Further enhancing the telehealth services to support
patients receiving community Dietetic, Occupational
Therapy and Physiotherapy services from November 2023.
Around 15 000 allied health telehealth attendances,
including outpatient and community services, were provided
in 2023-24

O Gradually extending the medication delivery service to all
specialist outpatient clinics, all patients discharged from
the hospital and those receiving accident and emergency
services, and covering all general outpatient clinics from
January 2024

O Strengthening support for carers in managing patients’
health by launching “Family Touch” function which keeps
carers updated on patient's operation status, allowing joint
attendance of patients and carers during tele-consultation
and tele-training sessions and facilitating carers’ access to
patient’s laboratory and radiology results
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O Rolling out the new functions of paying drug delivery service
charges and settling inpatient bill upon discharge via “Pay
HA” module in “HA Go". Payment can be made anywhere
anytime with popular electronic payment means provided
for patients’ choice. By March 2024, around 40% of HA's fee
receipt transactions were handled through “Pay HA" and
electronic kiosks

O Streamlining the registration process so that registration
can be made online via “iAM Smart” and “eHealth”

O As of March 2024, “HA Go" was recorded with:

over B8 —

3100000 |5

downloads

T%Z/A%l

@@

Reinforcing cyber resilience and data protection

Enhancing control framework by promulgating and
incorporating “Privacy by design” into system and product
development, and regularly reviewing and strengthening
patient data protection schemes and access control framework
to mitigate privacy risks

Regularly refreshing training updates with a new refresher
e-course published, to promote HA staff's understanding
and abilities to protect patient data privacy, identify emerging
security and privacy risks and respond to incidents

Executing cybersecurity strategy with various security
measures including strengthened internal security controls,
advanced security detection and response for information
technology infrastructure, revamped security management
processes as well as intelligence-led detection and response
capabilities to deal with the ever increasing cyberattacks
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Patient safety and risk management

82

HA upholds high standard of corporate responsibility
and transparency by employing multiple channels to share
important information regarding clinical incidents, which
ensures both staff and the public receive comprehensive data
and information, thereby enhancing their understanding on
medical incident and risks:

O Releasing the “Annual Report on Sentinel and Serious
Untoward Events”, which provides in-depth analysis and
valuable insights into clinical incidents, enabling healthcare
professionals to learn from past experiences and improve
incident management in their daily clinical practice

O Publishing the “Hospital Authority Risk Alert” quarterly
to share the highlights on clinical incidents and
recommendations on patient safety enhancement. This
enhances comprehension on healthcare safety and risk
management strategies by HA staff, thereby fostering
continuous improvement throughout the healthcare system

O Organising staff forums bi-annually to encourage frontline
colleagues to actively engage in in-depth discussions on
incident management and strategies for safety enhancement

© Organising Clinical Incident Management Seminar
Series which covers various topics including best
practices for managing clinical incidents, mastering
media communications, and navigating medico-legal claims,
equipping attendees with essential skills and insights to
enhance patient safety
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Financial assistance to needy patients

To ensure that no one will be denied adequate medical
treatment due to lack of means, financial assistance is
provided to needy HA patients via the medical fee waiver
mechanism, the Samaritan Fund (SF), and the Community
Care Fund Medical Assistance Programmes (CCF). HA has
also continuously strengthened its support to needy patients
through enhancing the above safety nets.

The Government and HA have further refined the means
test mechanism for the SF and CCF in 2021, alleviating the
financial burden of patients especially for those requiring
long-term medication. With the implementation of the new
measures and the introduction of new drugs / items under
the SF and CCF, a total of around 14 200 applications were
approved in 2023-24.
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The coverage of drugs in the HA Drug Formulary was
broadened to benefit more patients. Three self-financed
drugs with or without safety net coverage were repositioned
as special drugs for the management of cancer and ulcerative
colitis, while the therapeutic application of five special drugs
was extended for treating asthma, tuberculosis, diabetes
mellitus and cardiovascular disease.
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Patient engagement and empowerment

84

Collecting patient feedback on HA service development and
Annual Plans through the Patient Advisory Committee

Conducting Patient Group Forums with patient groups, to
exchange views on subjects including the HA Drug Formulary,
SF and CCF

Expanding volunteer services such as promoting “HA Go" and
assisting patients to use e-payment kiosks to support smart
hospital development with concerted efforts of Patient Resource
Centres (PRCs), volunteers and community organisations. The total
volunteer service hours in 2023-24 exceeded 390 000 hours

Organising medical social collaboration symposiums to foster
collaboration between clinical teams and community partners
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e Strengthening mutual support among patients and helping
patients to better understand disease management and
treatment through the collaboration of HA Health InfoWorld
and PRCs with over 200 patient groups

e Providing comprehensive information on disease, caring tips,
healthcare and community resources, and patientempowerment
activities via HA Smart Patient website to empower patients
and their carers on disease management and self-care skills

e Making use of various channels, including television and radio
interviews, newspaper columns and production of various kinds
of health educational materials such as leaflets and posters to
promote health education and information to the public

e Conducting the “Patient Experience Survey on Inpatient
Service 2023" in the year, interviewing around 10 000 patients
who have been discharged from 26 selected public hospitals
with the aim of better understanding patients’ experiences,
feelings and feedback in receiving inpatient services for the
purpose of continuous service improvement

Supportthe medical needs of Hong Kong citizens

residing in the GBA

e Through the Pilot Scheme for Supporting Patients of the
Hospital Authority in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area (GBA), eligible Hong Kong citizens residing in the
GBA are able to receive subsidised consultation services at the
University of Hong Kong-Shenzhen Hospital, sparing them the
tiring journeys between the Mainland and Hong Kong.
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Nurturing smart workforce
EEEEEK

People are at the heart of healthcare. HA therefore
remains steadfast in nurturing and sustaining a
capable smart workforce, with its unfaltering efforts to
attract and retain staff, as well as to strengthen staff's
professional development.

AT REBERGZL - BERBIWSIMEE AT
ARfEER THEEER - AFEHEFNESEK -

Manpower situation AL BT T

e Thetotal manpower of HA (number of full-time equivalent staff) e HIE2024F3 A31H  BERA
is 90 785* as of 31 March 2024. We strive to providing fair, FHBETA 90 785" - RPN EELD
equal and inclusive work environments, promoting equal - 2AFENEBENIERE  TmiE
employment opportunities for all individuals, irrespective of Pk~ BIEE - MR- FER - KEMR -
their race, nationality, gender, age, family status, religion and THEES  AFIBARMYEIE
other background factors. e o

Manpower distribution*

AFHT*
By gender By age
RIER RER

48,
O Q lﬁ;gz/?sons A 43 9§pecr]sons A

304 [{8 b

26 888 persons A 63 898 persons A 5 065 persons A
Aged Aged Aged
Male Female below 40 40-60 above 60
B I 40 BA T 40-60 3%, 60 mRA L

o For detailed manpower situation of HA, please refer to s BEERMFMAAFMRAER AN FHR
Appendix 11 of this report Ffdx 11

*Note: The manpower figures are calculated on full-time equivalent basis including permanent, contract and temporary staff in HA. Individual figures may not
add up to the total due to rounding.

7 ATR [SR2BAE] &t SEBERTE AN NERREE - ARUELIANRR - SEEFHEIME TR TSR -
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Ensuring manpower sustainability

Sustainable manpower is crucial to the effectiveness of delivering
quality medical services. HA is committed to investing in human
capital through training and development, enhancing staff career
prospects and well-being, ensuring a safe and healthy working
environment and attracting talent across the globe, aiming to
build a robust pool of diversified and competent workforce.

Training and development

e The Hospital Authority Academy was established for
consolidating the current five corporate training institutes
under HA to enhance training programme credentials and
offer appropriate structured training to staff in support of HA's
service and development needs

e All staff members are required to participate in “Mandatory
Training” on a regular basis which cover areas of “Infection
Control”, “Fire Safety”, “Data Privacy and Security”,
“Case Sharing on Personal Data Privacy Protection” and
“Cybersecurity Awareness”. The total attendances in 2023-
24 were 342 809

e Training programmes promoting understandings about
different community groups such as people of diverse race
and sexual minorities were offered to staff

e To enhance staff awareness and understanding of the Code of
Conduct, promotion and trainings on the HA Code of Conduct
were conducted via various channels
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e Strengthening the training for management staff, including o
enriching the training series for Chief of Services, organising

Developing 114 new e-courses through the HA elLearning
Centre during the year, facilitating colleagues’ convenient
access to e-learning; over 80 000 access via the “myLearning”

module in “myHR App" was recorded per month

a series of webinars on management, and introducing the

leadership programme by IVEY Business School

Enhancing career pathway

88

Increasing the number of Resident Trainee posts
and creating more opportunities for Associate
Consultants to be promoted to Consultant

BnERZIEBERMCEE
BEARERBENKE

Py

Adopting the career ladder review for allied
health grades and implementing other initiatives
such as renaming of job titles, granting additional
pay points to entry rank allied health staff upon
completion of training, as well as increasing
promotion opportunities for selected middle rank
allied health professionals

BN EHERA SRR - WHTHMIEREE
BB -~ [AITERIEIRRER T ABERERAS
?*EK%EM\ ﬁ&%’ VA B2 32 A {8 7 | S5 B B8 o B 3 AR
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Increasing the number of Nurse Consultants
and Associate Nurse Consultants to strengthen
the career ladder for nursing staff, and continuing
the provision of Specialty Nurse Allowance to
eligible Registered Nurses
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e Continuing with the regularised progression
exercise for supporting staff including Patient
Care Assistant (PCA) of inpatient services on
24-hour shift, Operation Assistant (OPA) in inpatient
services, and Executive Assistant (EA) (Ward). In
addition, IlIA and 1lIB ranks of PCA, OPA and EA
have been merged into one rank respectively,
and the entry pay for new recruits during training
has been increased

BESERAETIHTHEELCNEATE &
1 24 /NEBTR A RBSHB A RBEBIE - SR
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Expanding workforce diversity BREZTASE
The Greater Bay Area Healthcare Talents Visiting e REEBEBEAARMRE : REFBMN
Programmes: facilitating bilateral on-site clinical training ERA MR EE A BT TE A B HER
between healthcare professionals in Hong Kong and H:i;;ﬂlﬂxum FHN - BBERKREAH
Guangdong Province. Over 100 doctors, nurses, radiographers, BIBEAE - B - PGTRIANAR B AT BEAR
and Chinese medicine practitioners from the Mainland had BRI

come to Hong Kong for exchange in the year

Global Healthcare Talent Scheme: offering short-to-medium o MIREBEAATEBE : BIERHET

term exchange or working opportunities for non-locally trained BEEIEME - PERR SRS I{’E
healthcare professionals to attract talents from all over the Bt - FUL IR Bt REH A E
world to work in Hong Kong's public hospitals AT BB BT TIE
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Building a better and safer workplace

90

Developing and adopting Occupational Safety and Health
(OSH) Management Monitoring Systems, which includes the
implementation of the Electronic Chemical Inventory System,
electronic Display Screen Equipment Assessment, and Sharps
Injury and Mucosal Exposure Surveillance System to ensure
compliance with OSH legislative requirements

Improving mental health of staff through the provision of
diversified mental health activities and professional and
confidential counselling services by HAHO Corporate Clinical
Psychology Service “Oasis — Center for Personal Growth and
Crisis Intervention”
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e Conducting a Focused Staff Survey targeting junior supporting
staff with less than two years’ working experience in HA to collect
staff's views on HA with a view of improving staff well-being

e Ongoing staff welfare initiatives such as the Staff Radiology
Programme and Enhanced HLISS (Home Loan Interest Subsidy
Scheme) were in place. In 2023-24, around 3 500 HA employees
and 1 420 eligible family members and retirees enrolled in the
Staff Radiology Programme, and about 1 350 applications for
Enhanced HLISS were received as of March 2024

Achievements and Awards

e HA was awarded the “Good MPF Employer Awards 5 Years+",
“e-Contribution Award", and "MPF Support Award” for 2022-
23 by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority to honour
its efforts on enhancing retirement protection for employees.
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Building rapport with the community
AL E

HA embraces the value of integrity, openness and
accountability, sparing no effort in engaging with the
public through multiple communicating channels
and supporting different groups in the community,
with the ultimate aim to build a harmonious and
caring community.

BERARFHE
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Youth empowerment

92

HA participated in a youth work experience programme
organised by a non-governmental organisation the Child
Development Initiative Alliance, and arranged 39 grassroots
youths aged between 16 and 21 to join volunteer services at
HA, so as to gain understanding and exposure in the healthcare
industry.

Pre-volunteering briefing, on-the-job coaching, and
supervision to the youth were provided by HA. Upon
completion of the volunteer service, Cluster HR coordinated
to offer employment opportunities in HA to those aged 18 or
above for consideration.
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Responsible procurement to encourage
employment of people with disabilities

Adopting a marking scheme with scores allocated for
bidders committing to employing staff with disability
in tender evaluation to encourage outsourced service
providers to hire disabled employees

Support services for people of diverse race and
persons with disabilities

Using a dedicated website for people of diverse race to
provide the essential service information on HA website
including information about the Accident and Emergency
Department and general outpatient clinic services, as well
as some disease management information on the HA Smart
Patient website into eight languages

Providing interpretation service for 17 languages (Arabic,
Bahasa (Indonesian), Bengali, etc.) in public hospitals and clinics

Providing sign language interpretation service in HA's Open
Board Meeting press briefing, which is broadcast live on social
media, to promote inclusive communication
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Multi-pronged communications

94

Using multiple online platforms including HA internet
website, HA Facebook page, YouTube channel, Instagram
page, LinkedIn and mobile app “HA Go" for public information
dissemination

Communicating updates on the latest service arrangements,
healthcare information and important news through various
means including the quarterly Open Board Meeting, media
activities, press releases, contributed articles in various media
platforms, and HA blogs

Maintaining close communication with members of the
Legislative Council, district councillors and community
members, to provide them with timely updates on latest
developments in HA policies and services

Conducting community focus groups for citizens and

community partners to discuss and express their valuable
viewpoints on specific public healthcare issues
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Two-tier complaint handling mechanism

HA adopts a two-tier complaint handling mechanism to
provide an easily accessible, efficient and effective avenue
for addressing complaints fairly and impartially, both for the
complainants and those complained against. The first tier is at
the hospital level which covers the handling of all complaints
lodged for the first time. The second tier is for complainant
who is not satisfied with the outcome for appeal to the Public
Complaints Committee of the HA, which comprises members
from different sectors of the community to independently
consider and decide on all appeal cases, to identify room
for improvement in the delivery of service, and to advise on
appropriate follow-up actions.

HA was awarded “The Ombudsman’s Awards 2023 for Public
Organisations” by Office of The Ombudsman to honour its
commitment and efforts all along in complaint management.
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Enhancing medical and healthcare services via
donation

96

HA is a statutory body responsible for managing public
hospitals in Hong Kong. Although HA is highly subsidised
by the Government, generous donations from the public are
welcomed as an important form of community support. The
additional funding also helps alleviate our stress in facing with
the elevating medical cost. Every dollar donated would inject
new momentum to HA for the provision of better medical and
healthcare services to the public.

Donations were fully utilised to enhance the service
development and facilities of HA through allocation of funding
to various programmes, including introduction of advanced
medical technology and equipment, patient empowerment
programmes, enhancement of environment in clinical areas,
strengthening staff training to enhance service quality, etc.
Some of the donation projects were already put into services
in 2023-24.

Renal Day Centre

B A RO

Maternal and Neonatal Care Patient Simulator &
Accessory

B SR IR MR A FNAC (4

Magnetic Resonance Imaging Scanner
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One-stop Breast Care Centre
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Advanced Robotic Exoskeleton Upper Limb
Training Equipment
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of the Hospital Authority

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of the Hospital Authority (“HA") and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which are set out on pages 102 to
163, comprise:

¢ the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March 2024;

e the consolidated statement of income and expenditure for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of changes in total funds for the year then
ended; and

¢ the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of HA and the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of the Group's consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of the Hospital Authority (Continued)

Basis for Opinion (Continued)
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

HA is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of HA and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

HA is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as HA determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, HA is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless there are events or conditions that have caused
or may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of the Hospital Authority (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 10 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

¢ |dentify and assess therisks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
HA.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of HA's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

AR S
HEREERKE @)

BB ET RS M BHRRAENER

BANER THSEAMBHRREEBREENTTF
FE B 70 RS B8 8H RR T B B A BB A 8 AR BR A B
SRERE Y HASERMERNZEENR
& o RIFHEIZ IR (BB E I RIRAI) 5 10 15&A
ATNEREBR)MERMNER R 2K
WEFEEMEEN - HPITERARENAR
AMEAIEMA L FSAREMEE - SRR
BREKFHRE  BTERBLR (BEER

R EITHR AR —ERERRAFE
PR A8 RE 3L IR « SRRRFRI AT A R EREF S BB RR 5| E -

IRAEBRHREMEBEERER AR ER
B MAEBE KBS AP ERRAELR
ROBRTE - RIBREM SRR AT AR EE K o

ERE (BBETER) EITENBED
BIVERTEXHE - R T EXREREE -
FAITR -

o FRIFEHE B R AREF IR R M SRS B
BRRFEEAERBANRER - Rt R
HITERFARE E LR - JARER
RETEENETRE  ERRMERD
Eit - ARMGFAIRES RBR - g - &
BER  ERRA - SUZBRRABESH 2
£ FpREEB R RAAFFEME R B AH
AR E R SRR BB E #E 5R T G 2
M A FH R PR RO R

o TREBHABOAEH  ARIHEY
mBEHE R - 88 P03 IEE & £ BN
HEARIMREFR -

e HEBERMEASHABRNBEERE
SETATMERE R ERN AR -

s HEERRABELE T ERNINEE
e &R - REBMEDRNERRE  HBE
EEFEEZRAIBFAAENEANNEE
- A ERHERENFERL L
NEESRERE - MRBEMB/EFEEKN
THEEN AV EEZBE RS PIRA
EREIBRAMBRERTOABEKE -

SEARNRETE - AIRMAEEHRIE
BREER - RAIWEREER XA H
HEHIERGHESRE - A - ARF
TR BN L E B R E T RERHERE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

100 Hospital Authority Annual Report E&F B2/ F 3k 2023-2024



_E
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of the Hospital Authority (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 September 2024
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
hEEERRR

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt 2024%3A31H 2023%F3A31H
BET T BT
Non-Current Assets JERE) & &
Property, plant and equipment 4% - #28 & %45 5 9,420,819 8,624,062
Intangible assets & E 6 547,472 412,808
Right-of-use assets {& FAEE &= 7 529,966 675,132
Placements with the Exchange Fund ZMNEFE & 175 8 13,000,000 18,600,000
Fixed income instruments EE A ST A 9 134,700 496,115
e 23,632,957 28,808,117
Current Assets B & E
Inventories 7 & 10 3,431,837 5,140,227
Loans receivable EYER 11 118,425 -
Accounts receivable FEYIE ZX 12 393,407 443,309
Other receivables E i FEUXIR X 13 1,604,863 811,750
Deposits and prepayments &% & B~ ZUA 14 522,291 421,978
Placements with the Exchange Fund ZMNEFE & 175K 8 6,708,813 3,667,203
Fixed income instruments EE A ST A 9 1,969,015 883,766
Cash and bank balances IR 4 R R1 74584 15 51,892,607 41,594,804
66,641,258 52,963,037
Total Assets @& & 90,274,215 81,771,154
Funds E&

Designated fund I8 T & & 16 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve Yg A & 9,287,473 8,357,897
Total Funds 2@ 14,364,842 13,435,266

Current Liabilities g & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3520 & 4 4564 17 5,874,525 64,866
Creditors and accrued charges &1 A K& FEfH & 18 40,412,941 33,425,853
Deposits received B ik & 19 657,071 616,075
Lease liabilities fHE & & 7 258,225 343,368
. 47202762 34,450,162
Non-Current Liabilities £ R E & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund 1835 35 E & 45 64 17 - 5,600,000
Death and disability liabilities 56T M 8RB E T 20 287,100 191,109
Deferred income IEZEURZE 21 8,193,892 8,728,083
Deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations 22 9,968,291 9,036,870
EEWE — BB R EARIBE
Lease liabilities HE & & 7 257,328 329,664
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund 23 10,000,000 10,000,000
NILERIEBAES
&o.......28706611 33,885,726
Total Liabilites &% 75909373 | 68,335,888
Total Funds and Total Liabilities E€ R & E# % 90,274,215 81,771,154

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP £k 5t 4
Chairman, Finance Committee

MBEREETR

The notes on pages 108 to 163 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
BEERER

At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iE3 2024%3A31H 202349 3A31H
BET T BT
Non-Current Assets JE R B & &
Property, plant and equipment 473 - #22 & %45 5 9,420,819 8,624,062
Intangible assets £ & & 6 533,273 402,679
Right-of-use assets {F FAEE & 7 529,966 675,132
Placements with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE & 175K 8 13,000,000 18,600,000
Fixed income instruments EE A ST A 9 134,700 496,115
........23618758 28,797,988
Current Assets B & E
Inventories 7 & 10 3,431,837 5,140,227
Loans receivable JEYEX 11 118,425 -
Accounts receivable FEUIE ZX 12 393,407 443,309
Other receivables E i FEUIR X 13 1,604,863 811,750
Deposits and prepayments &2 & & 81+ 78 14 522,161 421,854
Placements with the Exchange Fund ZMNEFE & 175K 8 6,708,813 3,667,203
Fixed income instruments BT A ST A 9 1,969,015 883,766
Cash and bank balances IR 4 R iR1T45 84 15 51,892,607 41,594,804
... 66641128 | 52,962,913
Total Assets BEE 90,259,886 81,760,901
Funds E&
Designated fund ¥8FE & & 16 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve YA & 9,287,467 8,357,891
Total Funds 2#®@ 14,364,836 13,435,260
Current Liabilities KB & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund {35 7|20 & 4 4564 17 5,874,525 64,866
Creditors and accrued charges &7 A K& B & 18 40,412,817 33,425,735
Deposits received B ik & 19 657,071 616,075
Lease liabilities FAE & & 7 258,225 343,368
e 47,202,638 34,450,044
Non-Current Liabilities 3EREI & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund 135 F 35 E & 45 64 17 - 5,600,000
Death and disability liabilities 6T M 8RS T 20 287,100 191,109
Deferred income IEZE UL #8 21 8,193,892 8,728,083
Deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations 22 9,954,092 9,026,741
EEW S — BB B AR
Lease liabilities HE & & 7 257,328 329,664
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund 23 10,000,000 10,000,000
NILERIEBAES
e 28,692,412 33,875,597
Total Liabilites ##8%6 75895050 | 68,325,641
Total Funds and Total Liabilities & R B E# 90,259,886 81,760,901

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP £k .55 £
Chairman, Finance Committee

MBEREER

The notes on pages 108 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP =X & £

Chief Executive

TTIRAEE,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
mEREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o & BZ2024F B Z=2023F
3A31ALEE 3A31BLEEFE
BT T BT
Income WA
Recurrent Government subvention &8 & 14 B4 B 84,773,807 83,426,071
Hospital / clinic fees and charges 2Fz / 22 B ik & 24 5,865,712 5,236,123
Donations 1854 105 7
Transfers from B 5 :
Designated donation fund 35 E 188 E & 21 93,585 269,482
Minor Works Projects Fund /N Ti2IEE & & 21 2,174,621 2,422,370
Public-Private Partnership Fund AL & /EE S 21 656,215 530,392
Enhanced HLISS E TE ¥ E#:TE| 21 7,515 -
Capital subventions & 7% &) 22 1,581,463 1,585,038
Capital donations & N385 22 152,762 155,956
Investment income & & WS 1,986,817 788,779
Other income E Atz 1,086,525 992,845
e 98,379,127 95,407,063
Expenditure X H
Staff costs B TR A 25 (62,414,171) (59,419,009)
Drugs %24 (13,126,702) (12,451,347)
Medical supplies and equipment E&/& %) T K iR 1 (5,387,855) (6,325,443)
Utilities charges A FFI X (2,025,184) (1,807,736)
Repairs and maintenance #1& & R& (3,497,285) (3,218,039)
Minor works projects funded by the Government (2,174,621) (2,422,370)
RIS/ N TRRIA B
Depreciation and amortisation 75 K # 5-7 (2,042,848) (2,014,923)
Finance costs 817 % 7 (19,319) (10,038)
Other operating expenses E i 8 5 5% 26 (6,704,860) (7,260,139)
R (97,392,845 (94,929,044)
Surplus for the year £ R B & 986,282 478,019

The

notes on pages 108 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meaTHWER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By & BZ2024F B Z=2023F
3ABIALEE 3A31RLFE
BT T BETIT
Surplus for the year £ A & 4 986,282 478,019
Other comprehensive income H 1t 2 E Uk #%
Item that may not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
RugEFHBER/BAKZHIER :
- Remeasurement of death liability 20 (56,706) 67,545
RUENETERGE
Total comprehensive income for the year F A4 2 H & 929,576 545,564
The notes on pages 108 to 163 are an integral part of these % 108 & 163 HH M R ANGA B REN —Z5D o

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTREBHE

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By aE BZ2024F EZ=2023F
3A31ALEE 3A31BILFE
BT T BETIT
Net cash generated from operating activities 29(a) 10,279,500 9,139,487
SEERBMAERSFERE
Investing activities 1% & /& &)
Investment income received B35 & 25 1,803,430 497,497
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5 (2,338,455) (2,282,776)
BEME  HELRE
Purchases of intangible assets 88 & &/ & & 6 (327,191) (263,005)
Increase in bank deposits with original maturity over (3,934,952 (13,768,454)
three months
JRPREIEA A 838 = & A R R1TE K ERIG a0
Increase in fixed income instruments &E A S T AN (751,078) (252,198)
Partial principal withdrawal from placements with the 2,000,000 -
Exchange Fund
WINEESFRP RN D A S
Net cash used in investing activities #X &/Z#PFAR S FE | (3,548,246) | (16,068,936)
Financing activities Bl & & &)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 29(b) (350,072) (310,788)
XNHEREREE D
Finance costs paid B85 & A (19,319) (10,038)
Net cash used in financing activities & & &8 PFAEFE (369,391) | (320,826)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,361,863 (7,250,275)
HRekBRSEEFEIMN/ ORd)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,107,109 9,374,218
FONzReMREHF
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash (4,600) (16,834)
equivalents
INBEXFEHER S RN EENTE
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 8,464,372 2,107,109
FrRoReMRSER
Note: %I

The interest on the placements with the Exchange Fund on
behalf of the Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding
balance with the Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement
is disclosed in note 17.

The notes on pages 108 to 163 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL FUNDS
SREEERBERBH®MER

Designated fund Revenue reserve Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs$'000
EEES ONE 1] et
BET T BET T BT T
At 31 March 2022 5,077,369 7,812,333 12,889,702
72022 F 3 A31H
Total comprehensive income for the year - 545,564 545,564
FREZERE
At 31 March 2023 5,077,369 8,357,897 13,435,266
202343 A 31 H
Total comprehensive income for the year - 929,576 929,576
FANEPEWE
At 31 March 2024 5,077,369 9,287,473 14,364,842
72024 % 3 A 31 H
The notes on pages 108 to 163 are an integral part of these % 108 & 163 HH M R ANGA B REN —Z5D o

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

108

The Hospital Authority
Background

The Hospital Authority (“HA") and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial statements. HA
is a statutory body established in Hong Kong on 1 December 1990 under
the Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap.113). The Hospital Authority
Ordinance provides HA with the powers to manage and control the delivery
of public hospital services in Hong Kong. Under the Hospital Authority
Ordinance, HA is responsible amongst other matters for the following:

e advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the public for hospital
services and of the resources required to meet those needs;

e managing and developing the public hospital system;

e recommending to the Secretary for Health appropriate policies on
fees for the use of hospital services by the public;

e establishing public hospitals; and

e promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training
of persons involved or to be involved in hospital services or other
services relevant to the health of the public, and research relating
to hospital services.

HA formally took over the management and control of all public
hospitals in December 1991 including the ex-Government hospitals and
ex-subvented hospitals as set out in Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 of the
Hospital Authority Ordinance respectively.

For Schedule 1 hospitals, pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority
Ordinance, an agreement was subsequently entered into between the
Government and HA on 3 June 2011 (“Agreement”), under which the
Government and HA agreed that HA shall be responsible for managing
and controlling the Government lands (including all new properties built
on Government lands) and the hospitals, clinics, facilities, buildings and
premises established thereon (as set out in Annex A of the Agreement
and referred to as "Properties”), as well as the facilities and amenities
(as set out in Annex B of the Agreement) that may be provided on the
Properties. The ownership of the Properties continues to be held by the
Government.

For Schedule 2 hospitals, HA entered into agreements with individual
governing bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals which allowed HA to
assume ownership of some operating assets as at 1 December 1991
and to manage and control other assets, the ownership of which
remains with the individual governing bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management of the
public hospital operations since 1 December 1991. Also, all operating
and capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December 1991 were
assumed by HA, except for the capital works projects funded under the
Capital Works Reserve Fund of the Government.

As part of the Government's healthcare reform plan, HA has taken
over the management and operation of all general outpatient clinics
(*GOPCs") from the Department of Health from July 2003. Under the
arrangement, the title and ownership in respect of the related operating
assets of the GOPCs were retrospectively transferred to HA in July
2003 after receiving formal approval from the Government in June
2006. These assets were transferred at nil value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 The Hospital Authority (Continued)

(a) Background (Continued)

The Government announced in the 2016 Policy Address that HK$200
billion would be used to implement a Ten-year Hospital Development
Plan (HDP). Given the significant number and scale of Schedule 1
hospital projects in the HDP, the Government has entrusted HA
to carry out and complete a number of capital works projects for
Schedule 1 hospitals which are funded by the Government. Similarly,
HA is undertaking the capital works projects for Schedule 2 hospitals
which are funded by the Government and the governing bodies of the
ex-subvented hospitals. As at 31 March 2024, there were one major
capital works project completed and 13 major capital works projects
in progress (of which 9 projects were managed by HA), and the total
funding approved by the Government was HK$190,628,400,000.
Further details of the recognition of Government funding for building
projects are set out in note 2(q)(i).

Through HA's subsidiary, HACM Limited, funding has been provided
to the non-governmental organisations (“NGOs") operators
to enhance the operation of 18 Chinese Medicine Clinics cum
Training and Research Centres (“CMCTRs") in Hong Kong for the
provision of designated Chinese Medicine (CM) initiatives including
Government subsidised CM services at district level and Chinese
medicine practitioner trainee programme. HACM Limited has also
provided funding to participating CMCTRs for the provision of CM
services to HA patients under the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine Programme which has been implemented at designated
HA hospitals for designated disease areas. The funding provided
by HACM Limited to NGOs operators is based on each CMCTR's
individual service components and actual deliverables.

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record
(“eHR") programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare
reform, HA has been engaged to serve as the technical agency to the
Government, leveraging its experience and know-how in the Clinical
Management System (“CMS"). With this role, HA undertakes multiple
streams of eHR related projects, which are funded by the recurrent
subvention and other designated funding from the Government.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, HA recognised
HK$570,808,000 (2023: HK$443,651,000) as other income to match
with the expenditure incurred in relation to the eHR related projects.

In order to support Department of Health (“DH") to enhance its
information technology (“IT") system so as to better provide
healthcare service to the public, HA was appointed as the technical
agency to deliver the IT systems required for 19 Clinical Services
Improvement projects (“CIMS2") under Initiative 1 of the First Stage
of the Strategic Plan to Re-engineer and Transform Public Services
of DH (“SPRINT-1") as well as to undertake Maintenance Service
for CIMS2, which are funded by the designated funding from the
Government. During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, HA
recognised HK$158,670,000 (2023: HK$176,338,000) as other
income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation to the
project.
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1 The Hospital Authority (Continued)

(b) Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2024, HA had under its management and control the E-ToNE= ﬂ Jr HHEERD

following hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions: BEREENER  BESEAES &*A%%ZZD
T

Hospitals: BB

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital MBI BRI T =B

Bradbury Hospice EI TIREEFR L

Caritas Medical Centre m'ﬂﬂ‘

Castle Peak Hospital Hilg

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok %%%%Eﬁ%éﬁ

Cheshire Home, Shatin W HZEKESR

The Duchess of Kent Children’'s Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital
Haven of Hope Hospital

AKARBEABRATEER

AN
B2tk

== B (=
22 85 =T

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital BEHHE
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital BEREER
Hong Kong Eye Hospital BABREIER
Kowloon Hospital BEREPT
Kwai Chung Hospital RElT
Kwong Wah Hospital EEEBE B
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre E-SLCE IR
North District Hospital b Epr
North Lantau Hospital Jb KU L B
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital BB

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

REBLBRABT RS

Pok Oi Hospital B2k
Prince of Wales Hospital BRI T b

Princess Margaret Hospital

L

Queen Elizabeth Hospital PR RERT
Queen Mary Hospital ISR B
Ruttonjee Hospital BIAER
Shatin Hospital D HER

Siu Lam Hospital IME BB

St. John Hospital RMEERT

Tai Po Hospital AEER

Tang Shiu Kin Hospital BPEEERER B

Tin Shui Wai Hospital PaNE-
Tsan Yuk Hospital ®E% 7‘6
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 155 R e

Tuen Mun Hospital g 5‘

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RERPT

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital FREE =B S sEaEe
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital RE=FrmAflEE
Tung Wah Hospital REEEERT

United Christian Hospital EEBHGE 5B
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital =118k

Yan Chai Hospital CERkR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

(b) Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

(c)

Charitable Trusts:

North District Hospital Charitable Foundation

Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hong Kong Children's Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals
Charitable Trust

The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust

The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust

The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:

eHR HK Limited

HACM Limited

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Specialist Outpatient Clinics

General Outpatient Clinics

Other clinics and associated units

Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority
Building, 147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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eHR HK Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

(a)

(b)

112

Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") as
appropriate to Government subvented and not-for-profit organisations.
They have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying HA's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

During the year, the Group adopted the following amendments to
existing standards, which are relevant to the Group's operations:

* Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

* Amendments to HKAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The adoption of these amendments does not have a significant impact
on the Group's results, financial position and disclosure.

The Group has not early adopted amendments and interpretations to
existing standards which may be relevant to the Group but are not yet
effective for the financial year ended 31 March 2024. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment but is not yet in a position to
conclude the impact on its result of operations and financial position.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group include the income and
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals, Charitable
Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient Clinics and
other institutions under its management and control made up to 31
March 2024.

The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those
assets owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (c) FIEEHEAE
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The WEKESEEBEEITENMEERE -
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, EREREBESHERMNEFMEAEL

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date that control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. The accounting
policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
are as follows:

ZEERAE DR RRSKER - WaEH
ERERNESERNEBME ERS
o IRREEREE R EEEEE
MEHIE B - EREREENIEE
Hetrmazyl ESEEHBRENE
BRI BT ERA2S -

SEARBZRANRS  EHREKRER
2R W - EEAEINRERE © 5
Sh - BRIER BRERRMEBAMBEMNEE
BREE - BAIKRER BB
MEREN S BRREEERANS
R -

B RIEN =B E= A=+ — AR
F_=F=A=t—AZHMBNT :

Effective
Place of percentage
incorporation / directly held by
operation the Group
Name Principal activities MR/ EE SEEEEFEN
=y FEEK b B BRI
2024 2023
HACM Limited (limited To steer the development and delivery Hong Kong 100 100
by guarantee) of Chinese medicine services &%
EREERTEEERAR REPBEREVEREHRRE
NE(FRBERAR)
eHR HK Limited (limited by To act as a custodian to hold, maintain Hong Kong 100 100
guarantee) and license the intellectual property B

eHR HK Limited (JZRERAF])

rights and assets related to eHR
programme

ERREA B - RERFTEHE
TR BB AT BRI ERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2
(d)

(e)
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an accruals
basis, except for those subventions for designated programmes
or specific items that are recorded in the current account with the
Government and recognised as income when the related expenditure
is incurred.

Inpatient hospital fees and charges, such as inpatient admission
and maintenance fees, itemised charges for private inpatients, are
recognised over time during hospitalisation. Other hospital / clinic fees
and charges such as outpatient attendance fees and drug charges,
sales of self-financed drugs and medical reports and records, are
recognised when services are provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations are
recognised as set out in note 2(e).

Transfers from the capital subventions, Minor Works Projects Fund
and Public-Private Partnership (“PPP") Fund are recognised as set out
in note 2(q).

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as set
out in note 2(j).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Donations
(i) Donated assets

Furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles and intangible
assets donated to the Group are capitalised initially at fair value
on receipt of assets according to the policy set out in notes 2(f)(ii)
and 2(g) respectively. The amount of the donated assets is
accumulated in deferred income under capital donations. Each
year, an amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge
for these assets and the net book value of assets disposed of is
transferred from deferred income to the statement of income and
expenditure. Other donated assets not fulfilling the capitalisation
policy are recorded as expenditure and income in the year of
receipt of the assets.

(i) Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor are
accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the fund is
utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the capitalisation
policy as set out in note 2(f)(ii) or note 2(g), they are accounted
for as expenditure of the designated donation fund. Cash
donations that are spent on property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets as set out in notes 2(f)(ii) and 2(g) respectively
are accumulated in deferred income under capital donations, and
the corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets respectively. Each year, an amount
equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets
and the net book value of assets disposed of is transferred from
deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes are
recorded as donations in the statement of income and expenditure
upon receipt of cash.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(it

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Completed building projects transferred from the Government and
individual governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals are recorded
at nominal value and included in property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment other than completed building
projects which give rise to future economic benefits are capitalised
and the corresponding amounts are recognised as deferred income -
capital subventions and capital donations for capital expenditure
funded by the Government and donations respectively.

Property, plant and equipment other than completed building
projects are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Additions represent new or replacement of specific
components of an asset. An asset’s carrying value is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The cost of assets acquired and the fair value of donated assets
received by the Group are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows:

B TSR AR B AE

2 BAEEE @)
() WE - HBERKE

(i)

(it

(i)

(iv)
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AHE T ERIRARREBEA
iR SR - MR MERE -

BrE B E TR - Al 5 R AR 2K
REMDNYE  BERRBERER
1t - BT RBFRALIBEMAE
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KRERNIBREER ©

BROSERZETIZIN - Y5 - HaE
R THIR AR AMEIRAL A RIEYTE SR
BAR - FREIRERTEEEEF N
SERIA - FEENREEES
RiEFHAIREEE - ErEEES
FRERAWEEE -

SEFMRSNEENKARBREE
MR EBENTE - BREENTE
AERFERUNEREN TS

Leasehold improvements

HEMEREE RIERSE 2 FH
Buildings 20 - 50 years F
BEY

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years F
KHE - BAERBENREE

Motor vehicles 5-7years F
A

Computer equipment 3-6years F
BHHH

Over the life of the lease to which the improvement relates

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement
of income and expenditure.

(vii) Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset

is placed into commission.

Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development
costs, which give rise to future economic benefits are capitalised as
intangible assets and the corresponding amounts are recognised as
deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations for capital
expenditure funded by the Government and donations respectively.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and impairment and are amortised on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of one to three years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2
(h)

(i)
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases

A contract s, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
A contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
if the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from using the identified asset and the right to
direct the use of the identified asset.

As a lessee, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the lease commencement date, except for leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less which are recognised as expenses on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Right-of-use assets

At inception, the right-of-use asset comprises the initial lease
liability, initial direct costs and the obligation to restore the asset,
less any incentive granted by the lessor. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the lease term of the underlying asset. The right-
of-use asset is subject to impairment review whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

(i) Lease liabilities

A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future
lease payments with reference to an expected lease term, which
includes optional lease periods when the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise the option to extend or not to terminate the
lease. Future lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if this cannot be readily determined, an
incremental borrowing rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset. The lease liability
is subsequently measured by increasing its carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest
rate method) and by reducing its carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made. The lease liability is remeasured
(with a corresponding adjustment made to the related right-of-
use asset) when there is a change in future lease payments in
case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case of
reassessment of options.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The placements with the Exchange Fund are measured as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss" HA determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, and such
classification depends on HA's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed to the statement of
income and expenditure. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and
HA has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2
(1]

(k)

(t)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are measured at amortised cost based
on HA's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis
and stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised
to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any
discount or premium on the acquisition of fixed income instruments
is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the
term of the instrument using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the fixed income instruments and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the fixed income instruments is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Where
applicable, provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.
Inventories are stated net of such provision in the balance sheet. Net
realisable value is determined with reference to the replacement cost.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for expected credit losses. HA applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments,
which requires lifetime expected credit losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables. The carrying amount of the
accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
expected credit loss account, and the amount of the expected credit
losses is recognised as an expense in the statement of income and
expenditure. Decrease in the previously recognised expected credit
losses shall be reversed by adjusting the allowance for expected credit
loss account.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on the
debtors’ profiles of accounts receivable over a period of 36 months
rolling historical credit loss experienced. The historical credit loss
rates are adjusted for forward looking estimates that may affect the
ability of debtors to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2
(t)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

When an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written
off, the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the allowance
for expected credit loss account for accounts receivable. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
current year's expenses in the statement of income and expenditure.
Accounts receivable are written off after all possible debt recovery
actions have been taken by HA and taking into account prevailing
economic conditions.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(0)

(p)

118

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
and bank deposits with original maturity within three months.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset'’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. A contingent Liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as expenses as they fall due. Payments
made to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution plans where the Group's
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. The retirement
benefit costs charged in the statement of income and expenditure
represent the contributions payable in respect of the current year
to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit plan and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits costs when there is an obligation to make such payments
without possibility of withdrawal.

Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group's obligations in respect of death and
disability benefits provided to employees is recognised as staff
costs in the statement of income and expenditure with reference
to annual actuarial valuations performed by an independent
qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as
post employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death
liability arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income.

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out in
note 20.

Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract
gratuity are accounted for as they accrue.

(q) Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following are
classified as recurrent subvention income.

(i)

(it

Government funding for building projects, together with
contributions from the individual governing bodies of ex-
subvented hospitals, are received by HA for undertaking the
capital works on their behalf. Accordingly, the amount incurred
on building projects and the funding received are reflected as
changes in current assets / current liabilities. Any outstanding
reimbursement of project costs incurred by HA is recognised
as current assets, while advance funding received by HA for
meeting the project costs in future periods are recognised as
current liabilities. Further details are set out in note 13.

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor
works projects (under Subhead 8083MM) together with the
related investment income are recognised as deferred income —
Minor Works Projects Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the
minor works projects is transferred from deferred income to
the statement of income and expenditure or deferred income —
capital subventions as appropriate. Further details of the deferred
income — Minor Works Projects Fund are set out in note 21(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2
(q)

(r)

(s)

120

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Government subvention (Continued)

(iii) The Government allocated HK$10,000,000,000 to HA to establish
an endowment fund for PPP programmes. The investment returns
of the PPP Endowment Fund, together with the remaining balance
of the one-off designated funding for HA's PPP programmes as
at 31 March 2016 are recognised as deferred income — PPP
Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the PPP programmes is
transferred from deferred income to the statement of income
and expenditure or deferred income — capital subventions as
appropriate. Further details of the PPP Fund are set out in note
21(b).

(iv) Government funding designated for Enhanced Home Loan Interest
Subsidy Scheme (“HLISS") and related investment returns are
recognised as deferred income — Enhanced HLISS. Each year, the
amount spent on Enhanced HLISS is transferred from deferred
income to the statement of income and expenditure or deferred
income — capital subventions as appropriate. Further details of
Enhanced HLISS are set out in note 21(c).

(v) Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in notes 2(f)(ii) and 2(g)
respectively are accumulated in deferred income under capital
subventions, and the corresponding amounts are capitalised as
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets respectively.
Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation
charge for these assets and net book value of assets disposed of
is transferred from deferred income to the statement of income
and expenditure.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group's functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the statement of income
and expenditure.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties also include key management
personnel having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions between
the Group and Government departments, agencies or Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions that arise in
the normal dealings between the Government and the Group, are
considered to be related party transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

(a) Financialrisk factors

The Group's activities of providing healthcare services to patients,
the administration of drugs, the employment of a sizeable workforce
and the investment activities are primary areas of financial risks
being mitigated by the Group's financial risk management process.
The Group's underlying principles of financial risk management are
to transfer the cost of financial risks of significant level through
insurance with a diversity of insurers, to self insure for the operational
risks and to comply with regulatory insurance requirements as an
employer and owner of a motor fleet.

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group's
policies and guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet
liquidity requirements, protect capital and provide a reasonable
investment return. The investment portfolio (“Portfolio”) as at 31
March 2024 consisted of bank deposits, fixed income instruments
and placements with the Exchange Fund. Based on the risk
control measures as summarised below, the risk of default by
the counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio has no
significant concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group has no
significant currency risk since its financial assets and liabilities are
substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

() Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is the risk that counterparties may default
on its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and placements
with the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group's approved banks which
are of investment grade as determined by Moody's or Standard and
Poor’s. For bank deposits, banks must meet the minimum credit
rating not lower than Moody’s Baa3 or equivalent. The impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9 do not have a material impact on the
bank deposits. Credit risk arising from the bank deposits is not
significant to the Group.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled or paid for
upon delivery through approved banks and trading agent as well
as safe kept by the approved custodian with high credit ranking.
The credit risks of the issuers are assessed based on the credit
rating determined by Moody's or Standard and Poor's. Investments
in fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of deposits and
bonds) are with issuers of credit rating not lower than Moody's
A3 or equivalent at the time of investment. Where the maturity is
over three years, the credit rating is not lower than Moody's Aa3
or equivalent.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are entered into
between HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA")
and it is expected that HKMA can fulfill its contractual
obligations to HA in respect of the placements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

122

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Interest rate risk

The Portfolio's interest rate risk arises from interest bearing
cash at bank, bank deposits and fixed income instruments. Cash
at bank, which earns interest at variable rates, gives rise to cash
flow interest rate risk. Fixed rate bank deposits and fixed income
instruments expose the Portfolio to fair value interest rate risk.
Sensitivity analyses have been performed by the Group with
regard to interest rate risk as at 31 March 2024. If interest rates
had been increased or decreased by 25 basis points and all other
variables were held constant, the effect on the Group's operating
results and total funds is insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with liabilities. The Group's cash
flows are monitored on a regular basis and its investments are
managed with the primary objective of maintaining adequate
liquidity to meet the capital and operational requirements.

In order to meet the Groups' liquidity requirements, the Group
has maintained adequate cash and bank balances and banking
facilities. As at 31 March 2024, the Group held cash and bank
balances of HK$51,892,607,000 (2023: HK$41,594,804,000)
as disclosed in note 15 and undrawn banking facilities of
HK$5,450,000,000 (2023: HK$5,450,000,000). As the Group has
a strong liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.

Price risk

Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk caused by
the changes in the perceived credit risks of the issuers and market
interest rates as disclosed in notes 3(a)(i) and 3(a)(ii) respectively.

Currency risk
The Group's financial assets and liabilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group's functional and

presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to significant
currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B &R KR sT

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBRRERE @)
(b) Fair values estimation (b) ARAEBEME

(i) HARBEIIRNEREE

(i) Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value
are categorised by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

Levell - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length
basis. These instruments are included in level 1. None of the
instruments of the Group is included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. None of the
instruments of the Group is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
- The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting

date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)
() Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)
The placements with the Exchange Fund are included in level 3.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
for the financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

B RS ERAR B EE

3 M%ERER @
(b) AABEMET (&)
() BRAABEIIRNSEEE (&)
INEESTFHRBRE=E - TRE7
HE-_Z-_MF=A=1+—HIEk=

T_=#-A=+-RULFEFE=E
TAMES :

The Groupand HA EE R B EF

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

HZE2024% B ZE2023F

3A31HLEE 3A31BLEEFE

BT T ST IT

At the beginning of the year A& ] 22,267,203 23,329,251
Withdrawal $2EX (2,000,000) (400,000)
Interest earned / accrued interest PFTER 2, / FE=HF] & 812,186 1,174,867
Interest withdrawn $2EUF] & (1,370,576) (1,836,915)
At the end of the year [note 8] IR 4 [MI5E 8] 19,708,813 22,267,203

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Fixed income instruments are carried at amortised cost. The fair
values of fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of deposits
and bonds) at the reporting date are provided by the approved

(if) REEERAKASIIRA) & BAE A

BlEA L T ERESRKAESIR -
EABTA(AERERES) ERE
B A EEARERE AR R

custodian. These instruments are summarised below: BEan
The Groupand HA B R EER
Carrying Value [Note 9] Fair Value
IREEE & 9] AREE
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023 At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3H31H 2023F3A31H 2024%3H31H 2023%3H31H
BET T BT T BET T BT I
Fixed income instruments 2,103,715 1,379,881 2,099,263 1,359,871

BEFEAETLR

(iii) The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities such as
cash and bank balances, accounts receivable and trade payables
approximate their fair values and accordingly, no disclosure of fair
values for these items is presented.
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B ISR AR B AL

3 BKEREE @&
(c) BXERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the Group
consist of the following:

(i) ALl money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated for
that purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise provided to
HA by the Government; and

(i) ALl other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees,
rent, interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund and deferred income as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. At 31 March 2024, the capital of the Group was
HK$32,527,025,000 (2023: HK$31,200,219,000).

The Group's objective for managing capital is to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern to ensure sustainability
of the public healthcare system. The Group has always been prudent
in financial management so as to ensure proper and effective use
of public resources. Through the annual planning exercise, resource
requirement of individual clusters is identified and considered against
the total amount of resources available to the Group, targeting at
maintaining existing levels of services and providing pragmatic
service growth in meeting the pressing demand for public hospital
services. Priority is given to initiatives which aim to improve clinical
effectiveness and align with the strategic directions outlined in HA
Strategic Plan, and those which help address pressure areas, while
taking into account prevailing constraints in manpower and hospital
facility situations for capacity growth. To facilitate the delivery of
value-for-money services, the Group regularly monitors a set of
performance indicators covering performance in clinical service,
human resources management and financial management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4

(a)

(b)

(c)

126

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following is a review of the more material accounting policies
that are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for which
different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

Usefulllives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets is made by the management
with reference to the established industry practices, technical
assessments made on the life cycle and durability of the assets, etc.
Management will revise the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to the previous
estimates, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each medical
malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims in excess
of the retained sum, the claims will be borne by the insurer. In view
of the complex nature and long development period of the claims,
a Claims Review Panel consisting of the participating medical
malpractice insurers, the external panel law firms appointed by the
insurers and HA's in-house experts review the status of potential and
active claims semi-annually and assess the provision required on
each significant case. An independent qualified actuary also assists
the Group on the assessment of the exposure of other reported cases
based on historical development trend of the claims settlement. With
reference to the assessments and the analysis by the Claims Review
Paneland the external actuarial consultant respectively, management
reviews the claims exposure and determines the provision required
to cover the Group's exposure at each reporting date. Such provision
is included in accrued charges and other payables in note 18.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess the
present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme at each
reporting date. Major actuarial assumptions include the discount rate
and salary inflation rate which are set out in note 20. The present
value of the Group’s obligations is discounted with reference to
market yields on Hong Kong Government Bonds, which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related obligations. The
long-term salary inflation is generally based on the market's long-
term expectation of price inflation.
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(c)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Property, plant and equipment

B RS R AR B AL

5 Y% HBERRE

The Groupand HA EBEI R EER

Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings and equipment
improvements HK$'000 Motor Computer
HK$'000 4= vehicles equipment Total
B2EY EERE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R#EE &2 RE BRERE Bt
BT BET T BET T BET T BETT
Cost A&
At1April 2023 R 2023 4 A 18 1,107,257 16,842,636 414,528 900,888 19,265,309
Additions 1 il 16,193 2,168,527 56,857 96,878 2,338,455
Disposals & - (954,744) (12,586) (33,617)  (1,000,947)
At 31 March 2024 7 2024 % 3 A 31 A 1,123,450 18,056,419 458,799 964,149 20,602,817
Accumulated depreciation & E
At 1 April 2023 X 2023 4 A1 8 589,246 9,073,084 321,845 657,072 10,641,247
Charge for the year AEE 2 T & 25,086 1,357,437 40,045 89,418 1,511,986
Disposals H & - (925,180) (12,585) (33,470) (971,235)
At 31 March 2024 72 2024 £ 3 A 31 B 614,332 9,505,341 349,305 713,020 11,181,998
Net book value 1R FHE
At 31 March 2024 7 2024 % 3 A 31 A 509,118 8,551,078 109,494 251,129 9,420,819
The Groupand HA EEI R BER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings and equipment
improvements HK$'000 Motor = Computer
HK$'000 XA - vehicles equipment Total
EZEY EERE HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R#EE & RE E-Eid et
BETT BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost A
At1 April2022 R 2022 F 4 A 1 H 1,107,248 15,388,372 413,961 820,519 17,730,100
Additions & i 9 2,153,246 13,190 116,331 2,282,776
Disposals 1% - (698,982) (12,623) (35,962) (747,567)
At31March2023 A 2023 3 A 31 H 1,107,257 16,842,636 414,528 900,888 19,265,309
Accumulated depreciation & &
At1 April2022 X 2022 4 A 1R 560,875 8,503,493 294,833 611,112 9,970,313
Charge for the year N [E 2 18 28,371 1,249,138 39,635 81,920 1,399,064
Disposals & - (679,547) (12,623) (35,960) (728,130)
At31March2023 2 2023 3 A 31 H 589,246 9,073,084 321,845 657,072 10,641,247
Net book value IR F &
At 31 March 2023 72 20234 3 A 31 H 518,011 7,769,552 92,683 243,816 8,624,062
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6 Intangible assets

B S ER 2R MY
6 BWIEE

The Group 58
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BZE2024%F B ZE2023F
3A3IALEE 3AMALEE
BET T BT T
Cost &
At the beginning of the year B F 4] 2,495,511 2,234,239
Additions &0 327,191 263,005
Disposals & (3,144) (1,733)
Attheend of the year A7~ 2,819,558 2495511
Accumulated amortisation Zi&# 8
At the beginning of the year B 4] 2,082,703 1,761,943
Charge for the year NG [ 2 B 44 192,527 322,080
Disposals H& (3,144) (1,320)
At the end of the year A48 2,272,086 2,082,703
Net book value & EF&E
At the end of the year A48 547,472 412,808

HAEBER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HKS$'000
HE2024% EE2023F
3A31ALLEE 3A3MBLLEE
BT T BT IT
Cost B &
At the beginning of the year B 4] 2,462,132 2,207,804
Additions 20 318,115 256,061
Disposals & (3,144) (1,733)
At the end of the year ¥ 2,777,103 2,462,132
Accumulated amortisation 27&# 84
At the beginning of the year R 1] 2,059,453 1,746,825
Charge for the year N[5 7 # £ 187,521 313,948
Disposals & (3,144) (1,320)
At the end of the year REFE4L 2,243,830 2,059,453
Net book value R E/E{E
At the end of the year AR 533,273 402,679
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Leases

(a)

The Group has leased buildings, mainly for offices, blood donation
centres, clinics, data centres, storerooms and warehouses. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. To maximise operational flexibility for
the Group's operations, extension and termination options are provided
for a number of leases and are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). At 31
March 2024, the future cash outflows for lease not yet commenced
but committed by the Group amounted to HK$7,169,000 (2023:
HK$12,891,000).

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

(i)

(ii)

Right-of-use assets

MR
7 HE

EERANYETZRERAE BOF
DR EBEPL HEEREET
EFHNERNEZ EPREZETRIE
R - BB INEB ML BB 21H
HEHRRERSKRIEASHEEZRE
TEALSEMEECRAE (HTeR
IR ABEFH R -_MOF=
A=+—H HWARBREEEEEKED
HERKIRE R HABE 7,169,000 7T
(ZZT==4%: 8% 12,891,000 jT)°

(a) EREEEEBERBRANKE

() EREEE

The Group and HA EE R B EF

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$000 HK$000

2024%3H31H 2023%3H31H

BT T ST T

Buildings #1% 529,966 675,132

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the financial year ended
31 March 2024 were HK$193,169,000 (2023: HK$475,572,000).

Lease liabilities

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities are as follows:

REBEE-F_FPF=A=+—HIEz
MHFEE ERERERIRINRAER
193,169,000 T(ZT=_=F: &%
475,572,000 7T)°

(i) HERE
HERENAOIMIERNT

The Group and HA S BIREBE R/

Total
Between Between contractual
Within 1 and 2 and Over cash flows Carrying
1year 2years b5years b5years HK$000 amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 H“#HE£L HK$'000
1R 1-2%F 2-5% S5FHtE RELHE KREEE
BETT BET B¥Tr BSTr BT BYTx
At 31 March 2024 7% 2024 £ 3 A 31 H 270,748 121,537 140,145 7632 540,062 515,553
Less: non-current portion (257,328)
o IERBE D
Current portion REIE8 5 258,225
At 31 March 2023 72 2023 £ 3 H 31 H 356,516 192,022 142,427 7468 698,433 673,032
Less: non-current portion (329,664)
o IERBER D
Current portion ;R Eh 25 343,368
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7
(b)

130

Leases (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income
and expenditure

The consolidated statement of income and expenditure shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

B RE R AR FEE

(b) EHRENZEERERNIE

frENCUEER 2 ZHERERED T :

The Group 8

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2024F EZE2023F
3A31ALEE 3A31AILEFE
BET T BT T

Depreciation T8 338,335 293,779

Expenses relating to short-term leases (included in other operating 79,434 258,270

expenses)

EETH SRR X (B A S ER T A)

Finance costs 875 & 19,319 10,038
Total cash outflow for leases for the financial year ended 31 March HE-_Z-_WF=A=+—H1zH
2024 was HK$445,347,000 (2023: HK$653,624,000). W F F HEZRERHBEERE

# 445347000 L (Z T == B

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The placements with the Exchange Fund are measured as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”. The valuation technique and
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements
are the discounted cash flow and discount rate respectively. The
placements are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Their fair values are
determined with reference to the estimated rates of investment return
for future years.

The interest on the placements is at a fixed rate determined annually
in January and payable annually in arrears on 31 December. Currently,
the rate of return is calculated on the basis of the average annual rate
of return on certain investment portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the
past six years or the average annual yield of three-year Government
Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of zero percent),
whichever is the higher. This rate of return has been fixed at 3.7% per
annum for both January to December 2023 and January to December
2024. The interest earned but not yet withdrawn by HA would continue
to accrue interest at the same rate payable for the principal amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Placements with the Exchange Fund (Continued)

The placements with the Exchange Fund are analysed as follows:

B REERAR B EE

8 NEELER @)
SNEESERAFMT -

The Group and HA SEIREBEF

Custodian for

PPP Fund and PPP

Samaritan Fund Endowment Fund HLISS Fund
[Notes 8(a) and 17] [Notes 8(b), 21(b) and 23] [Notes 8(c) and 16]
ERBENEES DREBERER BEEXRAS 2
HEREA DREREBRES STEES Total
[H1at 8(a) B 17] [HE8(b), 21(b) R 23] [H15E 8(c) R 16] Mt
At31March At31March At31March  At31March At31March  At31March  At31March At31March
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%F 20235 20245 20235 2024F 20234 20245 20235
3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31A 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31R8
BETT AT BETT BETR BT T BETT E¥TT  EBE¥%Tn
Principal amount A< 5,600,000 5,600,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 18,600,000 20,600,000
Interest earned but 220,975 - 682,262 657234 - 794,191 903,237 1,451,425
not withdrawn at
the reporting date
EHREAMEERE
FREREF BN
Accrued interest 53,550 64,866 98,271 98,050 53,755 52,862 205,576 215,778
FEEHRILE
5,874,525 5,664,866 10,780,533 10,755,284 3,053,755 5,847,053 19,708,813 22,267,203
Less: non-current - (5600,000) (10,000,000) (10,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (13,000,000)(18,600,000)
portion
R FEMENER S
Current portion 5,874,525 64,866 780,533 755,284 53,755 2,847,053 6,708,813 3,667,203

mEED
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8
(a)

(b)

132

Placements with the Exchange Fund (Continued)
Custodian for Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, HA withdrew
the principal of HK$400,000,000 together with the interest of
HK$1,126,915,000 from the placement with the Exchange Fund for
meeting the cash outflows of the Samaritan Fund in future years. Since
the placement with Exchange Fund will be matured on 8 November
2024, the remaining principal of HK$5,600,000,000 and interest
earned / accrued of HK$274,525,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$64,866,000) were classified as current assets.

PPP Fund and PPP Endowment Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, HA withdrew the
interest of HK$362,000,000 (2023: HK$710,000,000) from the
placement with the Exchange Fund to support the operation of the
PPP programmes. In addition, as agreed with HKMA, HA renewed
the placement of HK$10,000,000,000 with the Exchange Fund
for another six years upon maturity on 12 July 2022. Subject to the
approval from the appropriate authority, HA may exercise an option of
up to two principal withdrawals during the periods from 1 April 2024
to 31 March 2025 and 1 April 2026 to 31 March 2027 (not exceeding
HK$2,000,000,000 in aggregate) to address the potential funding
needs.

HLISS Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, HA withdrew
the principal of HK$2,000,000,000 together with the interest of
HK$1,008,576,000 from the placement with the Exchange Fund in
order to meet the funding requirements for Enhanced HLISS in future
years.
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8
(a)

(b)

(c)

HEEEFR (4
ERBMBHNTESHREA
RBE-_F-_=F=A=+—HIEZ
BMBEE BERNRIELSEHRAE

HY 7 % 400,000,000 JT HY AN & 3 7] 5 B8
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S

REE-_Z-_ME=A=+—HIE2FHK
FE - @fé%ﬁééﬂﬂ%irmﬂtﬂﬁﬂm
751 362,000,000 T(ZZE - =4 : mz
710,000,000 7T) * fEAR MH{M’E#%\J%
EZFH o AN IRIBFEERESE BT
#% 0 AEUE10,000,000,000 TTHITER
Eﬁéfgiiitﬂ-i—:ﬁiljﬁﬂ%\‘%ﬁﬁ%
9I\E%ﬁ C BHARE o SRR E R A
SEMERIETTERERE E-F=
m&mﬂ Ei_7_£¢ ﬁ +—8
N—EB-_RNENA-BE-_ZT_+5=A
== EI%IHXEE*%W/AZKJE(%@%’ETEL

75 2,000,000,000 7T) © ABREBER
BoTF -
BESRFSEANBES

REBEE-_ZT_WNF=-_A=+—HIlzH
BFEE  BEREIEEZSTRP RN
78 % 2,000,000,000 T H) A& R B
1,008,576,000 TTEYAI 2 - INERNETE
EEFGIEIRARFEENESHE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 Fixed income instruments

The fixed income instruments substantially represent Hong Kong
dollar certificates of deposits and bonds with maturity periods within
five years from the date of purchase. The investment yields at the
reporting date were between 1.59% and 5.30% (2023: between
0.95% and 5.04%).

At 31 March 2024, the fixed income instruments held by the Group
and HA are as follows:

B REERAR FRE

9 EEAETH

BEABTAFTERHBEHNETRSF
NEINBTTERBRES  EREHL
BEWENF159% E5.30% 2 ZZE=
=F : T 0.95% £5.04% 2 ) °

RIZE-NFE=A=1+—H £SEIEER
FEMBETEABRITANT :

The Groupand HA KB R EER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

202453 A31H 2023%3H31H

BET T BT

Maturing within one year — A% £f 1,969,015 883,766
Maturing between one and five years —Z R F R F|HA 134,700 496,115
2,103,715 1,379,881

The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The
credit quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while the
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value
of these assets as stated in note 3(b)(ii). The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

File@MEEWREBHIRME @ Ek
BEMEEEXFEENHE () - RS
H ' & RAMEERBZKEE 3(b) i) FrylE
LBENARBE - EEI AFH T
R RIEIIR o
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10

11
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Inventories

B RE R AR FEE

10 &

The Group and HA £EE R BER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HKS$'000
2024%3A31H 202343 H31H
BET T BT
Drugs 24 1,934,956 3,349,910
Medical consumables E& & H & 1,458,975 1,752,712
General consumables — % E @ 37,906 37,605
3,431,837 5,140,227
The carrying value of inventories has been adjusted to its net RBEZFZ (bﬁiﬂ E+**E| Z
realisable value by HK$397,931,000 (2023: HK$506,247,000) during BF T’$§H@$Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ§: BE
the financial year ended 31 March 2024. % 397,931,000 75(: —=FAK
506,247,000 7T ) & H AT & IR % 1E -
Loans receivable 11 BEWRER
Enhanced HLISS was launched in late December 2022. Under ETEXEFEN _TE-_—F+-AK
Enhanced HLISS, downpayment assistance in the form of a staff HH - FHFET  EERZALERK
loan with interest subsidy provided by HA will be offered to eligible EEREEHEY  UBTERKFEZE
employees to assist their ownership of a residential property for self- B  BBEEREAEYE  ZE

occupancy so that employees will effectively be paying interest on the
staff loan at a preferential interest rate. The repayment period of the
staff loan is the shorter of the bank mortgage loan and employee's
benefits entitlement.

Loans receivable as at 31 March 2024 of HK$118,425,000 (2023: Nil)
is neither past due nor impaired. According to the terms and conditions
of the scheme, staff loans are secured by second legal charge or
mortgage or equitable mortgage and that monthly repayment of staff
loans are deducted from the employees’ wages. In order to transfer out
the credit risk and provide liquidity to cater for more loan applications
from staff, HA has engaged Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
(“HKMC") as the loan purchasing institution under which staff loans
have been sold to HKMC on a quarterly basis from October 2023
onwards. On this basis, the loans receivable is classified as current
assets and considered to be fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Accounts receivable

MR
12 FEUWIIR X

The Group and HA £EE R BER

At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3A31H 202393 A 318

BT BT
Bills receivable [note 12(a)] FEUXIR EE [R5 12(a)] 433,730 453611
Accrued income [note 12(b)] FEETUA [FIFE 12(b)] 22,526 50,838

456,256 504,449
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses [notes 12(c) and 12(d)] (62,849) (61,140)
W TEEAE B RS (M 12(c) & 12(d)]

393,407 443,309

(@) Ageing analysis of bills receivable is set out below:

(a) EUIRENREDIITOT :

The Groupand HA SE R EER

At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

2024%3A31H 2023F3H31H

BT T BT TT

Within 30 days 30 H A 302,238 283,176
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 55,268 72,295
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 14,531 17,455
Over 90 days #2838 90 H 61,693 80,685
433,730 453,611

The Group's policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Patients attending outpatient and Accident and Emergency
services are required to pay fees before services are performed.

Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay
deposit on admission to hospital.

Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final bills
are sent if the outstanding amounts have not been settled on
discharge.

Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical
fees and charges for medical services provided on or after 1
July 2007. The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of the
outstanding fees past due for 60 days from issuance of the bills,
subject to a maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each bill. An
additional 10% of the outstanding fees are imposed if the bills
remain outstanding 90 days from issuance of the bills, subject to
a maximum additional charge of HK$10,000 for each bill.

Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be
considered for waiver of fees charged.
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SEARBARENEERANT

(i)

(it

(i

(iv

&

RABIPI2 2 B RBAE ERD AR
RLRRBNER -

RERBARFEFEEBALARKA
BRI -

Bz @RERBAZHPHIRE o &
m AR RN R RER
Bhrah RRIREAA -

R_TTLFLA— B2 RATIEM
MEEIRY  ARRXNERASH
1T E - IR EE 1% 60 BADAIF
BER & 3IMURR 5% 1ERTTIR
% SEKRELRAER 10007
NTENREEZE 1R 00 RNABHER -
A& S IMIR TR 10% 1EBITHRE -
BIARE FRARE 10,000 7T °

5 182 B4 R 7O R SRIR (8 5115 50 SR EX

ERTE) c ARERENBA - £H
SEETUNERRR
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Accounts receivable (Continued)

An ageing analysis of bills receivables that are past due but not
impaired is as follows:

B RE R AR FEE

12 EWRIRFR (4
B HAE )2 5 R (B A e MUK 28 A IR e 20 AT 40

T

The Group and HA B REER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3H31H 202393 H31H
BT T BT T

Past due by %55 :
Within 30 days 30 HA 253,687 231,597
Between 31 and 60 days 31 = 60 H 36,207 54,781
Between 61 and 90 days 61 & 90 H 3,711 7,562
Over 90 days #2i@ 90 H 6,163 30,123
299,768 324,063

Bills receivables that are past due but not impaired include outstanding
debts to be settled by Government departments, charitable
organisations or other institutions for whom the credit risk associated
with these receivables is relatively low. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Accrued income for hospital fees and charges represent contract
assets, which are recognised when the Group has provided services
before the debtors pay consideration or before payment is due.

At 31 March 2024, bills receivable of HK$133,962,000 (2023:
HK$129,548,000) were impaired by HK$62,849,000 (2023:
HK$61,140,000). The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

BEHELBRERN EWIRE SRR
Pl ZBEE R EMREBREENRR
ELERWIRTOS R EERBRAHE RE -
SENRFFA EAEA R IEER -

Bl BNRTUABENEE  E5M
EEBASNRERE DR RS

BEFRER -

RNRZ—ZEE WM iEHEWL*EI';‘%S
#£ 133,962,000 (:2: F B
129,548,000 7T ) A9 fE Y iR B8 Rk (B 8
# 62,849,000 T::¢ 7

=
61,140,000 7T) ° 35 LER
Wran T

e TR B8 B

The Group and HA KB R EBER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

2024%3A31H 20233 H31H

BT T BB T

Within 30 days 30 HA 48,551 51,579
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 19,061 17,514
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 10,820 9,893
Over 90 days #2838 90 H 55,530 50,562
133,962 129,548
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12 Accounts receivable (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for expected credit loss of bills receivable
are as follows:

B R R R M EE
12 FEURIR R (40)

MR B TR E B R BB E BN T

The Group and HA KB R EBER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

B E2024%F HZE20234F

3A31ALEE 3A3BELEE

BT T BT IT

At the beginning of the year FA 4] 61,140 70,325
Additional provision 12 48,203 29,368
Uncollectible amounts written off 5F #5#9 7 Yg [0 7058 (46,494) (38,553)
At the end of the year IREF#£% 62,849 61,140

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

ERER - RAWEERR R L EKR
RHREE - KEAKRFTE T EA R
TR -

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide expected credit d) SBEER (BAEPBHREER) F99H
losses as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime expected ERZ2F)EHERBREEAE - &
credit losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. RIEWRIBR R EFERNTEIE
To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable have been Ko BRETEEHEREX  BRIRREIR
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past BERMNEERREFEMaIREDA -
due. The gross and net carrying amounts of the accounts receivable JE USR R A O TRD AR (B AN IR T B I B (AT
and the lifetime expected credit losses analysis are as follows: BHNTEHRERBESTAOT -
The Group and HA B R EER
Weighted
Lifetime Average
Expected Lifetime
Gross Credit Loss Net Expected
Carrying HK$'000 Carrying Credit Loss
Amount BEFE Amount Rate
HK$'000 HAR TR HK$'000 hnEF 4
MREAAE EVEE-FS IR EFE EREA
BT BT T BT BRE
At 31 March 2024 7 2024 & 3 A 31 B
Within 6 months 6 {& A A 431,465 (41,835) 389,630 10%
Between 6 and 12 months 6 & 12 & A 14,199 (11,355) 2,844 80%
Over 12 months @& 12 1& A 10,592 (9,659) 933 91%
456,256 (62,849) 393,407
At 31 March 2023 * 2023 & 3 A 31 H
Within 6 months 6 {& A A 455,100 (42,867) 412,233 9%
Between 6 and 12 months 6 = 12 & A 13,727 (8,143) 5,584 59%
Over 12 months @& 12 & A 35,622 (10,130) 25,492 28%
504,449 (61,140) 443,309

The lifetime expected credit loss balances disclosed above include
HK$38,781,000 (2023: HK$33,306,000) which were related to
receivables individually determined to be impaired. These mainly
related to non-eligible persons, the recoverability of which are
considered to be low after taking all possible debt recovery actions.
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P ENEEFEERNTERERELE
fA B FEB 15 38,781,000 T (Z B =4 :
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(b)

138

Other receivables

R S R 2R B
13 AR

The Groupand HA £BE R BER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

2024%3H31H 202393 H31H

BET T BT T

Donations receivable B 47,722 29,569

Interest receivable & FIE 589,922 421,991

Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund of 692,501 122,190

expenditure incurred on capital projects [note 13(a)]

B TESGREEARTIZIEB PSS MEWGRIE [MI:E 13(a)]

Others EAth 274,718 238,000

1,604,863 811,750

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The balances
mainly represent outstanding debts to be settled by Government
departments, charitable organisations or other institutions for whom
the credit risk associated with these receivables is relatively low. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value
of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

HiEPIRF Y EREEE  SHRI2E
BRI - BREE R KM EEREER
FYRGK LR IR BUS & V1S B LB AR
HREK EREENERANEERRE L
MR BFRWFIRN N ABE - REW AR
B AR EEA -

Movements in the balance with the Government for funding the (a) BUNSLEARTIZIAB TS S Bk &
expenditure incurred on capital projects are as follows: T
The Group and HA EEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE20245F HZE2023F
3A31ALEE 3A31BILFE
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year F 4] 122,190 (628,846)
Government funding received on capital projects (5,879,522) (4,796,699)
PEARTI2IE B BRI ERATRE K
Amount incurred on capital projects 7K Ti238 B Fr S 2B 6,449,833 5,547,735
At the end of the year FAF#& 692,501 122,190
Movements in the contributions from the governing bodies of ex- (b) RifEBIERLE A EREARTIZIEE A&

subvented hospitals for capital projects are as follows:

RIREBIT

The Group and HA B R EBER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ2024F EHZ=2023%F

3A31ALLFE 3A3LALFE

BT T BETT

At the beginning of the year R #] - -

Contributions received from the governing bodies of ex-subvented (187,517) (28,500)

hospitals on capital projects

PR AT # Bh B8 B B R I L B R TR 1A B A B FUIE

Amount incurred on capital projects 278 T2 B FT #3208 187,517 28,500

At the end of the year R4
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14 Deposits and prepayments

B REERAR B EE

14 REeRFBENFRIE

The Group £F
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3H31H 20233 H31H
BT T BT T
Utility and other deposits A S5 & Hibiz & 65,194 60,015
Prepayments to Government departments [A)IEXfF 2B 978 (- 49 58 5,468 4,103
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 451,629 357,860
REAHNEAMIENFIE
522,291 421,978
HA BER
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
2024F3A31H 20233 H31H
BETT BT
Utility and other deposits A FAEE % & H i s 65,064 59,891
Prepayments to Government departments [A) BT 48PS T8~ RO FE 5,468 4,103
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 451,629 357,860
FREALNMEAMIENFIE
522,161 421,854
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16
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Cash and bank balances

B REERAR B RE

15

BERRITEER

The Groupand HA £EREER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

2024F3A31H 2023%3H31H

BT T BT

Cash at bank and in hand $R17F X R FHFIRE 2,673,754 919,526

Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 5,790,618 1,187,583
JRPREIE A TR = 8 A R IRTTE K

Cash and cash equivalents 384 N IR & Z1(E 8,464,372 2,107,109

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 43,428,235 39,487,695

JRIRENHA B 838 =18 A B R TR
51,892,607 41,594,804

The cash and bank balances included amounts designated for HLISS
and Enhanced HLISS, Minor Works Projects Fund and PPP Fund of
HK$8,371,102,000(2023:HK$4,000,663,000), HK$624,285,000 (2023:
HK$2,471,970,000) and HK$194,102,000 (2023: HK$438,349,000)
respectively. The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits
is between 2.60% and 4.78% (2023: 2.60% and 4.70%). These deposits
have an average maturity of 64 days (2023: 55 days).

Designated fund - HLISS

The Group offers eligible employees under HLISS (“the original
scheme”) an interest subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence
in Hong Kong. The original scheme is funded by HA through the
recurrent subvention from the Government. With the implementation
of Enhanced HLISS in late December 2022 (as set out in note 21(c)),
the designated fund previously set aside for the original scheme
will be used to meet the funding requirements for Enhanced HLISS
applications in future years.

As agreed with HKMA, HK$5,000,000,000 has been placed with the
Exchange Fund since 19 August 2019 for a period of six years. As
stated in note 8(c), HA withdrew the principal of HK$2,000,000,000
from the placement during the financial year ended 31 March 2024.
The remaining fund balance, including the amount withdrawn from the
placement with the Exchange Fund, is maintained in designated bank
accounts which was included under cash and bank balances.
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17 Balance with Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government
injected HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the
Samaritan Fund, which was established in 1950 by resolution of the
Legislative Council for the purpose of providing financial assistance to
needy patients. As instructed by the Government, HK$4,000,000,000
was vested immediately in the Samaritan Fund. The balance of
HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately required by the Samaritan Fund
was placed with the Exchange Fund since 8 November 2012 by way
of a credit facility entered into between HA and HKMA for a fixed
period of six years. As agreed with HKMA, HA renewed the principal
amount of HK$6,000,000,000 for another six years at its maturity
on 8 November 2018. During the financial year ended 31 March
2023, HA returned principal of HK$400,000,000 and interest of
HK$1,126,915,000 withdrawn from the placement with the Exchange
Fund to the Samaritan Fund.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the accrued
interest as at 31 March 2024 was recorded together with the principal
amount as balance with Samaritan Fund, which is unsecured, interest
free and denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Since the remaining
principal of HK$5,600,000,000 and interest earned / accrued will be
returned to the Samaritan Fund upon maturity of placement with the
Exchange Fund on 8 November 2024, the balance with Samaritan
Fund as at 31 March 2024 was classified as current liabilities as shown
below:

MR
17 BRI TE SR

BISFEEESR —NLAZTSFEILER
REKY BRNRRAEEEMNR ARG
BB -MEBE_E—=5=A=+—8
EZHREE BRAFBEHEIBEMNDBEES
S¥ & 10,000,000,000 7T A T H
EcER - REBRFER AEBE
# 4,000,000,000 7T B 20 78 B B 4% A
24 MHETIHEABETENBE
6,000,000,000 T ' R E B E B @&
CERMFIMNEELZHE AT ——F
+—ANBREANEES  FHETEA
NE-REBEERHSERN S %E
7% 6,000,000,000 T AS RN =T —
NE+—ANBRHEEFRINEES
ABHRRNE - RBEE_T-_=F=A=1+—
AW REE BERERINEES
R IREUEH 400,000,000 THIAS
R B# 1 126,915,000 THIN BEET
HOBEHDRES -

MR BERERHEBMEESHREA R
HINEE ST AR ERBE_T_H4F
= A=t B8RS EFIERIEH R
EER S FIRIEMR RS WA
TCAEN - ARE K 5,600,000,000 JTHY
FIAR & ER P/ AN SRR
F+—ANBNEESHNERI PR EE
THROSF RS N _WF=A=+—
AV IS B AR YRR B B E N
T

The Group and HA £E R BER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HKS$'000

2024%3H31H 202393 A31H

BET T BT

Principal amount A& 5,600,000 5,600,000

Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 220,975 -
s TR B IR R B A

Accrued interest fEZH7I &, 53,550 64,866

5,874,525 5,664,866

Less: non-current portion J& : 3E/REE 5 - (5,600,000)

Current portion ;R Eh2f 5 5,874,525 64,866
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18 Creditors and accrued charges

B RE R AR FEE

18 EREARENER

The Group £E
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HKS$'000
2024%3A31H 202343 A31H
BYT T BETT
Trade payables [note 18(a)] JE{TE SR [Fi7E 18(a)] 2,243,339 1,482,360
Accrued charges and other payables [note 18(b)] 10,691,193 9,854,412
FERTE A R EAIRER (M5 18(b)]
Current account with the Government [note 18(c)] 27,478,409 22,089,081
BT 2 EERTIRE [FM15E 18(c)]
40,412,941 33,425,853

HA BER
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HKs$'000 HK$'000
2024F3H31H 2023F3H31H
BET T BT
Trade payables [note 18(a)] FEFTE SR [MizF 18(a)] 2,243,256 1,482,360
Accrued charges and other payables [note 18(b)] 10,642,431 9,798,977
FERTE A R E AR [T 5E 18(b)]
Current account with the Government [note 18(c)] 27,478,409 22,089,081
BRI 2 IR SRR B (B3 18(0)]
Current account with a subsidiary 48,721 55,317
SRR BB < IR REIR B
40,412,817 33,425,735

(@) An ageing analysis of trade payables is set out below:

(a) ENEZIRFEORESTNAT :

The Group 8
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3A31H 2023F3H31H
BT T BT
Within 30 days 30 HiA 2,065,977 1,428,772
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 66,589 38,856
Between 61 and 90 days 61 & 90 H 26,432 7,463
Over 90 days #83® 90 H 84,341 7,269
2,243,339 1,482,360

HAEBER
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3A31H 20239F3A31H
BT T BT
Within 30 days 30 HiA 2,065,894 1,428,772
Between 31 and 60 days 31 = 60 H 66,589 38,856
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 26,432 7,463
Over 90 days #2i@ 90 H 84,341 7,269
2,243,256 1,482,360

—EoEE=A=+—HNEMNE SRR

All trade payables as at 31 March 2024 are expected to be settled ;
JER—EF AT -

within one year.
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18

(b)

19

Creditors and accrued charges (Continued)

MR
18 EEARENER @

Accrued charges and other payables of the Group and HA b) EEREERNENERREMIEREIE
included accrual for annual leave of HK$2,561,115000 (2023: R BRI E A 2,561,115,000 T (=F
HK$2,741,626,000) and contract gratuity accrual of HK$3,034,344,000 —=%F : B¥2741,626,0007T) * LAKIE
(2023: HK$2,676,251,000). EHE #9BN & S 3,034,344,000 T(ZF =
=1 : %% 2676,251,000 7T) °
The balance mainly included Government funding that was already (c) HerEZERIEEWEIWREEBITH R
received and set aside for designated programmes or specific items for SR E‘I‘gﬂjsz-irilg B #R R EAR
future uses as agreed with the Government. The unutilised balances BSER - RZZEZME=A=+—HK
as at 31 March 2024 were as follows: REVRLE ﬁ%ﬂlﬂ—
- HK$6,468,000,000 for meeting the funding requirements of future — ,%*lﬁ 6,468,000,000 T(ZE==%:
new / enhanced initiatives (2023: HK$3,468,000,000); 75 ¥ 3,468,000,000 7T) B HE R
%ﬁi/)}ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁa@ﬁﬁ%
- HK$6,139,000,000 for medical and IT equipment replacement and — A% 6,139,000,000 L (—E = =4
maintenance (2023: HK$3,146,000,000); 75 # 3,146,000,000 7)) ' AEEBE R
BRHREERNRE 2R
- HK$3,000,000,000 for commissioning of new and re-developed — % 3,000,000,000 (===
hospitals (2023: HK$1,000,000,000); and ,%ﬁ% 1,000,000,000 70) BIEE#E M RX
el kR EER: &
- HK$2,000,000,000 for eHealth related initiatives (2023: — /%eﬁ%‘ 2,000,000,000 sT(ZE==4F:
HK$2,000,000,000). 751 2,000,000,000 Jo) AR S5 2 5z
*HE@IEE o
Deposits received 19 2WizE
The Groupand HA B R BES
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3A31H 20233 H31H
BETT BT
Patient deposits [note 19(a)] & AL & [Fi5E 19(a)] 45,572 39,302
Other deposits [note 19(b)] Eftize [Fi7E 19(b)] 611,499 576,773
657,071 616,075
Patient deposits represent contract liabilities and mainly consist of (a) MAREBRENEE F2REFANL
deposits received from private patients and non-eligible persons on %Hlﬁ%r/\&#ﬁ B AT ABTRFTZ
admission to hospital services. The amounts are recognised before the RS - B B RCIRLE 5 B4R {4 Ak 155 Al A
Group provides services. Except for the amounts overpaid which will ReBRTERELMANSNTIE - UKk
be refunded to patients and deposits for privately purchased medical BEBFEAHNLRS  2EEHRIREN
items, the full balance is recognised as income in the statement of FE2(d) B EETBER N T — A BEFEE R
income and expenditure in the next financial year according to the THERPERBEA °
accounting policy set out in note 2(d).
Other deposits mainly consist of deposits from contractors which are (b) EMiZeFZeEAMWEIRSE - (ERED

held as securities for due performance of the contractors’ warranties,
undertaking and obligations under contracts.
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20 Death and disability liabilities

144

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to death
and disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through the recurrent
subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

B RE R AR FEE

20 AT REBRBHNELE
RIEEMGEE  BERNEETTART
RASEBFURE o 5t Bleh B BB B
IO HIERB T IR -

BEBBR TAMRHENT -

The Groupand HA KB R EER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
2024%3A31H 2023%F3H31H
BT T BT
Present value of funded obligations ;T & & {E#IIRE 299,223 233,496
Fair value of plan assets T 2| E ERNRAAEE (12,123) (42,387)
287,100 191,109
The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as follows: AEREZREZHET

The Group and HA £EE R EBER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HKs'000

B E2024%5 #H Z=2023F

3A31HILLEE 3A3IBLEEE

BET T BT

At the beginning of the year 4] 233,496 273,022
Current service cost B1TARF X 38,856 43,771
Interest cost F| 2 F 7,870 5,785
Benefits paid B 15/ 1&Fl| (10,949) (10,073)
Remeasurement of disability liability 8BNS TEFHE 4,850 (27,738)
Remeasurement of death liability SLT-@ M B X EFH5H = 25,100 (61,271)
At the end of the year REF 4K 299,223 233,496
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20 Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

B REERAR B EE

20 AT RERENETE @
HEEEMARBESHNT -

The Group and HA SEREER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ2024F B ZE2023F

3A3LHILEE 3A3IBLLEFE

BT T BT

At the beginning of the year FAF 4] 42,387 26,433

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) (31,606) 16,274
FFEIEENRAR(TEREMEHA)

Employer contributions & T #t 5k 12,291 9,753

Benefits paid B 15 4&F| (10,949) (10,073)

At the end of the year IRREF#&R 12,123 42,387

The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy and the
current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July 2024. The fair
value of plan assets was estimated based on the present value of the
expected death benefits covered by the policy period from 1 April 2024
up to 31 July 2024.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income and
expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
have been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation and are as
follows:

EBEERABERASRERAREEREST
BFREE - BT RBEEWEE T —
WEEA=1+—H - stEEENAAEE
BEE-—ZE_NFNA—HE - _N4F
tA=F+—HIEMREFBIHARN 2 B
TRANIREEGE -

TIRBRBEEERERHL AR KA
BREGEEEEWER T AR ERER |

The Groupand HA B R EER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

HZE2024%F EHZE2023%F

3A31HILEE  3H3IHLEE

BT BB T T

Current service cost 3R 1TARFE R 52 38,856 43,771

Interest cost 8% 7,870 5,785

Remeasurement of disability liability S5 R B EE#H 1 & 4,850 (27,738)

Total, included in staff costs [note 25] 51,576 21,818
BEH(BBEE IAA) M3 25]

Remeasurement of death liability St T-t@ M & (T EFH = 25,100 (51,271)

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) 31,606 (16,274)
FFEIEENFR(PBEREMEMA)

Total, included in other comprehensive income 56,706 (67,545)

et (BREEMEEKEAN)
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20 Death and disability liabilities (Continued) 20 AT RERBANEE @)
Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as BEABERANEZERERRET ¢
follows:

The Groupand HA KB R EBER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HE2024F EZE2023F
3A3IALEE 3A31HLIEFE
% %
Discount rate 8538 % 3.70 3.60
Assumed rate of future salary increases 2% 7k 2k & & 1 18 2.50 2.50
The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded TODHTRRIEAT X BIRERRAL
obligations as at 31 March 2024 would have increased / (decreased) as g8 —T_m F=A=+—HFEE
aresult of the following changes in the principal actuarial assumptions: ERERIE M /O -
The Groupand HA KB R EBER
Increase in Decrease in
50 basis points 50 basis points
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEFA 50 BF  FIXRFE 0T
BET T BB
Discount rate B35 % (12,053) 13,128
Assumed rate of future salary increases fBa% 7 5 3 & 12 1 14,071 (12,979)
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21 Deferred income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 RN R

B REERAR B EE

The Group and HA S BIREBE R/

Designated Minor Works

donation Projects Enhanced
fund Fund PPP Fund HLISS
[Note 2(e)] [Note 21(a)] [Note 21(b)] [Note 21(c)]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERE NRTRR AFE ETIE# Total
2 HAES WIEES BEX5tE  HK$'000
[t 2(e)] [H1EE 21(a)] [BYEE 21(b)] [HYEE 21(c)] st
BT T BT BT T BT BT
At1 April2022 X 2022 4 A1 H 713,442 4,647,422 1,033,537 - 6,394,401
Additions during the year & & il 253,592 - 11,301 - 264,893
Interest earned FTEF S - 71,993 548,685 - 620,678
Transfers to deferred income - capital - (17,549) - - (17,549)
subventions and capital donations
HERTIRE WG — BRI R ERIEH
Transfers to consolidated statement of (269,482) (2,422,370) (530,392) - (3,222,244)
income and expenditure
ERTGEREEER
Reclassifications E #7548 - - - 4687904 4,687,904
At 31 March 2023 /2 2023 £ 3 A 31 H 697,552 2,279,496 1,063,131 4,687,904 8,728,083
Additions during the year & A& N 148,904 - 14,726 1,340,401 1,504,031
Interest earned FTEFIE - 73,451 409,078 448,661 931,190
Transfers to deferred income - capital - (32,753) - (4,723) (37,476)
subventions and capital donations
ERTRT WS — BRI RE KRB
Transfers to consolidated statement of (93,585)  (2,174,621) (656,215) (7,515) (2,931,936)
income and expenditure
HRATHREWEEE
At 31 March 2024 70 2024 % 3 A 31 H 752,871 145,573 830,720 6,464,728 8,193,892
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21
(a)

(b)

(c)

148

Deferred income (Continued)
Minor Works Projects Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM) to HA
for minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in public
hospitals and clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the annual block
funding allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund - Improvement
Works Block Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and covers minor works projects
under five planned programmes, with costing not more than HK$75
million for each individual item. The five programmes are facility
rejuvenation programme, capacity enhancement programme, safe
engineering programme, universal accessibility programme and
regular maintenance / minor works and preparatory works for major
capital works projects. The approved grant, together with the related
investment income, will be fully used to meet the costs of the minor
works projects in the coming 10 years or so starting from April 2014.
HA will seek prior approval from the Government for each individual
item of expenditure to be funded by the one-off grant.

PPP Fund

The Government allocated to HA a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 on 31
March 2016 as an endowment fund (note 23) to generate investment
returns for regularising and enhancing ongoing clinical PPP
programmes, as well as developing new clinical PPP programmes
in future. HA can make use of the investment returns together with
the remaining balance of the one-off designated funding provided
previously to support the ongoing operation of the PPP programmes
commencing in April 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Government
provided recurrent subvention of HK$14,726,000 (2023:
HK$11,301,000) to HA for pay adjustment of staff deployed on
PPP programmes. The subvention was transferred to the PPP Fund
and was recognised in the deferred income — PPP Fund when the
subvention was received.

Enhanced HLISS

The HA Board approved in March 2020 to designate the Government
funding contributed for HLISS and related investment income, after
meeting the expenditure for the original scheme, for Enhanced
HLISS from the financial year ended 31 March 2021 onwards.
Having considered that the HA Board approved in June 2022
the introduction of Enhanced HLISS which was launched in late
December 2022 and the designated funding would be fully allocated
for meeting the cash outflow for staff loan remittance and interest
subsidy payments to HKMC in 2023/24 and subsequent years, total
funds set aside for Enhanced HLISS of HK$4,687,904,000 as at
31 March 2023 was reclassified as deferred income from current
account with the Government under creditors and accrued charges.
The accounting policy for Government funding designated for
Enhanced HLISS and related investment income is set out in note

2(q)(iv).
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21
(a)

(b)

(c)

FEEW S (&)
NUTRIEBES

RBEE-_ZE—MNME=/A=+—H
W HEER  BRIFE BB
13,000,000,000 7t (% B 8083MMIE )
BER - UHESNRTREER @ ®E
DY BN FTRIRERE - 52— X
MRAEREEFEREATRERFEREES
— & TRER R (5 B 8100MX )
YIRAERTEAEETTELRAE
#7500 8T/ RN E TR - AEEE
BIERBIEEAE - REERFE - &
2HEFTE - MRAABEBITEE - UL
MERME/ N RIRETEIRTEN
TEF T F - BB FGER A BIRERAR
BAS B - —NFE AR KL+ 4
NI TIRIBERAMY - BE RN A%
S REER AT ER S E B BBk
FRHEAE o

DLEHERES

RIZE—RF=ZA=1t—8  BARBER
#5175 10,000,000,000 JT& 7 B AR E
F (PMFE23)  MAMERELRAES
BEMBCRBEEITORARRLE BIE
2 URERRETHNGS - BERA
MARERR - BRI A4 T —X
HIEBRH LR FEEER TN
FVARETORILE B IERTE -

\_J,d

REE-_Z-_ME=A=1+—HIHNEHK
FE BITAEE B ER14,726,0007T
(ZE-=4 : #%11,301,000 7T) & F 1t
B - RIEATLE BERT B8 B A BN 3
B o SRR EIRERTE AL ERIE
& WHERBBELERZ — AFLERIEE

F e

ETEXEMNTE

BERAEN_ZE-_TE= AEREE
—E-—FZA=+—HIENPRFE
B BRTARBEERF S ZIE
B BT TR S MBI B WA (TE S 502
BRETEIMAY % ) NARE TEXE G
2 - ERNEBETEXEFEN T _—F
NAEEERASHER IR T -
FH-—ARKEL > MEERESE2HA
RE—ZS-_=Z/"NNFEREEEFEEE
TEHRERKMAIZBESRN R AT EE
MBS TH HE-_ZT-_=F=A=
+—HAETEXERTEERAEEK
4,687,904,000 TME LR - EHRERE
AKX ERE TR EBUN 2 R RERE -
EFOBRABEERE -FETHANHEITET
BEXEFGIEINBITER KA BIRERA
SETECREHIEE 2(q)(iv) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 Deferred income - capital subventions and

capital donations B g
The Group £E
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(q)] [Note 2(e)]
HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
B BEXRBE HK$'000
[#15E 2(q)] [HIEE 2(e)] e
BT T BET T BT
At1April2022 7% 2022 4 H1 H 7,104,781 1,127,302 8,232,083
Additions during the year 4 A1 1 2,406,602 121,630 2,528,232
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 17,549 - 17,549
HBHE/\VUTRBEEES
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (1,585,038) (155,956) (1,740,994)
expenditure
ERAGE WS EER
At 31 March 2023 7 2023 % 3 A 31 B 7,943,894 1,092,976 9,036,870
Additions during the year 4 A1 N 2,532,463 95,707 2,628,170
Transfers from Enhanced HLISS 4,723 - 4,723
ERARBETEXEFE
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 32,753 - 32,753
BHE/\VUTREEES
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (1,581,463) (152,762) (1,734,225)
expenditure
ERAGE WS EER
At 31 March 2024 72 2024 £ 3 H 31 H 8,932,370 1,035,921 9,968,291
HABER
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(q)] [Note 2(e)]
HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
EXRHEE BEXEE HK$'000
[ 2(q)] [ 2(e)] A=t
BT T BT T BT T
At1April2022 R 2022 4 H1H 7,093,464 1,127,302 8,220,766
Additions during the year A3 1 2,399,658 121,630 2,521,288
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 17,549 - 17,549
ERe/ N ATREEEES
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure (1,576,906) (155,956) (1,732,862)
ERATWEEE
At 31 March 2023 7 2023 4 3 A 31 B 7,933,765 1,092,976 9,026,741
Additions during the year % A& 2,523,387 95,707 2,619,094
Transfers from Enhanced HLISS 4,723 - 4,723
ERAEETEXE NS
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 32,753 - 32,753
R/ ATEEEES
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure (1,576,457) (152,762) (1,729,219)
ERTKEEER
At 31 March 2024 72 2024 £ 3 A 31 A 8,918,171 1,035,921 9,954,092
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B RE R AR FEE

Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund 23 AAEREEERES
As approved by the Government, the endowment fund of B EBERB-_S—~FtA+=AH
HK$10,000,000,000 has been placed with the Exchange Fund for #E#%5 % 10,000,000,000 JTH BB A<
a period of six years since 12 July 2016. As agreed with HKMA, HA ESGERIINEES BB AF - RE
renewed the placement of HK$10,000,000,000 for another six years BEERESCERNWE % % }% o3
upon maturity on 12 July 2022. 10 OOO 000,000 T fF R =T ==
AT HEBERETERINEES - BH
N o
Hospital / clinic fees and charges 2 BR/IZEFINE
The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied in SEFIRHENERRTE - RIREFRTIE
accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the Government R B RMNENER - BRBATEHIET—
has established a set of policies and procedures on granting fee waivers ELTRBEERERABRRR LB R
to the needy patients, the hospital / clinic fees and charges recognised B - ERE R EERPER AR
as income in the consolidated statement of income and expenditure MER/ZEMEE  EHRTELERR
are stated net of such waivers. The amount of hospital / clinic fees and 258 o E%i?:_%f_@ FZA=1+—8HIt
charges waived for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 amounted ZHBEREA - BRERER/ ZEMK
to HK$1,158,367,000 (2023: HK$1,112,018,000). 2 5A%1,158,367,000 (T - =4 :
75#5 1,112,018,000 7T) °
Hospital / clinic fees and charges (net of waivers) are derived over time E RS E— R SR SR/
and at a point in time in the following categories: PR E (BIRR R R EE) T
The Group &
At a point
Over time in time Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E-BRER EE-NE wEt
BETT BETT BET T
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE 20243 A3 BLFE
Inpatient fees {EfT Ut & 724,780 - 724,780
Outpatient fees FI2 W & - 1,402,210 1,402,210
Itemised charges 5 TEIK 2 87,494 3,505,817 3,683,311
Other medical fees H fth & & U & 1,510 53,901 55,411
813,784 5,051,928 5,865,712
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BZE2023F 3831 ALEE
Inpatient fees {EfT Ut & 564,055 - 564,055
Outpatient fees FI2 I B - 1,235,108 1,235,108
ltemised charges 9 TEW & 49,015 3,283,543 3,332,558
Other medical fees Hth B& Uk & 1,537 102,865 104,402
614,607 4621,516 5,236,123
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25 Staff costs

B REERAR FRE

25 E TR

The Group £F

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ 2024F B ZE 2023F
3A31ALEFE 3A3IHIEFE
BT T BB
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 58,428,711 55,542,999
EAR#H & REASE HE SR
Post-employment benefits BBk & 27 :
- Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 25(a)] 2,828,930 2,795,836
Bt BB AESTEIMR [ 25(a)]
- Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme [note 25(b)] 1,104,954 1,058,356
s M AR S B [MEE 25(0)]
Death and disability benefits [note 20] 51,576 21,818
et MBEEA (M 20]
62,414,171 59,419,009

(a) HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS”)

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme
was established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed and
Rules dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section 18 of the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO").

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment are
eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The HAPFS is
a defined contribution scheme as all benefits are defined in relation to
contributions except that a minimum death benefit equating to twelve
months' salary applies on the death of a member. However, when the
member's account balance is less than his twelve months' scheme
salary, the difference will be contributed by the Death and Disability
Scheme of the Group.

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at 15%
of each member's monthly basic salary. The percentage of benefit
entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or retirement,
increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2024, the total membership was 25,523 (2023:
26,404). The scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2024 was
HK$69,809,369,000 (2023: HK$68,481,724,000).

(a) BIREBRABEEE

[BirEERAREEE | 2 AATEH
Rat 8l - MITFBIRIREBE T =F—A
“HABEMEERNERA R_TT=4F
MA—BER R ZHEE  WiRE (BRE
PRET &GP 5 18 16 -

REPEEEBERERKINESR B
BERSNEFHRN [BREERBAR
&t - [BREERABEEE ] BR
FEHRETE] - R T IO B At By AR
EFRTEAF SO RESLTREAIN PR
BB R T EARIE - T8 - ERERIR
BAESRBREN % T2+ — @A 3%
ERE ZEBNSGHEENETRER
ESME-

EENTAER KR BEEEF D
15% - 1 8 £ BH SR IS AT MO FI 25 L
S Bl AR A0

R-ZEBE-ME=A=+—H E#A
25523 &ZKE (ZZE==%:26,404 &)
sHEIR A EFE A8 69,809,369,000 7T
(ZZE =% :78%68,481724,000 JT) °
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25
(b)

26
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Staff costs (Continued)
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS”)

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master trust schemes. HA
permanent employees can choose between the HAPFS and the MPFS
while contract and temporary employees are required to join the MPFS
unless otherwise exempted.

The Group's contributions to MPFS are determined according to each
member’s terms of employment. Members' mandatory contributions
are fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
month.

At 31 March 2024, the total membership was 80,140 (2023: 78,780).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, total members’
contributions were HK$960,823,000 (2023: HK$920,914,000). The
net asset value as at 31 March 2024, including assets transferred
from members' previous employment, was HK$13,132,452,000 (2023:
HK$12,319,094,000).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital supplies,
non-capitalised project expenditure and other administrative expenses.
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024, other operating expenses
included external auditor's remuneration of HK$1,050,000 (2023:
HK$1,050,000).
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(b)

BTEA (&)
BEEATEEETE
1B (a4 DTE
AR AZ3TE 8 -

BeiE HER

T BRG] - EE AN
7%1 B AsMEA

FHEESREEZN
&8 F?EE?EE)% iqu?JJ DA
ZatEl] - [‘?#?ié SR FHMERES
A2 [RFIE RS E

EFY [RFIMELE SR OHF BB
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HERET AR 5% UEFABE 1,5007T
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RZE-_WMF=A=+—H 5TE8#H
80140%%5\(_?_ F:787804) °
EHEZE_FT_WNF=ZA=+—HI
Zﬁﬂtﬁziﬁm D =Nk %@%’57'%,%

# 960,823,000 7T (—T— ,¢ 5
920,914,000?5)0%474@@ H =

ETEIM B EFE BIEK B SR
uﬁﬂﬂﬂ’] BE BB 13,132,452,000 7T

(ZB==%: #%12,319,094,000 ) °
26 Hitt&ERX
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 Remuneration of Members of the Board and
Five Highest Paid Executives

(@) No Board members are remunerated for the services provided in the
capacity as Board members.

(b) The remuneration of the five highest paid executives (including the
Chief Executive, Cluster Chief Executives, Directors and other division
heads of the Head Office, and Hospital Chief Executives), which
comprised basic salaries and other short term employee benefits and
post-employment benefits, and is included in the staff costs for the
year, is as follows:

B REERAR B EE

27 RERERAERESFHITHAE
KO <

() AIEREASRBMALTIRBEREAKE
S R AR T EERENE: o

b) FANBEIKABEEBRINTFUATAES
REHFITHAR (BRETHRAER - BiR®
£ ARERSAEREMEFITEME
BRITHAE) WS - EPET AELRH
& MEME IR B RN RN -

For the year ended
31 March 2024

HK$'000
HZE20245F
Name of Executives / Position 3A31HLEE
THABHS /B BT T
Dr Tony KO Pat-sing &35 284
Chief Executive {TEZEE; 6,867
Dr Nelson WAT Ming-sun f& $4 (%2
Hospital Chief Executive (Caritas Medical Centre) BAE B8 1T ARES 5,736
Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai ZE{=RB 8
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & Fr B 48 42 B 5,542
Dr CHUNG Kin-lai $Bf212 8
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) 57 BB 48 42 B 5,373
Dr Deacons YEUNG Tai-kong 15 & i) & 4£
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon East) J1 82 R B 48 42 25 5,298
28,816

Note:

All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to performance.

B (T BA B 3 TR R B TR B 400 T 40
B -
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27 Remuneration of Members of the Board and 27 A€ ERAZESHITHAS

Five Highest Paid Executives (Continued) i€ &)
For the year ended
31 March 2023
HK$'000
HE2023%F
Name of Executives / Position HK$'000 3A31ALLEE
THABHA /B BT T BT T
Dr Tony KO Pat-sing =52 28 4
Chief Executive 1T AEE; 6,555
Dr Nelson WAT Ming-sun /& $4 i 22
Hospital Chief Executive (Caritas Medical Centre) BAE Bz 1T 4285 5418
Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai Z={EREEE 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & Pa B 48 42 £5 5,297
Dr CHUNG Kin-lai $2f212 58
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East)* 757 SR B A8 4R 25 1541
Director (Quality & Safety)* B & k&2 4R > 3,668 5,209
Dr David SUN Tin-fung FR K% 88 4
Hospital Chief Executive (North District Hospital) 1% 28z 17 B 42 85 5071
27,550
Note: At -
All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to FTETTEA B NEREER I TE
performance. REFA o
*Dr CHUNG Kin-lai was appointed as Cluster Chief Executive (New CEREELEATEERLERAE K
Territories East) with effect from 15 December 2022. Prior to this —E-HF+_At+RAAREZRTAEF
appointment, he served as Director (Quality & Safety). B EAES -
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28 Related party transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group include
the following:

HA has a number of contracts with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department (“EMSD") of the Government for providing
biomedical and general electronics engineering services, electrical,
mechanical, air-conditioning, building services and other services
(e.g. capital and improvement works) to the Group. The amounts
incurred for these services for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
amounted to HK$2,481,695,000 (2023: HK$2,493,316,000).

HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide
serving and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and other
eligible persons with the services and facilities at all public hospitals
and clinics free of charge or at the prevailing rates as prescribed in the
Civil Service Regulations. For the financial year ended 31 March 2024,
revenue foregone in respect of medical services provided to these
persons amounted to HK$366,925,000 (2023: HK$312,629,000). The
cost of such services has been taken into account in the Government's
subvention to the Group.

HA has entered into short-term licence agreements with the
AsiaWorld-Expo Management Limited, which is wholly owned by the
Airport Authority Hong Kong, to permit HA on using licenced area for
the operation of Hong Kong Infection Control Centre during the periods
from 1 February 2023 to 31 January 2024 and 1 February 2024 to 31
July 2024. Total license fees recognised in the statement of income
and expenditure during the financial year ended 31 March 2024
amounted to HK$54,000,000 (2023: HK$9,000,000).

Under a master mortgage sale and purchase agreement with HKMC,
HA has sold the staff loans offered to its eligible employees under
Enhanced HLISS to HKMC on a quarterly basis from October 2023
onwards (note 11). During the financial year ended 31 March 2024,
total settlement amount received from HKMC, being outstanding
principal balance on staff loans, amounted to HK$234,883,000.
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28 Related party transactions (Continued)

(e)

156

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief Executives,
Directors and other division heads of the Head Office.

Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown below:

B RE R AR FEE

28 EHEBATHRS @)

(e)

TE2EBAEHM

FEERABRIELENRETERE S
REREBEHHAL ERETHER -
TrUN VES TS Sy
-

TEREEASNHIERNT

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ2024F BELE2023%F

3A31HILFE 3A31RLEFE

BT T BT T

Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 69,051 69,695
EAR#H & REAME HES BN

Post-employment benefits BB 1% 2 7| 6,766 6,723

75,817 76,418

Other significant related party transactions with the Government
include annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 22) and
designated funds (notes 16 and 21). Details of transactions relating to
the Group's retirement schemes are included in note 25.

Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2024 are disclosed in notes 8, 13, 14, 17, 18 and 23. The
current account with a subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in note
18.
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29 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 29 LA B S RBHMEM T
flows

(a) Net cash generated from operating activities (a) BEZEMBREFH

The Group £

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2024F B Z=2023F
3AB1HILEEFE  3A3IALFE
BT T BT T
Surplus for the year F N & & 986,282 478,019
Investment income & & &% (1,986,817) (788,779
Interest for Minor Works Projects Fund /N T3218 B & 7.8 108,315 43,987
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (2,174,621) (2,422,370)
EREHg/ VITRRERERES A
Interest for PPP Fund AT EHIEEEFIS 382,520 716,965
Income transferred from PPP Fund 838 B AFLE i 1EE S 2 WA (656,215) (5630,392)
Interest for Enhanced HLISS 8 T E ¥ E R HEIF 5 1,250,116 -
Income transferred from Enhanced HLISS (7,515) -
EREETEXEFFEZWA
Capital subventions for property, plant and equipment and intangible 2,532,463 2,406,602
assets
M - WERRBRETLEEZ BAHEY
Capital donations for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 95,707 121,630
ME - MERRBRETLEEEARBE
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (1,734,225) (1,740,994)
ERE BRI RERIBE WA
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 29,712 19,850
HEME  BENRENETLEE
Adjustment of inventories to net realisable value (108,316) 425,480
FERE SR SR FE
Depreciation and amortisation #7 2 & # 2,042,848 2,014,923
Finance costs 875 %& F 19,319 10,038
Increase in death and disability liabilities 35T M SEA8 FI & F1E hn 39,285 12,065
Increase / (decrease) in deferred income ¥EIEU ZS1E HN / (5Fi2>) 1,410,446 (4,588)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories T &35 4> / (3&40) 1,816,706 (1,093,596)
(Increase) / decrease in loans receivable FEYIE R (3EHN0) / i (118,425) 1
Decrease in accounts receivable J& U & Z0R 4> 49,902 3141
Increase in other receivables £ th & U ik 7118 i (625,182) (187,773)
(Increase) / decrease in deposits and prepayments (100,889) 314,462
Be RFERNFEAGM) /D
Increase in creditors and accrued charges & A K JE < 8 F 1% i1 6,987,088 9,270,455
Increase in deposits received = U iR 4 12 1 40,996 70,351
Net cash generated from operating activities 4 & /& & 1538 & 558 10,279,500 9,139,487
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29 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 29 FREBEESREMERMTE &)

flows (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BETEEENEELHIR
The Group £E
Lease liabilities
HK$'000
HESE
BT T
At1 April2022 2 2022 F 4 A1 H 509,397
Cash flow changes ¥ & 8 )

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities XN THE & EARE D (310,788)
Non-cash changes JEIR &8 B &)

Additions of leases &N 474,423
At 31 March 2023 72 2023 4 3 A 31 H 673,032
Cash flow changes IR & E & F)

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities Sz A E B EARE EH (350,072)
Non-cash changes FE3R & I8 B &

Additions of leases FAE N 192,593
At 31 March 2024 7 2024 £ 3 31 H 515553

30 Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club 30 REEREESEZEETES

Charities Trust

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust made donations totalling HK$5,388,000 (2023:
HK$17,971,000) to the following institutions:

HY45 A8

HE-—Z-_ME=A=+—HIEWNEEKE
ER - BFBEESRSEAESHER T
MR L /A% 5,388,000 (2 =4 :
75 17,971,0007T) :

HK$'000

BT T

Pok Oi Hospital 18 58z 4,250
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 5 [& 5=k A BT &2 978
Kowloon Hospital }15E 28R 160
5,388

The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(e)(ii).
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31 Netproceeds from fund raising activities under

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ & 3R Rt EE

31 BHEREABRE MBI

Hospital
BBHHBER

instruments / equipment and office equipment,  31/1/2024

improvement of hospital premises and

supporting patient related activities
EXAERERRERRMAERMAE - WE

BREGERRANEDEE

Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”) granted AFETEFTHMERERA
by the Social Welfare Department
The net proceeds from fund raising activities under PSP granted by BHAtERNBRGE ARERT A HE
the Social Welfare Department of the Government during the stated IEEHRETERVERAEFRALT ¢
period are set out below:
Gross Gross
Income Expenditure Net
Raised Incurred Proceeds
PSP No. Period HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Institution AHER Purpose Covered WA xaE Rl
i TR AR E]:y) REHE B%TR BT BYETR
Alice Ho Miu Ling 2023/021/1  Improving the quality of patient care services 1/4/2023 - 27 0 27
Nethersole Hospital MEFEABREL = 31/3/2024
TR iR AT =&
Bradbury Hospice 2022/095/1  To raise funds for patient care 1/11/2022 - 11 0 11
HEREERDL BN AIERARET 31/10/2023
Caritas Medical Centre 2022/032/1  To raise funds for patient services of Caritas 1/5/2022 - 59 3 56
FEfEE Medical Centre 30/4/2023
SHAEREEREARS
Castle Peak Hospital 2022/142/1  To raise funds for mental health promotion 1/1/2023 - 18 14 4
Bk SHAERBRRAEHRE 31/12/2023
Cheshire Home, Shatin 2022/046/1  To raise funds for developing patient related 8/7/2022 - 20 0 20
DREKERR services 30/6/2023
SHRERR R AR RS
Grantham Hospital 2023/009/1  To raise funds for improving patient services of ~ 1/2/2023 - 31 0 31
BEHER Grantham Hospital 31/1/2024
EYAENEESHBERBRRE
Haven of Hope Hospital 2023/027/1  To raise funds for services of Haven of Hope  1/4/2023 - 97 1 96
BEER Hospital 31/3/2024
EVAEBEBERNRS
Hong Kong Buddhist 2023/008/1  To raise funds for the purchase of medical 1/2/2023 - 70 1 69
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31 Netproceeds from fund raising activities under

160

R S R 2R B
31 M EBEAERAQMERY

Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”) granted ARETEREHMEFHRA
by the Social Welfare Department (Continued) (&)
Gross Gross
Income Expenditure Net
Raised Incurred Proceeds
PSP No. Period HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Institution DEHER Purpose Covered WA#%E MxaE  FhA
Hig T AR 4R 5 B RERE B¥TR BETT BETT
North District Hospital 2022/138/1 To raise funds for North District Hospital — 1/1/2023 - 110 0 110
Charitable Foundation Charitable Foundation so as to support North  31/12/2023
IEEEZEETES District Hospital in improving the physical and
L f&s mental health of the public in the community
and to promote health education, medical
education and research
SEXRE [tEBRESERES ] UXHILE
ERSEHLRAATALH S BARGRE -
WlRERFHE - BEHBENAR
Our Lady of Maryknoll 2023/023/1  Toraise funds forimprovement of patient services ~ 1/4/2023 - 21 4 17
Hospital FRBERE LGB 31/3/2024
ERER
Prince of Wales Hospital ~ 2022/072/1  To raise funds for supporting the services of  1/9/2022- 908 9 899
Charitable Foundation the Prince of Wales Hospital, improving the  31/8/2023
REETREEE physical and mental health in the community
ERES and promote medical education & research
EVREIRARTRIERRE  WEEA
DREFHRENREEREHE AR
Queen Mary Hospital 2023/024/1  To raise funds for hospital service enhancement 1/4/2023 - 70 0 70
BERMR SHBERA RN RS 31/3/2024
Ruttonjee & Tang 2023/025/1 To raise funds for volunteer services, patient  1/4/2023 - 46 4 42
Shiu Kin Hospitals related activities and improvement of hospital  31/3/2024
B RHEEER service
SHBERTRY - BT LSRR RS
Shatin Hospital 2022/112/1  To raise funds for developing patient service 1/12/2022 - 5 0 5
D HER SHBERERRBARE 30/11/2023
St. John Hospital 2022/144/1  To raise funds for enhancing the services of St. 16/1/2023 - 11 1 10
RiMET John Hospital 31/12/2023
SXRERARNBRORBESR
Tai Po Hospital 2023/022/1  Improving of the quality of patient care services  1/4/2023 - 17 0 17
NG HERARBE R 31/3/2024
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31 Netproceeds from fund raising activities under

St 75 R 2R B o
31 WHEEABRGEAMERS

Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”) granted ARETERITHRBFEFRA
by the Social Welfare Department (Continued) (&)
Gross Gross
Income Expenditure Net
Raised Incurred Proceeds
PSP No. Period HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Institution AEER Purpose Covered WA MxAmE FhA
Hig R AR AR 5 B RERE BRI BETT BETT
The Hospital Authority 2023/019/1 To raise funds for the Hospital Authority 1/4/2023- 928 0 928
Charitable Foundation Charitable Foundation to promote healthy  31/3/2024
BAf- e e living, subsidise medical expenses of
needy patients, support activities of patient
groups, promote health education and
develop volunteer services in Hong Kong
EXAEIRBREEREEESNIE B
RRERAE - BEHEERANERES -
BER ABBAED)  ERFHEURER
ETRH
The Pamela Youde 2022/071/1 To raise funds for enhancing the services of  1/9/2022 - 634 11 623
Nethersole Eastern Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital  31/8/2023
Hospital Charitable or any other non-profit making hospitals /
Trust medical facilities in Hong Kong
RRABRAITZER EXRERARBLERABITRERAES
EEETES Hith e | MR ENREER
2023/099/1 To raise funds for enhancing the services of 29/9/2023 - 81 12 69
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 11/11/2023
ERMERARBLERABITZER SR
BEx
The Princess Margaret 2022/107/1  To raise funds for Princess Margaret Hospital for 26/11/2022 - 32 1 31
Hospital Charitable enhancement of patient services quality 25/11/2023
Trust BB EERRBRAER AREEE
BRilBhEEEe
The Queen Elizabeth 2023/034/1  To raise funds for supporting hospital services at 13/4/2023 - 934 144 790
Hospital Charitable Queen Elizabeth Hospital 31/3/2024
Trust - ERRIEFRD BBRERY
PR EEREEET
e
Tseung Kwan O Hospital ~ 2022/082/1  To raise funds for patients benefit and 25/9/2022- 21 0 21
8T R enhancement of hospital services 24/9/2023

BFMERARN IR EERY
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31 Netproceeds from fund raising activitiesunder 31 EH BB XK AFBERET

Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”) granted ARETEREHMEFHRA
by the Social Welfare Department (Continued) (&)
Gross Gross
Income Expenditure Net
Raised Incurred Proceeds
PSP No. Period HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Institution N:GE £ Purpose Covered WA MXEE FRA
i 5 R & RS BHY REHE BETT BETT BT
Tuen Mun Hospital 2022/036/1  To raise funds for: 1/6/2022 - 30 0 30
pralcd (I} Patient benefits / services uses; 31/5/2023

I) Health and diseases education;

Il) Patient Resources Centre;

/) Medical research and development projects
for the betterment of the community

(I
(
(

EXAE:
() WARF /R
() BERERHE
manéﬁ@m
(V) B R R BB B
United Christian Hospital 2023/028/1  To raise funds for patient's benefit and  1/4/2023- 193 2 191
HEHEA B enhancement of hospital services of United  31/3/2024
Christian Hospital
SHRERABF REAEEAH S BRNEBE
PR
Yan Chai Hospital 2023/007/1  To raise funds for improving hospital services and ~ 1/2/2023 - 728 3 725
(CmER hospital facilities 31/1/2024

ERAERE B RE R BRI

The net proceeds received from fund raising activities under PSP were RIEFTEE 2(e) (i) FIEA S ETBCR - BB
accounted for in the designated donation fund in accordance with the FERET A B ETTERUE BT RF A
accounting policy set out in note 2(e)(ii). PIAETREESNA -
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32

33

34

35

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2024, the Group and HA had the following capital
commitments:

R TS HR AR B
32 WAKNE

R-Z_NF=A=+—0  KEKEES
BIATEEAASE :

The Group and HA £E R BER

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

2024%3A31H 202343 A31H

BT T BET T

Authorised but not contracted for & EREB AR T4 76,680,463 77,229,834
Contracted for but not provided 2 5] 2 418 R B4 67,563,992 26,652,234
144,244,455 103,882,068

The capital commitments disclosed above include (i) costs to be
capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible assets;
(i) expenditure not meeting the capitalisation policy and are to be
charged to the statement of income and expenditure; and (iii) amounts
to be incurred by HA for undertaking the building works projects on
behalf of the Government and governing bodies of ex-subvented
hospitals as set out in the accounting policy note 2(q)(i).

Taxation

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance.

Contingent liabilities

As adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements
after reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into
account legal advice received, the Group has no material contingent
liability as at 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on
23 September 2024.

LRI E A AFERRE () EEN
EOME HERRBRBTLEES
A (i) AR BB E R R AMK
RERMFS - K (i) RIEFIEE 2(a)() AT
AMESFHER - BERKRBMLAT#HB
Bl B TEETIREAMSNE
)EH o

33 BiE

BE R (BB BIE0) Biesi
B AR B TR

34 AREE

AR AR AR B R B RO WARE
FIiSERER AR BEHREEH R AN
B lﬁt%lﬁfyfmi A= -1— H
WEEBASHARE( =58

35 MR AVER

$Eﬂ“#ﬁz%aﬁ’\_ E_NENAZ+=H
EEERKEB
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Membership of the Hospital Authority

Eg > &5 5 E
EREERKE
No. of plenary
meetings attended
in 2023-24
Name 2023-24 £ Committee participation in 2023-24*
it HEXBASRE 2023-24 FESHNEZEE
Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC
Chairman, HA FRAT  (THRZESNBESEEREZESTF
B BT
Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP 15/15 Member of DWC (from 1.1.2024), EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC
Permanent Secretary for Health IRRMEEE S (H 2024 F1 F 1 A#) BREEgRER
BRING e 4 Bg MKEEE  ANEBERZE®  BERKERZES
BB EREINER X EREEREZEGKE
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP 6/12 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB (all up to 31.1.2024); HGC
(up to 31.1.2024) Member of Prince of Wales Hospital
PRER oI ANBREZEE®  BERKERZEGRTRREZES
(BiZ 2024 F1H31H) KB (2EZE 2024 F1 A31 H) BRIMBATERER
ZEgKE
Mr Lawrence CHAN Man-yiu 13/15 Member of MTB
PR HE ST A RRRELZEEKE
Prof CHAN Wai-yee 10/15 Vice-Chairman of MSDC; Member of HRC and MTB; HGC
PRIZEZU Chairman of North District Hospital
EERGERZBEETR  ANERZEGRTFREITE
BgKE  tEBREREZESER
Mr CHAN Wing-kai 9/15 Chairman of PCC; Member of EC, EEC, ITSC and MSDC; HGC
BRoK (A Member of Kwong Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
NBRFEEEER  (THEES  RSREREREE -
BARBRGEZE e NEERBEEREZEGKE  BEEER
ERE=FrEAIBRERZEGKE
Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP 13/15 Chairman of HRC; Member of EC, EEC and SAC; HGC Member of
EEE T United Christian Hospital
ANBRZEGER  (THEES  ZSEEREZEER
BB FREEENE  AEHHMSBRELZESEKE
The Hon Duncan CHIU 11/15 Chairman of ITSC; Member of ARC (from 28.7.2023), EC, EEC and
ERER A A FC; HGC Chairman of Tin Shui Wai Hospital; Member of NRAC
EMBRRGZE TR B RARERZ8E (42023 F
7 H28 AEE) THZBE RREEREZE I LUK
ZEgKE  RKEBRERZESEF  MAREFZAE
SEgKE
Prof Philip CHIU Wai-yan 1/3 Member of HRC, MSDC (both from 20.3.2024) and MTB (from

(from 27.2.2024)
BRI
(F3 2024 %2 A 27 H#E)

27.2.2024)
ANERZE® BERGURZBEG (94 2024 F 3 A
20 H#E) R RIFARZ RGN R (1 2024 F 2 A 27 B i)
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No. of plenary
meetings attended
in 2023-24

Name 2023-24 £ Committee participation in 2023-24*

A HEZEASRE 2023-24 FEZHNZEER

Ms Anita FUNG Yuen-mei, BBS, JP 13/15 Member of FC, ITSC and MTB

R+ MBEES  BEARBREZEERTRRIERZEGKE

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP 11/15 Member of ARC MTB and SAC

CINEE it FitREREEEZEE®  HRAREZEGLBE FFEES
4=

Ms Maisy HO Chiu-ha, BBS, JP 13/15 Member of HRC, MSDC (up to 15.1.2024) and MTB; HGC

fAlEEA Chairman of Shatin Hospital
ANEREE® BERGEREZS S (AE2024F1H15H)
RhRRELZEEKE  PABKRERZESER

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi, JP 12/15 Member of FC and MTB; HGC Member of United Christian

WEELT Hospital (from 25.5.2023)
%%§AE&¢%&M§AEW§ EEHMe B EaE

BB (B 2023 F 5 H 25 H#E)

Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP 10/15 Vice-Chairman of PCC (from 1.1.2024); Member of MTB (from

BIEESTE 5.6.2023) and PCC (from 5.6.2023 to 31.12.2023)
RBERFEEGRER (B 2024 F1 A 1 HE),FRFIZE
B&(H 2023 F 6 A5 HE)RARIRFEES (H 2023 F
6 H5HZ 20234 12 A 31 H)KE

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP 15/15 Member of DWC (from 1.1.2024), EC, EEC, FC, HRC, ITSC, MSDC,

Chief Executive, HA MTB, SSDC, all RACs and HGCs

SN TIRIEREEG (B 2024 F1 A1 HE) THEES -

F‘Eﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁ SREERELREY  WKEES - Aﬁéﬁiﬂa~ﬁﬁﬂ

BRBEES BERBBRZEY TAREZEE X
ERBEREZEES  ZREFAZEEREBRELRZES
D=

Dr Ronald LAM Man-kin, JP 15/15 Member of MSDC

Director of Health BERGERZEGKE

MR Ee 4

HEEER

Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS 11/15 Chairman of SSDC (from 1.1.2024); Member of DWC, EC, EEC

MRREL L (all from 1.1.2024), ITSC, MTB and SSDC (both up to 31.12.2023);
HGC Member of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
TERBEREZEGER (B 2024 F1 A1 HE): TiRA
Eé/\a fTEAZ;/\El %érrﬁﬁgé/\a {IEQ 2024 $
1A 1H#E) BAEREEES  dREEZEERZE
%%%E?Eﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁfﬂvyﬁwﬁauﬂ FRAA

AV

Prof LAU Chak-sing, BBS, JP 10/15 Member of ITSC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Hong Kong

22 EHIR Children’s Hospital
BAMRREEZE®  BERBERZEGNPRIRIZFEE
BKE  BERERRELAZEGKE

Dr LEUNG Wing-cheong 15/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB

%KEEQ

ANEREZES BERBBHRZEGNTRREZEGKE
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No. of plenary
meetings attended
in 2023-24

Name 2023-24 £ Committee participation in 2023-24*

HE HEZBASRE 202324 FESHNZES

Mr Aaron LIU Kong-cheung, JP 15/15 Member of FC and MSDC

Deputy Secretary for Financial Services MHEEERBERGEEZEENE

and the Treasury

BEMTE

I EB RIER BRI ER

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung 11/15 Chairman of MTB; Member of EC, EEC, HRC (up to 27.9.2023)

BRI and MSDC; Chairman of HRAC; HGC Chairman of Pamela Youde
Nethersole Eastern Hospital
RAKRELZEGEF  (THREES  ESEERELEY
ANEBREES(BEIZE 2023 F 9 H 27 A)REBERBERE
BgXE  BEEREEAZEGEE  RELBRABITE
BREREZEEER

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee 11/15 Vice-Chairman of HRC; Member of MSDC, MTB and SSDC;

ERIEHIR Chairman of NRAC; HGC Member of Hong Kong Red Cross Blood
Transfusion Service
ANBREZEEGRITE  BEBRKERZEE® PREREER
BEgRERBEREZEGKE  AREEAZESE
& BRA+TEhIRET OEREEGKE

Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, BBS, MH, JP 9/15 Member of ARC (from 28.7.2023), MTB and SAC; Member of

AR ST NRAC; HGC Member of Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital
B REREBREG(H2023F7H28H#) « PRIFIZ
ZEERBE FFEEGKE MAREFAZEGNE
BBk MERR B RRE|KE

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP 14/15 Chairman of FC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC and SSDC; HGC

oK et Chairman of Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital
MBZEESTR  BEAREAREREZE® 1TREE®  E
SREFRBLZEGRIERBERZEGNE  BEBRK
BEEBRELREETE

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun 11/15 Chairman of ARC; Member of DWC (from 1.1.2024), EC, EEC, FC

BRSEE and SSDC; Member of NRAC; HGC Member of Tuen Mun Hospital
B kEREBEZESER TIRINBRZE® (4 2024 F
1 A1R%) 1TBZEg ZEREERELRET WKE
BEgRTERBERZEGKE  MAREEAZTEGK
8 Bk EREEgKE

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS 13/15 Chairman of MSDC; Member of ARC, DWC (from 1.1.2024), EC

I

and EEC; HGC Chairman of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
EERBERZESIFE FthERERZESS TREOE
REE®(H 2024 F1 /A1 HE)TREEGhEREEERSY
ZEENE PP HBREREZESER
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No. of plenary
meetings attended
in 2023-24
Name 2023-24 £ Committee participation in 2023-24*
A HESBASRE 202324 FESHEHNESR
Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of DWC (from 1.1.2024) and SSDC (up to 31.12.2023);
BXERE Member of EC, EEC, ITSC, MSDC, MTB and SSDC (from 1.1.2024);
HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O Hospital
TiRREE® (42024 F1 A 1 AERIEREEREZS
SXF(BE 2023 F 12 A 31 ) 1THEES B2EER
BLREg BAMERBEZEES BEREEREZES TR
RIZEE E&SETEEE%X%’*EQ\ KB (2024 F1H1H
) BERERERZEENE
Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP 12/15 Member of DWC (from 1.1.2024), MTB and SSDC; Chairman
EICRLE of KRAC; HGC Member of Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess
Margaret Hospital
TREEG (4 2024 F£1 A1 HE) - FRI|IFLE
SEXERBEREZEGNXE  MERHERAZESER
TR MISEIERE AR B K E
* Note: @R ¢
Board Members are not separately remunerated. They discharge the role of KAﬁX;TZEQEM\ e o KeKEERELEe:E
governance of the Authority through formulating policies and directions and EHIETERER / B - g?ﬁﬁmlﬂzﬁx o AR
overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, as well as taking part in EEREREEEZEESN TIE - REBERH
steering the work of various committees of the Authority including: BES o

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

DWC - Development and Works Committee

EC - Executive Committee

EEC - Emergency Executive Committee

FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC - Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
HRC - Human Resources Committee

ITSC - Information Technology Services Committee
KRAC -  Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee
MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC -  New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC -  Supporting Services Development Committee
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Hospital Authority Committee Structure
BEREEREZEESEEE

Hospital Authority Board

BRESRAR

‘ ¢ s ~°

. I
Regional Advisory Hospital Governing : ; Information
Committees Committees A%‘i‘:na;ﬂtigk Technology Services
Committee
RIGHAAEE S HiERREE T G
(2[2 i oy e} =8 = B8 = oo Sz A N 7
&af REREE ERRT
=A% ZEE
N NS /
Devel d 4 h
W?)Y*isogr:nirr:i?tle Main Tender Board
- FRIGEEEE
\ NG _/
Medical Services
Executive Committee Development
AHEEe Committee
-~ B8

BERGEERZES

Public Complaints
Committee
NERFEES
\

Staff Appeals
Committee

BB LHhEREE

Emergency
Executive Committee
EoRERELER

Finance Committee

MBREE

J

T N Y (sem )
\
ST Y

Human Resources Supporting Services

Committee Development
e o Committee
BREES - -

ATERZRR || yepuarsase

/ /

Note: 5
Membership lists of various committees are listed in Appendices BRLEESNEREHMNMEE3 4 K5
3,4 andb5.
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Hospital Authority Executive Structure
B EERBITHERS

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
SRBEYE TR

Clusters

L

Head Office
BB

Hong Kong East Cluster
BB REBREE

Dr Loletta SO Kit-ying, MH
Cluster Chief Executive
HEZELE

73
AR

Hong Kong West Cluster
8 5 7 BB B A

Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai
Cluster Chief Executive

FREBL

73
AR

Kowloon Central Cluster

NEEF BB

Dr Eric CHEUNG Fuk-chi
Cluster Chief Executive

RESEL

HAARES

Kowloon East Cluster

NERERBA

Dr Deacons YEUNG Tai-kong
Cluster Chief Executive

BEELE

=
AR £

Kowloon West Cluster

NEREERBA

Dr Alexander LAW Chun-bon
Cluster Chief Executive

ERBELE

HAARES

New Territories
East Cluster

R BB B

Dr CHUNG Kin-lai
Cluster Chief Executive

EReELE

HAARES

New Territories
West Cluster

iy X

-

Dr WONG Yiu-chung
Cluster Chief Executive
EREEE

AR L

Ve L

J

Note:

The Hospital Authority Board approved to establish a Development & Works Division
and to appoint a Director (Development & Works) to oversee the capital projects in
the Authority. Ir Kelvin LO Kwok-wah was appointed as the Director (Development &
Works) with effect from 6 March 2024.
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Dr Simon TANG Yiu-hang
Director (Cluster Services)

HEa28t
BAEIRTS R E

Dr Michael WONG Lap-gate
Director (Quality & Safety)

BEVCEE
BER T THRE

Dr CHING Wai-kuen
Director (Strategy & Planning)

REEELE
R ZRABE

Ir Kelvin LO Kwok-wah, SBS
Director (Development & Works)
(from 6.3.2024)\°te

ERFETRE
TR R (1 2024 F 3 H 6 HiE)

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu
Director (Finance)

BRRm L+
MR

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-cheong
Head of Corporate Services

BIEE KL
BEFFTE

Mr David MAK Chi-wai
Head of Human Resources

BERERE
ADERLTE

Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung
Head of Information Technology and
Health Informatics

REABRL
EARIRREFIEEEE
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Membership and Terms of Reference of Functional Committees

EEZE e ERBEEE

Audit and Risk Committee
ETREREEEZEES®

Membership List
RERE
Chairman:

EE

Members :

RE :

In Attendance:

HIRE -

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESEAE

The Hon Duncan CHIU (from 28.7.2023)
MREMR S 4 (F7 2023 F 7 A 28 H#E)

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
fAiER e A

Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, MH, JP (from 28.7.2023)
SIS ST (A 2023 F 7 A 28 H#E)

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BRBEE

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS
Ep

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
DI BE 7T

Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP
Permanent Secretary for Health

BRIAF 54
BSHLEREIRER
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Ter

L

ms of Reference

Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure

that its:

(@) mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b) plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic coverage
of the internal control and risk management systems put in
place by the Management; and

(c) findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit
fee to the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by
the external auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or
dismissal;

Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including the:
(@) nature and scope of the audit;

(b) audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(c) management letter and management'’s response; and

(d) matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw attention;

Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and
fairness of audited financial statements, including appropriateness
of accounting policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and
significant audit adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance
Committee);

Oversee the effectiveness of systems for risk management and

internal control, including to:

(@) monitor the implementation and effectiveness of Hospital
Authority’'s Organisation-wide Risk Management (ORM) policy
and strategy;

(b) review and approve changes to the components of the ORM
framework;

(c) review reports on the organisation-wide risk profile and
significant risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive; and

(d) monitor Hospital Authority’s financial and administrative control
processes, including those designed to ensure the safeguarding
of resources and operational efficiency, through the results of
internal and external audit;

Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for monitoring:
(@) compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;

b) compliance with Hospital Authority's Code of Conduct;

c) effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and fraud; and
d) effectivenessofHospital Authority's whistleblowing mechanism.

Note:

Although the functions of the Audit and Risk Committee cover a wide area,
matters that are of a pure clinical nature (such as medical ethics) are not within
its purview.
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Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the Committee met six times to exercise active oversight
of internal audit function of the Hospital Authority (HA), considered
matters related to the audit of HA's financial statements, and oversaw
the effectiveness of risk management and internal controls at HA.

In regard to HA's internal audit function, the Committee received from
the Chief Internal Auditor quarterly progress reports on audit results
over HA's operational areas, as well as an annual report on audit
analytics of clinical systems. The discussions focused on the audit
conclusions, major audit observations and corresponding follow-up
actions. Key internal audits considered by the Committee in 2023-24
covered different hospital operation and corporate management areas,
including management of shortage of supporting staff, management of
hyperbaric oxygen treatment chamber service, security, monitoring and
investigative capability of audit trails on critical clinical systems, cluster
Information Technology (IT) asset management, donation management,
electronic payment, the Computerised Order Processing and Project
Execution System, compliance with Dangerous Drugs Ordinance, waiting
list and waiting time management in endoscopy unit, smart hospital
support — Corporate Queue Management System and smart robots, and
firewall security and demilitarised zone controls. In planning for 2024-25,
the Committee took part in prioritising areas for internal audits and
approved the focus areas for internal audits in 2024-25.

Jointly with the Finance Committee, the Committee reviewed and endorsed
HA's draft audited financial statements for 2022-23. The Committee
considered reports from the external auditor on 2022-23 internal
control matters, results of the external auditor’s risk assessment of
HA and 2023-24 financial statement audit work plan. The Committee
also reviewed the evaluation results over the performance of external
auditor of HA for the financial year of 2022-23.

For risk management, the Committee oversaw implementation of HA's
organisation-wide risk management systems across HA. In February
2024, the Committee examined the annual Key Organisation-wide Risk
Report 2024 and commented on the planned mitigation actions for
the 13 key risks, which were consolidated from functional risk reports
reviewed by the concerned functional committees during December
2023 to February 2024. During the year, the Committee deliberated
on risk management reports on specific areas, including service
capacity, manpower shortage, data privacy protection, cybersecurity,
IT skills shortfall, capital works, infection and infection control,
Clinical Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Programmes, the Electronic
Health Record Programme and the Blood Bank Computing System.
The Committee also received respective reports on compliance with
HA related ordinances, management of integrity risk and handling of
whistleblowing cases in HA.

On internal control, the Committee received implementation progress
update on the recommendations of the Corruption Prevention Department
of the Independent Commission Against Corruption on administration of
PPP Programmes for healthcare services, and letting and administration
of service contracts. The Committee also received an update on
the implementation of HA's Code of Conduct and the internal audit
recommendations on Special Rental Allowance.

2023-24 FEITEBIR

f£2023-24FF REGHBRANRGH  EiR
EREREER (BER) WABEBE &
BHEABERYBRREANET ARER
BERERERE R ARE RO

EBERNBETBENE ZESWHAR
HEETEIRRAEEER TREFHBBE
ERONFERE  URBEREREFONFE
BE - -REREPImEBE A BarEIANE
ZERNMENRETS FARMNEIEN
MEARBREEEERHBEEN TR
IS BEXEABRRNEE S EREER
R IRTS B IR - BASEER R AT E MEAC BRI
2 BEERAERESN MRS EEER
HEEEEE ETXNEE BT ERE
REBYITERGR  (EREMGH) GRER-
ARERGWIEBEIRREREE RS
SERNERZEERGNESEBRA ARS
ARG 22 2 ANPEBER ROPEH] o 3L 2024-25 F
EEFTIENRE ZEG2ETEANMET
BB SRS - WHERZ 2024-25 FEAELESEY
BRI -

ZEenBEPHLEeNBFEeR L FHX
BEER 2022-23 FELEZH T T MKR A
- RERNEMINEZ AN 2022-23 FE
BREFEELNRE BERRRGE
VAR 2023-24 SFE R BImRETTIEE] -
ZEEMRREERINEZEERN 2022-23 Bt
HEERBRHEER

ERBREREFN ZEERETREEET
R BREREIEET - ZEERN 2
EH 2024 FEREZTERRRE  EH
HEZEER 2023 F 12 AF 2024 &F
EITEEBERBRREREMN 13 EAEZR
B ZESNMRBRNERTEREER -F
N ZESEZRZHBETHENRREIER
L BEREEASE ATFER LBEER
B @BigL s BT SR  EATE
R MBS - AFLEHIEE ETREE
WHEEEINMETE RS T8 MKE AR
BEREMEARET REARK K EIE SRR
AZMFRE -

N St
J0 IR o

ERAREETH RESRABERERAENLE
Bi5RBEERE NS HIEEEE M
SRS A K EIRIRAE R W SAETT
EERE: WHHABETEERTRTAM
AEBERT LRI SRR AT IR B AR AT E 2
HE -
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Development and Works Committee

ITRARESS

Membership List

MERE

Chairman: Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP

FE: BB L

Members : Dr CHAN Man-wai

KB : PR (@18 +
Mr Nelson CHENG Wai-hung
BRI RAE

Mr Sam HUI Chark-shum, JP

[representing the Permanent Secretary for Health]
R

[REBEEERBEANER]

Mr Anthony HUI Tai-shun

FFARHTE

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
SN RRE TTH AR

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WaEE

Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS
MARRBL L

Mr Ricky LEUNG Wing-kee

Ir Vincent TONG Wing-shing, BBS
KR SE A

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
LESEE

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS
kIR

Mr Rick TSUI Hin-fai

REBEEE

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP
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Terms of Reference

1. Inthe context of the portfolio of capital works under the Hospital Authority,
including the two Hospital Development Plans, advise on the strategic
direction and policies related to the planning, land matters, design for
excellence, standardisation, works-related tender requirements, forms
of contract, cost management and construction as well as the building
operation and maintenance of Hospital Authority facilities;

2. Monitor the implementation of works-related facilities management,
including those related actions under The Review Committee on
Medical Equipment and Facility Maintenance (June 2023) and capital
projects in the Hospital Authority, including financial monitoring;

3. Advise on the adoption of better practices, industry innovations and
environmental protection initiatives of capital projects and works-
related facilities management in the Hospital Authority; and

4. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to works-related facilities management and capital
projects in the Hospital Authority under the purview of the Committee.

Focus of Work in 2023-24

In November 2023, the Hospital Authority (HA) Board upgraded the
Capital Works Subcommittee (formerly a sub-committee under the
Supporting Services Development Committee to a separate Functional
Committee (named Development and Works Committee (DWC)) to serve
as a dedicated platform with construction and development experts to
focus on planning and delivery of major and minor capital works as well
as facility management in HA. DWC was established on 1 January 2024.
The former Capital Planning Department now renamed as Development
and Works Division on 6 March 2024 with a new director, reports to
DWC. DWC met for the first time on 29 January 2024.

To support the effective and efficient operation of DWC, designated
work groups were formed under DWC to focus on specific projects and
initiatives. In 2023-24, 18 workshop meetings were held to review the
projects under the First Hospital Development Plan (HDP), identify
lessons learnt and to develop works disciplines for the Second HDP.

The Committee received reports from the management on the
implementation progress and financial position of major capital works and
minor works projects. It kept a close watch on works-related incidents and
related remedial measures. The Committee also received the progress
update of the action plan to implement the facility maintenance related
recommendations of the Review Committee on Medical Equipment and
Facility Maintenance. Moreover, the Committee reviewed the annual capital
expenditure planning for 2023-24 and endorsed the plan for 2024-25, which
covered major capital works projects for development of public hospital
services and minor works projects for facilities improvement.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management
framework, the Committee assessed the risks relating to capital works
and minor works projects in 2024, including the effectiveness of risk
mitigation measures taken in 2023, risks anticipated for 2024 and the
planned actions, covering consultant and contractor performance,
construction safety and in-house capacity and capability.
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Executive Committee

THZEES®
Membership List
REHE
Chairman: Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
FE: SRR
Members : Mr CHAN Wing-kai
KE : BRoKfE A4
Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP
HEaL T
The Hon Duncan CHIU
ERER T4

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
SRR 7T

Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS (from 1.1.2024)
MRRE L+ (#2024 F1 A1 HE)

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
ZIERHIR

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BB EE

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESEE

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS

IR

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
B AR
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Terms of Reference

L

Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on long-term
strategy and planning, risk management, corporate governance,
performance management and succession planning, and facilitate
the Board in discharging its responsibilities in this regard.

Advise on Board meeting agendaitems proposed by the Management
including an annual forward looking agenda and key matters raised
by Functional Committee Chairmen.

Serve as a forum for the HA Chairman, Functional Committee
Chairmen and the HA Chief Executive to consider major matters
relating to the leadership and oversight of the HA.

Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure
and processes including the respective terms of reference; oversee
their annual self-assessments; and advise the Board on the
appointment of chairmen, vice-chairmen and co-opted members of
the Functional Committees.

Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of the
HA Head Office and its Divisions.

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff

matters:

(@) advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b) advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief Executives
and Directors of Divisions;

(c) approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and contract
variation as well as lateral transfer / job rotation of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(d) approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration
changes and contract variation as well as lateral transfer / job
rotation of Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions; and

(e) review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of
Division and Cluster Chief Executives.

Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in
accordance with HA's Emergency Contingency Plan (supplemented
by a senior official of the Health Bureau when meeting as EEC).

Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the Executive Committee (EC) met 11 times to discuss and
consider various matters of strategic importance as well as policies and
directions of the Hospital Authority (HA). As approved by the HA Board
in December 2019, a Task Group on Sustainability (TG), which was a
dedicated group formed by the HA Board with wide participation from
Board Members, was set up under EC to lead and steer discussions of
HA sustainability issues. In the past year, TG continued to brainstorm
on HA's major sustainability issues, steer and lead the management to
formulate and implement various strategies and initiatives to cope with
the sustainability challenges faced by HA, and to enhance performance
and efficiency of HA in its use of resources for continuous improvement.
Progress report on the work of TG and implementation of the action plans
were regularly reported to EC for steering and monitoring.
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During the year, EC considered and supported a wide range of strategic
initiatives, which included HA's strategies in attracting and recruiting
non-locally trained doctors; strategic direction and participation in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA) development
such as various collaboration initiatives with GBA for two-way training and
exchange of talents and expertise; formation of the Review Committee
on Medical Equipment and Facility Maintenance to enhance the safety of
patients, staff and visitors in hospitals; implementation of enhancement
measures led by designated Hospital Governing Committee Task Groups on
Enhancing Patient-centric Services; enhancement measures on donation
management; strengthening of clinical research in HA; development of
expertise to support Genetic and Genomic Services in HA; restructuring
of retirement benefit schemes of HA; reorganisation of HA Head Office
(HAHO) structure including the establishment of a new division named as
the Development and Works Division to lead and steer the planning and
implementation of major and minor capital works projects in HA, etc.

Other strategic matters considered by EC included the formulation of HA
Budget and Annual Plan for 2024-25; HA's Action Items under The Chief
Executive's 2022 and 2023 Policy Addresses; implementation of Hospital
Development Plan; development of integrated Chinese-Western Medicine
service in HA, and HA's initiatives to dovetail with the development of
Chinese medicine under the direction of the Government. EC also noted
the progress on the establishment of a new body corporate under HA
to explore IT service collaborations and service provision in GBA; the
latest development on the HA Academy; HA's strategy and measures
taken to continuously enhance HA's cybersecurity; review of HA's fees
and charges, etc.

EC determined a wide range of matters concerning HA's talent management,
including the appointment and remuneration matters of senior executives
at HAHO and clusters, career posting and succession of senior executives,
reports on staff complaints against senior executives, etc.

Internally for the Board, EC reviewed the “HA Board - Code of Corporate
Governance Practices” to drive for continuous improvement in corporate
governance; and the approval mechanism and workflow in handling
applications for business travel outside Hong Kong and acceptance of
related sponsorship by the Board. EC also endorsed the restructuring
of the HA Board's Committees through upgrading the Capital Works
Subcommittee under the Supporting Services Development Committee
to a designated functional committee named as the Development and
Works Committee to focus on planning and delivery of major capital
works and other works related subjects. Moreover, EC regularly reviewed
succession planning for the Board's Committees, and membership
matters relating to Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) and Regional
Advisory Committees. It received annual summary report on activities
and feedbacks of HGCs.

EC regularly advised on agendas of Board meetings as proposed by the
management.
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Emergency Executive Committee
ESESRERSS

Membership List
MERE

Chairman: Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP

xFFE: (In his absence, the Emergency Executive Committee chairmanship should be elected

among its standing members)

SEMRl A

(EETHE - B2 EEREZBENE/ERE FEMKETEL)

Members: Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP
K& : Permanent Secretary for Health
(or his nominated representative)
BRIAT £
BNEEREEINER
(BAZFEARK)
Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BRAKESAE

Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP
gEaxt

The Hon Duncan CHIU
EER LA

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
SRR E TS

Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS (from 1.1.2024)
MARREZ L (F 2024 F1H1HiE)

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
LIEREIE

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BOXBEE

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESRE

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS
%R

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
BXAESTE

Note:

The Emergency Executive Committee will automatically be called into action
when the HA activates the Tier-three Strategic Response to a major incident,
which is defined as an incident with prolonged and territory-wide implications,
such as the Serious Level (S2) or Emergency Level Response to influenza
pandemic.
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Terms of Reference

1. To act for the Hospital Authority Board and exercise its powers and
functions, including:
(@) altering, amending or overriding existing Hospital Authority
policies, standards, guidelines and procedures; and
(b) establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle
particular matters at hand;

2. To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing Hospital
Authority in emergency situation;

3. To approve the strategies and policies for managing the emergency
formulated by the Hospital Authority Central Command Committee, and
monitor implementation progress in all HA hospitals and institutions;

4. To coordinate activities of the other Hospital Authority committees
including Hospital Governing Committees;

5. To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages
to key stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the
public; and

6. To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of regular
reports to Hospital Authority Members as soon as practicable.

Focus of Work in 2023-24

For responding to the COVID-19 epidemic, the Emergency Executive
Committee (EEC) was activated on 6 January 2020 in accordance with the
Hospital Authority (HA) Response Plan for Major Incident. Under its terms of
reference, EEC acted for the Board and exercised its powers and functions
including, inter alia, altering, amending and overriding existing HA policies,
standards, guidelines and procedures in order to deal with emergencies.

Following the Government’s announcement on the lowering of the response
level under the Preparedness and Response Plan for Novel Infectious
Disease of Public Health Significance from the Emergency to Alert level
with effect from 30 May 2023, HA correspondingly lowered the response
level in all public hospitals from “Emergency” to “Alert” level. EEC was then
deactivated on the same day.

No meeting was convened in 2023-24.
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Finance Committee
MEEES
Membership List
HRERE

Chairman:

XfE

Members:

MA :

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
oKL A

The Hon Duncan CHIU
ESZAR A

Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP
Permanent Secretary for Health /

Mr Sam HUI Chark-shum, JP (from 11.4.2023)
[representing the Permanent Secretary for Health]
BRILFE S

BEELEETNER/

PR (A 2023 F 4 A 11 A#)
[REXEBEFEBEENER]

Ms Anita FUNG Yuen-mei, BBS, JP

IS 2+

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi, JP

mEEL L

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
IR TTIH AR

Mr Aaron LIU Kong-cheung, JP /
Ms Jessica LEE Wing-tung (up to 3.3.2024) /
Miss Pinky WONG Nga-ping (from 4.3.2024)

[representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury]

BEMRLE/

kLt (BE2024F3H3H8)/
B+ (f 2024 F 3 A 4 HAE)
[(REXIEEBRERBER]

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BRSSEE
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of the
Hospital Authority Corporate Plan and Annual Plan;

2. Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning, control,
performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the Hospital Authority;

3. Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including
investment, business and insurance;

4. Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation policies;

5. Advise and recommend to the Hospital Authority on the financial
statements (audited and unaudited) of the Hospital Authority;

6. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident
Fund Scheme on financial and control related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate;

7. Monitor the financial position of the Hospital Authority; and

8. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other relevant areas
contributing to the financial risk profile of the Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the Committee met seven times to assist the Hospital Authority
(HA) Board in ensuring proper stewardship and effective use of public funds
through making recommendations to the Board on various finance related
matters for the Authority.

In support of the corporate strategy and services development of HA, the
Committee noted the Government's funding arrangement for HA under
the third triennium funding cycle starting from 2024-25, the establishment
of a Task Force on Performance and Efficiency and three designated
Working Groups in HA to drive its performance and efficiency, and the
development of Total Patient Journey Costing. On HA's annual service and
resource planning, the Committee examined the proposed 2024-25 HA
budget, resource allocation and future financial arrangement, with due
consideration to the economic outlook and the growing service demand.

Jointly with the Human Resources Committee (HRC), the Committee
received the 2022-23 Operation Report of the HA Provident Fund Scheme
(HAPFS) and the key recommendations made by the Task Force for
Review on Retirement Benefits Schemes of HA on enhancing HAPFS,
such as the introduction of Hong Kong Dollar Time Deposits Fund and
increasing fund switching frequency, and endorsed the restructuring of the
retirement benefits schemes of HA with an aim to enhance the governance,
operations and sustainability of both HAPFS and HA Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme. A study was also proposed to be conducted to draw up a
proposal for the future development of the retirement benefits schemes
of HA. Apart from receiving progress update on the Enhanced Home Loan
Interest Subsidy Scheme (HLISS), the Committee deliberated on the future
development of the Scheme at the joint meetings with HRC.

182 Hospital Authority Annual Report 8B B2/ F 3k 2023-2024

s

1 HEREERBEZERSIMEFIIEN
MBI E RHERREHES:

2. HEREERNMBRE  RE KRR B
RNERSESE  RESRRIELERE:

3. BMAEMKEE BREKRE EBLREN
BRAES RHER

4 BRERDEBGRIREER MMELES:

5. MEBREEROMTHRR(EEZMALSE
%) MBREERREERRELEZ:

6. MUBLRENBEELRELRERERHAE
TEEMEREARBHE YHEEERIK
RIEEP & IR BF

7. EBERBREEBNHMBARN &

8. MERETRBUBEERLMIIBAHAE
BRI T HESARNAR ARER
EERERNEE -

2023-24 FEITEBIR

£2023-24FE  ZEGHARLRSE 5t
EREER(BERMNUKIEEEERNEER
RetEhiEs  MPASHRERLZEEEMEN
EADE -

RAXEBERNBRRBLRGEE £88
AT EE 2024-25 FE AN E = F=F
BAERTHEERNBRLH EBERNX
SRB KRB BE/ME R = EEE TIE/ME B
RARBARE - ARRABRK AR 2
& - HEBEERNFRERELERRETH - &

EEBRRBER 2024-25 FERE - BRS
RENMARRI B L HER  EFEEBEEAR

AN DA FRAS K -

EEANERZEGHNBEE=ZL Z88
WHIEE R AED TS 2022-23 FEEFR
SUREE RERARENG B A/ MELE
LEERABSF LM ERER - Hl13]
ABTTEMFERES RIENES BN - I
BEEREERNVENENTE - ANREE
RrEEIMREERBIIERE S ENE
A BRI REN - SR/ MATEEEER
EITHITE - BER] R RENIET IO R KBRS
- ZEERTHHMEIEXENEINEH
EEREI  TEEANERZEENHES
& CRTam A Bt BlMRIRER



APPENDIX 3
Bié% 3

In respect of monitoring of HA's financial position and financial performance,
the Committee received regular financial reports and reviewed HA's
preliminary financial position for 2022-23 and mid-year financial outturn
for 2023-24, and considered matters relating to other key financial
performance indicators, waivers and write-off of hospital fees and charges
and debt management of HA and the latest electronic payment initiatives
for settlement of hospital fees of HA. On accountability reporting, the
Committee, jointly with the Audit and Risk Committee, reviewed and
endorsed HA's draft audited financial statements for 2022-23 and endorsed
the accounting policy for funding designated for Enhanced HLISS. The
Committee also considered and endorsed the 2022-23 audited financial
statements / accounts for a number of designated programmes undertaken
by HA, including the Samaritan Fund, the Community Care Fund Medical
Assistance Programmes, the HA Charitable Foundation, the HA Public-
Private Partnership (PPP) Fund, the minor works funded under the Capital
Works Reserve Fund, the development of Clinical Services Improvement
Projects for the Department of Health and the territory-wide Electronic
Health Record Programme.

With the assistance of its Treasury Panel (TP), the Committee
considered matters related to HA's treasury management and
operations, investment performance and related initiatives via regular
progress reports. Key matters considered by the Committee covered
the arrangement related to the placements with the Exchange Fund
for both PPP Fund and HLISS Fund to support operations, addition of
new approved banks of HA, arrangement for custody services as well as
payroll and collection services, and appointments to TP. For financial
risk management, the Committee reviewed and endorsed the 2024-25
insurance renewal approach and direction of HA. In accordance with
the HA organisation-wide risk management framework, the Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions on finance matters
taken in 2023, and proactively assessed key financial risks anticipated
for 2024 and considered corresponding action plans.

The Committee also reviewed the annual work plan of the Finance Division
to guide the effective and efficient functioning of various finance related
matters of HA.
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Human Resources Committee

ADERZES

Membership List

MERE

Chairman: Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP

FE: BEart

Vice-Chairman: Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee

BERF : EREHIR

Members : Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP (up to 31.1.2024)
RE : BRR o %i% (B 2024 461 A 31 A)

Ms Ellen CHAN Sheung-man

[representing the Permanent Secretary for Health]
PRt

[RRBHEEBEEIRER]

Prof CHAN Wai-yee

PRIE I

Prof Philip CHIU Wai-yan (from 20.3.2024)
B HUR (B 2024 £ 3 A 20 H#E)

Ms Maisy HO Chiu-ha, BBS, JP
BB+

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
DINEE A AR

Dr LEUNG Wing-cheong

SIS, B ER
2Z2xEE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung (up to 27.9.2023)
B IERBUN (B2 2023 F 9 A 27 H)
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Terms of Reference
1. Advise on manpower planning;
2. Advise on staff training and development matters;

3. Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies and related issues;

4. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on the terms and conditions of employment for staff;

5. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on staff pay awards and overall staffing structure;

6. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on any other staff related matters;

7. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to human resources management;

8. Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the Hospital
Authority as and when necessary; and

9. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on member and communication related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate.

Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the Committee met nine times (including three joint meetings
with the Finance Committee) to discuss and consider various human
resources (HR) matters of the Hospital Authority (HA).

The Committee considered and advised on a variety of HR initiatives
for attracting and retaining talents in HA, including enhancements
in recruiting and retaining non-locally trained doctors; development
of healthcare talent exchange programmes with the Mainland and
overseas countries; introduction of a special employment package
for visiting doctors from Macao; and implementation of enhanced and
new measures for improving manpower supply, retaining and nurturing
nurses, allied health professionals and supporting staff. The Committee
alsoendorsed the proposed creation of two new grades of Bioinformatics
and Genetic Counselling for developing expertise to support the delivery
of genetic and genomic services in HA; and the proposed establishment
of a dedicated division, namely the Development and Works Division, to
enhance the capacity of the HA's capital project team and strengthening
its manpower in order to better deliver the two Hospital Development
Plans and other works projects. In June 2023, the Committee endorsed
in principle that HA should follow the 2023-24 Civil Service Annual Pay
Adjustment for eligible HA employees.
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The Committee also endorsed various initiatives for augmenting manpower
to cope with the service demand surge and specific pressure areas in HA.
These included the implementation of a team-based piece rate remuneration
scheme to cope with the increasing service demand in elective cataract
operations and drive sustainability in Ophthalmology services; refinements
to the Special Scheme for Radiologists which aimed to provide extra
incentive with case-based remuneration to help unleashing workforce to
increase reporting capacity; enhancement of locum recruitment via creation
of a new rank of Consultant Specialist (Locum) and the offer of a higher pay
for experienced locum specialists; and planning of a special scheme for
specialists performing emergency interventions during off site call periods
or unsocial hours.

On staff development and succession planning in HA, the Committee
endorsed the proposed Health Services Management Elite Development
Programme which aimed at developing university graduates / young
management elites to become future leaders / senior executives of HA. It
also supported the updated permanent terms employment arrangement
for Ward Manager and senior management staff in HA; enhancement
of arrangements for selection board, staff transfer and replacement;
and revision to the undertaking arrangements for training outside Hong
Kong. In 2023-24, the Committee received three reports from the Central
Training and Development Committee before the latter ceased its operation
following the establishment of the HA Academy in 2023; and continued to
adopt training key performance indicators (KPls) for regular review along
with the quarterly review of other HR KPIs on manpower situation and staff
wellness.

On staff benefits and well-being, the Committee endorsed the restructuring
of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme (HAPFS) and Hospital
Authority Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (HAMPFS) in response to
the recommendations of the Task Force for Review on Retirement Benefits
Schemes of HA in March 2024, and monitored the implementation progress
of the Enhanced Home Loan Interest Subsidy Scheme. It also considered the
key findings of the HA Focused Staff Survey conducted on junior nurses and
allied health professionals in 2023 and various staff engagement initiatives
to foster communication, recognition, professionalism and work-life balance
in HA. The Committee also acknowledged the enhanced heat stress
management and mitigating measures implemented in HA in response to
the Guidance Notes on Prevention of Heat Stroke at Work and Heat Stress at
Work Warning issued by the Labour Department in May 2023.

To address the evolving needs of HA and hence the need to modernise its HR
policies, the Committee received updates on the progress in taking forward
the recommendations from the Task Force on Human Resources Policy
Review and modernisation of HR services via the Human Resources Service
Centre. The Committee also endorsed the proposal of streamlining the
application of business travel and training outside Hong Kong, and supported
the introduction of marriage leave and enhancement of compassionate leave
for HA employees.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee considered the People Resources Risk Assessment by
reviewing the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken on HR front in
2023, and proactively assessed HR risks anticipated for 2024 and considered
the corresponding action plans. It also received annual reports on a wide
range of HR-related matters, including the HAPFS Annual Operation Report,
Annual Report on HAMPFS, Annual Report on Occupational Safety and
Health and Workplace Violence, Report on Staff Complaints Received in
2022, as well as the Whistleblowing Report 2022.
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Information Technology Services Committee

BN RBEES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman: The Hon Duncan CHIU
XfE ESZER A

Members: Mr CHAN Wing-kai

HKE : BRoK =S4
Mr Raymond CHENG Siu-hong
B/ NEREE

Prof Herbert CHIA Pun-kok, JP
BHmEHE

Ms Anita FUNG Yuen-mei, BBS, JP
VS =R

Mr Sam HUI Chark-shum, JP (from 11.4.2023)
Deputy Secretary for Health 1

FRRRRSTAE (B 2023 F 4 A 11 AHEE)
BEEREINER]

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
SINPEE TTEAREL

Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS
MRREBRL

Prof LAU Chak-sing, BBS, JP
22 EHUR

Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun (from 1.12.2023)
WBFRE L (A 2023 F 12 A 1 A#E)

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP

BB L

Ir Tony WONG Chi-kwong, JP
Government Chief Information Officer Nete
mENEE

BT & R R AREE

Note:
The title of Government Chief Information Officer has been changed to
Commissioner for Digital Policy with effect from 25 July 2024.
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Advise and make recommendations on IT strategy, IT planning and
enterprise architecture;

Endorse, advise and make recommendations on Annual Work Plan
of Hospital Authority Information Technology & Health Informatics
Division, including IT Block Vote submission;

Receive performance and progress reports on IT service development
and management, project management and system delivery, and
technical operations;

Advise on finance and sourcing, and IT talent management or any
other IT-related matters put forward by the management;

Consider matters relating torisk, risk management and risk mitigation

relevant to IT across Hospital Authority; and

Receive reports from Information Technology Technical Advisory
Sub-committee.
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Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the Committee met four times to discuss issues relating to the
strategic development and implementation of information technology (IT)
systems in the Hospital Authority (HA). During the period, the Committee
received updates on various key IT strategies and initiatives, including
IT product and operating model transformation from project-based to
product-centric approach and adoption of the HA Lean Enterprise Agile
Product model; adoption of the Objective and Key Result framework for IT
performance management; HA's refined Artificial Intelligence (Al) strategy
to accelerate Al initiatives and outcomes; strategic execution framework
for the implementation of the Digital Health Platform of HA; the realisation
of the Smart Hospital Strategy and outcomes of Smart Hospital projects;
the latest cybersecurity landscape and HA's cyber defence measures; the
IT spin off initiative; and the organisation-wide IT staff transformation being
implemented to facilitate IT product transformation and foster a lean and
product-centric culture. The Committee also supported the arrangement
proposed by the Health Bureau and the Department of Health (DH) for HA
to continue the provision of system operation, support and maintenance
services for the Clinical Information Management System Stage Il (CIMS2)
for DH as technical agency for 2026-27 and onwards.

On plans to meet the growing demand for IT systems to support the
operation of HA, the Committee endorsed the IT Block Vote Submission for
2024-25. The Committee also approved the 2024-25 Annual Work Plan of
the IT and Health Informatics Division (IT&HID), which incorporated the main
focus areas to sustain services, achieve key IT targets and the resultant
budget and manpower requirements.

To fulfil its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the
implementation of the IT&HID Annual Work Plan by considering, amongst
others, the performance and status reports of respective IT functions.
Among the standing agenda items were regular progress updates on
various IT projects relating to HA's own services, including clinical
systems related projects; HA Go related projects; smart hospital related
projects; Al and Data Analytics related projects; as well as IT projects
relating to agency services for the Government, such as Electronic
Health Record (eHR) Systems related projects; CIMS2 projects; and
Chinese Medicine Information System projects. The Committee also
endorsed the draft audited accounts related to eHR Programme and the
Clinical Services Improvement Projects for DH in which HA was acted
as technical agent. In addition, in accordance with the HA organisation-
wide risk management framework, the Committee considered the key
risks identified in the IT Operational Risk Assessment 2024 and the
management actions taken during 2023 and planned for 2024 onwards.

The Committee received regular progress reports from the Information
Technology Technical Advisory Subcommittee (ITTASC), a subcommittee
formed under the Committee to advise on major IT initiatives and IT technical
matters proposed for implementation in HA, and approved appointments of
ITTASC membership.
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Main Tender Board

HRREZEES
Membership List
MERE

Chairman:

FE:

Vice-Chairmen:

BIERE

Ex-officio members:

ERARE

Members :
RE :

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
ZEBHIX

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
R FTHE

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
MEER1E e A4

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
(or his nominated representative)
DN E TTHARE

(TTR AR XA A FK)

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu, Director (Finance)
(or her nominated representative)
BORE A+ AR

(B REXAZERR)

Two of the following members on rotation:

UTEPMUBmERS :

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP (up to 31.1.2024)
PRR = 20% (Bl % 2024 61 A 31 H)

Mr Lawrence CHAN Man-yiu
BRI A4

Prof CHAN Wai-yee
FRIZEHUX

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai

RIEE AL

Prof Philip CHIU Wai-yan (from 27.2.2024)
HE{CHUR (B 2024 F 2 A 27 HAE)
Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BEEEHUX

Ms Anita FUNG Yuen-mei, BBS, JP
V=R

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP

AR ST

Ms Maisy HO Chiu-ha, BBS, JP
fBEL

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi, JP
WHEELT

Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP (from 5.6.2023)
RIRESHE (A 2023 F 6 A5 HEE)

Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS (up to 31.12.2023)
MARREBZ L (BE 2023412 31 H)

Prof LAU Chak-sing, BBS, JP
ZEEHIK

Dr LAU Chau-ming
El VA
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Dr James LAU Chi-wang, BBS, JP
BEREL

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin
REHBELE

Dr LEUNG Wing-cheong
RKEE

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
RaEkst

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
ERFEHIR

Mr Alec TONG Chi-chiu

Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, BBS, MH, JP
BB L

Ir Vincent TONG Wing-shing, BBS
R ND B

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
BB L

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP
B Piad

Dr Frederick YIP Yeung-fai
TSt
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Terms of Reference

1. To consider and approve tenders and contract variations in the
Hospital Authority in accordance with the delegation of authority
limits approved by the Board, including:

(@) To review and assess the recommendations made by the
assessment panel;

(b) Toreview the procedures and criteria adopted by the assessment
panel in the course of its selection; and

(c) To approve the selection made by the assessment panel after
satisfying itself that (a) and (b) are in order and such approval
should be final.

2. To receive management reporting of acceptance of offer approved
in the Head Office by a Director in exercising Special Authority for
Urgent Direct Purchase.

Note:

Under the prevailing Hospital Authority Procurement and Materials Management
Manual approved by the Board, the schedule of authority limits in respect of the
Main Tender Board includes approval of tender exceeding $1.5 million centrally
coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office, or exceeding $4.5 million for those
arranged by the clusters / hospitals.

Focus of Work in 2023-24

The Main Tender Board (MTB) is organised into two Tender Boards,
each meeting once a month, with MTB (1) mainly focusing on tenders for
pharmaceutical products and medical consumables, while MTB (2) on
tenders of other subjects (e.g. medical equipment, contract services,
consultancies, etc.). In 2023-24, MTB considered some 750 papers on
procurement of various supplies and services, each at a value over $1.5
million for the Hospital Authority (HA) Head Office, or over $4.5 million
for clusters and hospitals. Tenders for procurement of supplies mainly
covered purchases of pharmaceutical products, medical devices, medical
and laboratory equipment as well as their consumables, whereas service
tenders were mainly related to hospital supporting services, maintenance
of medical and laboratory equipment, laboratory services as well as
information technology systems and services. Capital works tenders mainly
involved hospital redevelopment projects and minor works improvements
for maintenance of hospital premises.

To strengthen MTB's governance on HA's performance in procurement
related areas, an annual briefing was conducted to provide MTB Members
with an overview of HA's procurement policies and strategies, a summary of
the work of MTB, as well as analyses of tenders / contracts approved by MTB
in the preceding financial year. The briefing also served as an orientation to
new Members and annual meet-up for Members to exchange views on the
work of MTB.
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Medical Services Development Committee

ERRBRRZES

Membership List

REHE

Chairman: Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS
EE BT

Vice-Chairman: Prof CHAN Wai-yee

EIERE BRIZEHIX

Members : Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP
K& : Permanent Secretary for Health

BRIAS Se 4

B REINER

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP (up to 31.1.2024)
PRERSeHUX (B2 2024 F1 A 31 H)

Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BRKIESE &

Prof Philip CHIU Wai-yan (from 20.3.2024)
HECHIR (B 2024 F 3 A 20 H#E)

Ms Maisy HO Chiu-ha, BBS, JP (up to 15.1.2024)
Bt (B2 2024 F 1 H15H)

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
IR B A TR AR

Dr Ronald LAM Man-kin, JP
Director of Health
MRS 4

HEEER

Prof LAU Chak-sing, BBS, JP
2= B2

Mr Aaron LIU Kong-cheung, JP /

Ms Jessica LEE Wing-tung (up to 3.3.2024) /

Miss Pinky WONG Nga-ping (from 4.3.2024)

[representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury]
BREMSE/

T (B 2024 F3 A3 H)/

EHESF L+ (B 2024 F 3 A 4 A#E)
[IRFZEEFHERERBER]

Dr LEUNG Wing-cheong
RKEE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
Bk

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
BB

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
XS
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Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing needs
of the community in respect of clinical services provided by public
hospitals and institutions;

Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies, directions
and strategies relating to the provision, planning and development
of the public hospitals and related services, having regard to the
availability of technology, staff and other resources and the need
to provide a patient-centred, outcome-focused quality healthcare
service by a knowledge-based organisation;

Consider and make recommendations on the overall priorities for the
planning and development of the public hospitals and related services
in order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available resources;

Consider, review and make recommendations on any other matters
related to the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to medical services development; and

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:

(a) approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund, on
the recommendation of the Management Committee of the
Samaritan Fund;

(b) approve the scope of coverage of the Hospital Authority
Public-Private Partnership Fund, on the recommendation of
the Management Committee for the Hospital Authority Public-
Private Partnership Fund and Clinical Public-Private Partnership
Programmes; and

(c) approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on
financial provisions.
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Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the Committee met five times to discuss and consider matters
relating to the planning, development and management of clinical services
of the Hospital Authority (HA).

Along the corporate strategy and planned future service directions of HA,
the Committee considered the formulation of Clinical Services Plan for
Kowloon Central Cluster (Phase 3) in relation to the relocation of most of
the services of Queen Elizabeth Hospital to the New Acute Hospital at Kai
Tak Development Area upon its completion. The Committee also noted
the phased commissioning of medical services under the redevelopment
of Kwong Wah Hospital and progress report of the commissioning of the
Central Government-Aided Emergency Hospital.

For clinical services development, the Committee had discussed
the genetic and genomic services development in HA and the related
manpower development plan, as well as the development of telehealth
and the implementation framework of clinical artificial intelligence
in HA. During the period, the Committee also deliberated on the
establishment of breastmilk bank, Integrated Cardiovascular Disease
Centre and Neuroscience Centre and uncommon disorder registry in HA;
arrangements for proton beam therapy (PBT) to HA indicated paediatric
cancer patients; and enhancements on cardiac services. The Committee
also received updates on organ transplant and donation services,
medication collection and delivery services in HA and commissioning
plan of Hong Kong Poison Control Centre. The Committee noted the
recommendations from the Advisory Committee on Mental Health on
mental health services enhancement as well as the follow-up action
plan for the enhanced measures proposed by the Government in relation
to HA. In relation to Chinese medicine, the Committee received progress
report of the Subcommittee on Chinese Medicine formed under the
Committee, and the latest development of Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine Programme. The Committee also considered the service
collaboration between HA and the Gleneagles Hospital and various
clinical Public-Private Partnership Programmes, which aimed to share
out demand with the private sector and enhance patient choices.

The Committee considered and deliberated on a wide range of clinical
management issues, including approval of new drugs / indications, non-drug
items to be covered by the Samaritan Fund (SF) in 2023-24 and arrangements
for PBT in HA (under the collaboration with a private hospital) to the coverage
of SF for HA paediatric cancer patients; specialist outpatient clinic new case
waiting time management; and service sustainability in ophthalmology,
given the rising demand for elective cataract operations in HA. On risk
management and risk mitigation, the Committee monitored clinical risk
management through considering the report on patient service and patient
care, which assessed the effectiveness of the risk mitigation actions taken
in 2023, and focused on the risks anticipated for 2024 and the planned
mitigation actions. The Committee also noted the progress of resumption
of hospital accreditation in HA, update on credentialing and defining scope
of clinical practice, and information technology system enhancements to
support Antibiotic Stewardship Programme in HA. Relating to contingencies,
the Committee considered a report on service demand surge preparation,
including various measures to increase the overall capacity to address the
increase in service demand.

The Committee also considered proposals/regular reports on other matters,
including the Controlling Officer's Report in 2023-24 and development /
monitoring / review of clinical service key performance indicators.
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Public Complaints Committee

ABRKRFEES
Membership List
RERE
Chairman:

FE

Vice-Chairman:
BIERE :

Members :

A :

Mr CHAN Wing-kai*
BRAKAES A

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, SBS, JP* (up to 31.12.2023)
TAEIESC A (BE 2023 4F 12 A 31 H)

Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP* (from 1.1.2024)
BIBERE (B 2024 F1A1HE)

Ms Rebecca CHAN Chui-mi

BREB R 2+

Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak

PREEESE

Mr Vincent CHAN Wing-shing, MH

PR SEE

Rev Dr Andrew CHOI Chung-ho

BERRIAD

Dr CHUNG Chin-hung*

ERIBE L

Prof Sylvia FUNG Yuk-kuen, BBS

SR IREIR

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, GBS, MH, JP

FFRE S

Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP (from 5.6.2023 to 31.12.2023)
BIAESE (B 2023F 6 A5 HZ 20234 12 A 31 H)

Mr Joe KWOK Jing-keung, SBS, FSDSM
PERE L

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS, CSDSM

AL E

Mr Daniel LAU Kim-hung

BB A

Mr Peter LEE Shung-tak, BBS, JP (up to 31.12.2023)
RS (BE 2023 F 12 A 31 H)

Prof LI Chi-kong, JP*
FEHE

Mr LIU Sui-biu

Bt

Prof Joseph LUl Cho-ze* (from 1.1.2024)
BRI (2024 F1 A1 H#)
Ms Manbo MAN Bo-lin, MH

NiRERZ T

Mr Simon MOK Sai-man, MH

B REE

Mr Raymond NG Kwok-ming, IDS
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The Hon TANG Fei, MH

BR=EE

Mr Hermes TANG Yi-hoi, SBS, CDSM, CMSM, JP
BLAESEAE

Mr Frederick TONG Kin-sang

ERAESE

Prof William TSANG Wai-nam

s B

Dr WONG Chun-por, JP* (up to 31.12.2023)
THERBE (BE 202312 A 31 H)
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung

HAfER A

Ms Agnes Garman YEH

EREnt

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BoxkELE

*Panel Chairman /NEX &

Terms of Reference

1

The Public Complaints Committee (PCC) is the final complaint
redress and appeal body of the Hospital Authority (HA);

The PCC shall independently:

(@) consider and decide upon complaints from members of the
public who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA/hospital
to which they have initially directed their complaints;

(b) monitor HA's handling of complaints;

Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise
and monitor the HA on the PCC's recommendations and their
implementation;

In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC Complaint
Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended from time to
time; and

The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make
reports to the HA Board and public, including statistics or raising
important issues where applicable.
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Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints
Committee (PCC)

1. The PCC is an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (HA) to
consider appeals made by the public relating to its services. Based
on its Terms of Reference, the following are guidelines set by the
PCC to facilitate the handling of complaints.

2. The PCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(@)

if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA more
than 2 years before the date of the lodging of the complaint,
unless the PCC is satisfied that in the particular circumstances
it is proper to conduct an investigation into such complaint not
made within that period;

if the complaint is made anonymously and / or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent of the
patient, to whom the services were provided, in the lodging of
the complaint (this restriction will not be applicable if the
patient has died or is for any reason unable to act for himself or
herself);

if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or is
being considered by the coroner;

if the complaint relates to a matter for which a specific statutory
complaint procedure exists;

if legal proceedings have been instituted, or the complainant
or the patient concerned has indicated that he/she will institute
legal proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons
who provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall
not entertain any request for compensation);

if the complaint relates to dispute over the established policies
of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in respect of
its services;

if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical
staff pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such scheme
provides for a channel of appeal, for example, the granting of
sick leave under the provisions of the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, Cap. 282;

if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual
matters and commercial matters;

if the PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or vexatious
or is not made in good faith; or

if the complaint, or acomplaint of a substantially similar nature,
has previously been the subject matter of a complaint which
had been decided upon by the PCC.

3. The PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the public
because of the following grounds:

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

@
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the disclosure of legal privileged documents in an open hearing;
the disclosure of personal data in an open hearing;

the PCC is not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

an aggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and
the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions
such as the courts or the Medical Council.
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4. In considering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time to
time obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other experts
relating to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC considers
appropriate, it may also invite the complainant, the patient, the
medical staffs or any other relevant persons to attend an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be
amended from time to time as appropriate.)

Focus of Work in 2023-24

In 2023-24, the PCC held 15 meetings and concluded 233 cases, majority
of cases were alleged against medical services with adverse outcome in
clinical care. While the Committee found that the subject matter of most of
the complaints had been properly dealt with by the hospitals concerned, 14
cases were considered partially substantiated. In addition to the handling
of appeal cases, the Committee also advised on HA's complaint handling
with a view to improving the efficiency and effectiveness of its complaints
system, and make recommendations for system change and improvement
of healthcare services. During the year, the Committee received progress
reports from hospitals and / or Head Office (HO) departments concerned
on their follow-up actions taken arising from PCC's recommendations and
observations, which covered the following major areas:
- Clearer information to patients on clinical procedures / service
guides;
- Enhanced communication with relatives on patients’ critical
conditions;
- Clearer clinical guidance for medical procedures;
- More personalised nursing care procedures in patients’ terminal
stage of conditions; and
- Better documentation of medical records.

Through its Secretariat, the Committee shared important lessons learnt
for safer and better patient services and organised regular complaint
management training for enhancing the skills of hospital's Patient
Relations Officers (PROs) and clinical staff in conflict resolution. To
strengthen collaboration and communication between hospitals and the
Committee, a partnership programme was launched to engage PROs and
clinical leaders to attend PCC meetings.

To keep abreast of HA's key strategies and developments, the Committee
invited HO departments concerned to present development initiatives
and corporate policies. For example, the development of smart hospitals
by leveraging on advanced technology and digital innovations to reshape
the healthcare service model to drive clinical excellence, patient-centred
care and operational efficiency. With a view to enhancing patient / visitor
experience in hospitals, various patient-centric measures were introduced
and implemented in wards and specialist outpatient clinics.

On both internal and external communication, the Committee reported its
work to the HA Board, Regional Advisory Committees and patient groups.
The HA Annual Report on Public Appreciation, Feedback and Complaints
Management was posted on HA website for easy access by the public.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted self-
assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard
to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Staff Appeals Committee

BB FREESE
Membership List
MERE
Chairman: Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, BBS, JP
FE: et
Members: Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP
A : EEaRt
Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
N St
Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, BBS, MH, JP
ST S A

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, SBS, JP (from 1.1.2024)
FHEEEE(H 2024 F1HA1HE)

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP (up to 31.12.2023)
KBRS (BZE 2023 4F 12 A 31 5)

Terms of Reference

1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who have
raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint channels
and who wish to appeal against the decision made.

2. The Committee shall:

(@) consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation
by the management;

(b) direct the appeal cases to be investigated;

(c) have access to all the relevant information required from the
management for making a decision;

(d) ensure that appropriate action is taken; and

(e) reply to the appellant.

-

3. The Committee's decision shall represent the Hospital Authority's
decision and shall be final.

4. The Committee shall make annual reports to the Hospital Authority
Board.

Focus of Work in 2023-24

The Committee serves to consider and decide on appeals from staff
members who have raised a grievance and appeal through the normal
internal complaint channels established in the Hospital Authority (HA)
and who wish to make further appeal against the decision made. The
Committee's decision shall represent HA's decision and shall be final.

In 2023-24, the Committee received two new appeal cases in December

2023 and February 2024. Consideration of the two cases was still in
progress as of the end of 2023-24.
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Supporting Services Development Committee

REBRBEREES

Membership List
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Chairman: Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP (up to 31.12.2023)
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Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS (from 1.1.2024)
MRREL L (2024 F 1 A1 HE)
Me?!aers : Ms Ellen CHAN Sheung-man
A : [representing the Permanent Secretary for Health]

PR+
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Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, JP, Chief Executive
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Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS (up to 31.12.2023)
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Dr James LAU Chi-wang, BBS, JP
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Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS (up to 31.12.2023)
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Ir Vincent TONG Wing-shing, BBS
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Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESRE
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Terms of Reference

(up to 31.12.2023)

1

Advise on the directions and policies related to the development of
Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best
support clinical services delivery in the Hospital Authority;

Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved by
the Hospital Authority Board;

Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of Capital
Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;

Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support Services
such as improvements in supply chain management, equipment
management, strategic outsourcing and public-private-partnership
of non-core functions, and the development of supporting services
for revenue generation;

Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services and
implementation of Capital Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;
and

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to business support services and capital
expenditure projects and other areas under the purview of the
Committee.

(Revised from 1.1.2024)

1

202

Advise on the overall procurement policies, strategies and tendering
procedures for the Hospital Authority;

Advise on the strategic directions and policies related to the planning,
development and management of business support services in the
Hospital Authority;

Advise on the adoption of better practices, industry innovations and
green and sustainable initiatives related to the planning, development
and management of business support services in the Hospital
Authority; and

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and

risk mitigation relevant to business support services in the Hospital
Authority under the purview of the Committee.
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Focus of Work in 2023-24

With the on-going work in the implementation of the First Hospital
Development Plan (HDP) and the planning of the Second HDP that would
amount to a total expenditure of $470 billion, the Board considered
it necessary to establish a new Committee directly under the Board,
namely, the Development and Works Committee (DWC), to supervise
capital projects and on-going facility management of existing hospitals.
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the Supporting Services Development
Committee (the Committee) were revised as from 1 January 2024 to
advise on matters relating to business support services in the Hospital
Authority (HA). The division of work amongst the two committees
allowed focused discussion on both business support services and capital
works related matters at their respective forums. Upon restructuring,
the Committee focused on HA's procurement policy and strategies,
technology and innovation adoption, green hospital development, as well
as planning, development and delivery of business support services in HA.

In 2023-24, the Committee met five times to advise on the directions and
policies related to the development of capital planning, business support
services and pharmaceutical supplies to support clinical service delivery
in HA. Four of the meetings were held before the restructuring and revision
of ToR when both business support services and capital works-related
matters were discussed. An overall report of the Committee during the
session were set out below.

In June 2023, the Review Committee on Medical Equipment and
Facility Maintenance (the Review Committee) issued its report, putting
forward 23 recommendations. HA welcomed the recommendations and
formulated anaction plan. The Committee monitored theimplementation
of the action plan until the restructuring when monitoring of the parts
of the action plan related to facility management went to DWC. The
Committee noted HA's progress of replacing aged equipment and new
purchases in 2023-24 and related planning under the Capital Block Vote
up to 2026-27. The Committee supported HA's initiative to centralise
procurement of medical equipment to achieve efficiency and economy,
proactively source new potential vendors and enhance the resilience of
HA's supply chains. The Committee received an annual report on contracts
with price adjustments approved by the HA management in 2022 under
the “Authorise and Direct” arrangement as delegated by the Main Tender
Board (MTB). To enhance its advisory role on HA's procurement matters
and promptly follow up on policy matters raised at MTB meetings, the
Committee had revisited the linkage between the Committee and MTB,
and made recommendations to enhance their working relationship.

Before the restructuring, the Committee received regular updates
on HA's major capital works projects under the First HDP, and made
suggestions to address the risks identified and challenges encountered
in the implementation process. To pave way for the future planning and
implementation of hospital development / redevelopment projects, the
Committee called on the management to conduct an overall review of the
lessons learnt in the previous and on-going projects. Work groups were
formed under the Capital Works Sub-committee under the Committee to
study the related matters.
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The Committee endorsed the adjustment to HA's annual capital
expenditure plan for 2023-24, taking into account the latest changes,
and the annual audited accounts for minor works projects under the
one-off grant of the Capital Works Reserve Fund. The Committee
suggested HA to revisit the procurement approach for minor works
projects for continuous enhancement, and seek resources to support
minor works projects in the coming five years starting from 2024-25 to
continue with major repairs and asset enhancement. The Committee
was given an overview of the application of smart engineering systems
in major capital works projects. Progress of smart hospital development
and measures to accelerate the adoption of smart hospital products in
hospitals were reported.

After the restructuring, the Committee assessed the risks relating to
business supportservicesand pharmaceutical suppliesinaccordance with
HA's organisation-wide risk management framework. The assessment
included the effectiveness of risk mitigation measures taken in 2023,
risks anticipated for 2024 and the planned actions. Suggestions were
made to further mitigate risks in building and facility management, in
particular on fire safety and flooding risks, and enhance HA's capacity
in the supply of medical gases to cater for possible service interruption
and demand surge in exigencies. The Committee continued to
receive quarterly progress reports on the action plans to implement
the recommendations made by the Review Committee on Medical
Equipment and Facility Maintenance. The Committee suggested HA
to increase manpower provision to strengthen the inspection and
monitoring of medical equipment maintenance, and enhance the
management of maintenance service contractors. The Committee
also advised HA to enhance facility management in a systemic and
risk-based approach with strengthened manpower and wider adoption
of modern technology.
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Membership of Hospital Governing Committees
BREREZEEENE

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
HEB KA1l AT = &b

Chairman: Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
EE: FEFREE
Ex-officio members: Hospltal Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EAKE : Bl B RITRARRSANRE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT TR
Members : Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
KB : BRX &4

Bishop Rev Ben CHANG Chun-wa (up to 31.8.2023)
SRYRIEESE (B1E 2023 F 8 H 31 H)
Mr CHU King-yuen, SBS, MH, JP
RRZEE

Elder Dr Simon FUNG Siu-hung
PR Z

Rev Canon the Hon Peter Douglas KOON Ho-ming, BBS, JP
EEISEBURED

Prof Simon KWAN Shui-man

B3 IR

Mr LAM Yick-kuen, MH

MRS

Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah

FEERLE

Ms Joyce LEUNG Kam-ling
R L

Rev Augusta LEUNG Lai-ngor
REHAED

Ms Yvette LI Yan-yi

FRMARE

Mr MAN Chen-fai, BBS, MH
SEBLEE

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

RERSE

Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu
HEnRkE

Rev WONG Ka-fai
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Mr Alan YU Kwok-yin
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Bradbury Hospice
AEBEEEHL

Chairman: Ms Rebecca HUNG Tzu-wei

FE: RRFER L

Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BlriTRAaE

Members : Mr CHAN Muk-kwong

BE : BRAE e 4
Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
Ms Olive Yvonne LEE On-yee
FRHEZTLT
Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
ERMSE

Mr Peter SUEN Yiu-chan

Mr TSOI Ming-yang
R RE

Dr Royce YUEN Man-chun, JP
RX&E L
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Caritas Medical Centre

B EERe

Chairman:

EE

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Prof Josepﬁ LUI Cho-ze
BRI

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Dr Denis CHANG Khen-lee, SC, JP
SRIEFE+

Dr Louis CHOY Chung-wai
=REEE

Mr Joseph LEE King-chi, BBS
AL E

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP
ZoKEE L

Dr Albert LIE Kwok-wai

TR

Mr Willie LUI Pok-shek, JP
SRETEb e

Rev Dominique MUKONDA Kananga
ERERR

Dr Jonathan WAI Heung-on, JP
Ik

Mr Henry WONG Ho-cheong
=EALE

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP
B G A

Mr Ronald YAM Tak-fai
ERERE

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung
EEEEFPR
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital

BB R/ R
Chairman: Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
xE: FEREBFL
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members : Mr Vincent CHAN Chun-hung
BE : BREEA ST
Mr Nicholas CHAN Hiu-fung, BBS, MH, JP
BREZEIR ST 4
Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen
BRECIE SR
Mr Kenny CHENG Tsin-ki
ERESLSE
Mr CHOW Kam-cheung, BBS, MH
[EEREE S
Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, BBS, MH
BHRELE
Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, BBS, MH, JP
HIERE
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
fAEREE
Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming
HBHEREE
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Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok

EHMAZKEER
Chairman: Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
T FEe%
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE : B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT TR
Members : Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
KE : BRIA M S A
Ms CHIU Kam-chee
HeERrt
Dr Shelley M CHOW
AEREL
Ms Betty KO Lan-fun
Sk
Ms Janice MORTON
Ry et
Dr TONG Hon-kuan, JP
EEEEA
Dr WONG Chun-por, JP
THEKRE
Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
HFmEL
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Cheshire Home, Shatin
PDHEKEER

Chairman: Prof Leonard LI Sheung-wai
xE: FHEBHIX
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BlriTRAaE
Members: Dr Shelley M CHOW
KB : AERELT
Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
ARERSE

Prof Sylvia FUNG Yuk-kuen, BBS
RS EIRHIR

Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
R+

Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
RERBL

Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
R L

Dr Victor LUI Wing-cheong

TXEE

Ms Janice MORTON

Ryt

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
EIR S AE
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Grantham Hospital

EEHEKR

Chairman:

EE

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong, MH
EERFLAE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE

Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Dr the Hon Eliza C H CHAN, GBS, JP

FRSEE T+

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
B4

Prof Stephen CHENG Wing-keung
BB SR HIK

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
Rk E

Dr Edmund LAM Wing-wo
MoK

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

RRENBEE

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin

RSB EE

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP
RoKBIEL

Mr Colin LO Chor-cheong
EREE

Mr Abraham SHEK Lai-him, GBS, JP
YEEE it

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH

Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai

R EHE

Prof TSE Hung-fat

AIBBEHIX
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Haven of Hope Hospital

EEEKR
Chairman: Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
EFE: R AE HIR
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members : Mr Simon FOK Man-kin
BB : EXfRr4t
Dr the Hon LAM Ching-choi, SBS, JP
PRIEBT B
Mr LAM Sze-chuen
MBERE
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
FFEHIER
Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BERESRE
Mr Gregory LO Chun-hung, SBS, FSDSM
BRI E
Dr William LO Tak-lam
EieiRE
Dr Tommy LO Yiu
EREL
Mr George NG Sze-fuk, GBS, JP
Ritt@EsE
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
BBHARERR

Chairman: Mr HO Tak-sum, BBS, MH
xE: fAfENET
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE : B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT TR
Members : Ms Katherine CHEUNG Shuk-fan
RE : TS E +
Ms Jennifer CHEUNG Wai-yin
REARR L

Mr Spencer KWAN Chor-chung
i

Mr Jonathan LAI Ping-wah
FRIREE S

Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
MEERTLT

Mr Nelson LAM Hon-wan
WERET

Ms May LAM Shih-yan
MEFIRE £

Mr LI Tak-hong, SBS, MH, JP
PERESE

Ven SIK Hong-ming
FERERARD

Ven SIK Kuan-yun, MH
BEE LA

Ven SIK Miu-chi

FBY) ROAE

Ven SIK Ti-lun

iR ARD

Ven SIK Tsang-chit

(B ROERD

Ven SIK Yin-chi
BRRERD

Prof Julia TAO LAI Po-wah
PIZRE HEHIX

Mr Richard TSE Kin-pang
AR A

Ms WAN Kor-wo
BENEL

Ms WAN Yee-ling
BERELT
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Hong Kong Children’s Hospital

BEEREBKR
Chairman: Mr John LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
EE: FHHE T4
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BlriTRAaE
Members : Ms Dana CHAN Dan-nar
KB : BRFHIR 2+
Prof FOK Tai-fai, SBS, JP
Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, BBS, JP
BIZRELL
Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
I ES0 S
Prof LAU Chak-sing, BBS, JP
ZEEHE
Mr William LO Chi-chung
BERSLE
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
HEREE
Prof Grace TANG Wai-king, SBS, JP
BEIEHIX
Prof Frances WONG Kam-yuet
Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP
RGBSR E
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
ERRERER RN EER

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WaLE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Dr CHAN Man-wai

PR (E1E L

Mr CHAN Ping-hung

BRINIS T4

Mr Donald CHOI Wun-hing, BBS, JP
ERESAE

Mr Victor FONG Tin-chuen
ARESRE

Dr Kenny KONG Siu-man
BIARRE L

Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
FETREAE L

Mr Benedict SIN Nga-yan

SRR SEE

Mr Johnny WONG Chi-keung, MH
FERESE

Mr Harry YU Kwok-kuen
REIRESEE
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service

BRAL+F 2 MmARR O

Chairman: Mr Ignatius CHAN Tze-ching, BBS, JP
FE: BRFIERSEHE

Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BlriTRAaE
Members : Ms Natalie CHAN Wo-mi
KB : BRANEZ +
Dr LI Siu-hung
KA L
Ms Dora LI Yuen-chow
FHI £

Mr Justin LO Chak-tin
ERREE

Mr Kyrus SIU King-wai
BRBE

Ms Bonnie SO Yuen-han
BRI 22 &

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
R EHR

Prof Eric TSE Wai-choi
FME B HI

Mr Sunny WONG Sing-long
HEAKLE
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital

ZRBERRBER
Chairman:
R

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Bhx

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

BEREE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B ERRITEEISARE

Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Mr Davis CHAN Chun-bong Junbon

BRIRF S

Mr Kenny CHAN Ngai-sang, BBS
BRER A4 S

Prof Linda LAM Chiu-wa
MEBEHIR

Mr Wilson LEE Hung-wai
FRESEE

Mr David LUI Yin-tat, BBS
BBRESLSE

Mr TSO Tat-ming

Efeibites

Prof Andrew WONG Ho-yuen, GBS, JP
BERZHIE

Mr WONG Wai-kit, MH
|IEGESTE

Ms Daisy WONG Wai-yee
IFEERL

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP
AR E
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Kwong Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
EEERRRE=TEAUER

Chairman: Mr Herman WAI Ho-man, BBS
xE: BN AL
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BlriTRAaE
Members : Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BE : BRAESR £
Ms Crystal CHOI Ka-yee
gaekt

Mr Orlando HO Yau-kai
fATERER S A

Mr LAM Kin-man
MRS A

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung, BBS
BEHTE

Ms Ginny MAN, BBS, JP
XRAR T

Mr Arthur MUI

BEZLE

Mr Jonathan NG

RiastE

Ms Patricia Joy SHIH
MeE R 2L &

Mr Albert SU Yau-on, MH, JP
BRth &

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok, BBS
BB ST

Ms Mandy TANG Ming-wai
LR Soa

Mr York TSENG Hing-yip
BEXRSELE

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing, BBS
BREBET

Mr Vinci WONG, BBS
FTEWEE

Ms Queenie YIP Siu-lai
EXELL

Mr YIU Hung-chi
PBELE

218 Hospital Authority Annual Report BBt B2/ F 3k 2023-2024



APPENDIX 4

Bf$% 4

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

HIEEER

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Prof Cecilia CHAN Lai-wan, JP

PREEHIX

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl B RITRARR S ANK

Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Prof Henry CHAN Hin-lee

BROT R IR

Mr Jeffrey CHAU Sze-ngai (up to 31.12.2023)
AR A (B2 2023F 12 A31 H)

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
B E A

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping
L3

Ms Josephine HO Yuen-ling
AL+

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki
WHEE S &

Dr Pamela LEUNG Pui-yu
2{maniE+

Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching
BrErE

Dr MAK Kin-cheung
HEeE

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
R E A

Dr Ricky SZETO Wing-fu
AIfEKEEL

Mr Benjamin WONG Kam-ming
=IRAASLE
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North District Hospital
tE &P

Chairman: Prof CHAN Wai-yee
EFE: BRIZEHIX
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT
Members : Ms Margaret CHAN Ka-man
BE : PRI L
Mr Kenneth CHOW Wah-tat
EEEERE
Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang, MH
IBERETE
Mr KO Yiu-cheung
IR
Mr Billy LAM Chek-yau, BBS, MH, JP
MARBEE
Mr LIU Hing-hung
Mr MA Siu-leung, BBS, MH
BHRREE

Mrs Cherry TSE LING Kit-ching, GBS, JP
AWERAR L

Mr YIP Yik-shing, MH

Ms Annie ZHU Jing

KLt

220 Hospital Authority Annual Report BBt B2/ F 3k 2023-2024



APPENDIX 4
B4 4

North Lantau Hospital

b A Ly 2& B

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP

REFRHIR

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Mr Tony CHOI Yuk-kwan, MH
BERHEE

Mr Dennis CHOW Chi-in
BEELE

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP
AR RE

Ms Carmen FUNG Ka-man
HEXH+

Mr Henry LEE Da-cheng
BRI HE

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
mBRZ LT

Dr WONG Wai-kei

BEEE
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Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

ERERR
Chairman: Ms June LO Hing-yu
EFE: BEETAL
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members : Mr Daniel AU Tin-che
KB : BLR B
Dr Nancy CHEUNG Man-ching
KA
Ms Maria CHIANG Lai-ling
BBE L
Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin
EEREE
Dr Nancy FOK Lai-ling
EEREL
Mr Robin Mark Garvey HUANG
mEASLE
Mr Joseph HUI Kong-yue
FRLERE A

Prof LAU Kwok-yu, JP
IR

Ms Christina Maisenne LEE, JP
FERZLT

Sister Marilu LIMGENCO
MERIE L

Ms Brenda LO Yin-cheung
BFALL

Mr Stephen MA Chak-wa, MH
BEESSE

Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, BBS, MH, JP
S LE

Dr Emily NGAN Man-lai

EAN L
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

REALEBRABITEZE

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
SIEEHIR

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

PR ERE

Ms Jessica CHENG

BFE L+

Ms Karen CHEUNG Tih-loh
RN T

Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
B RE

Mr Mico CHOW Man-cheung
AEREE

Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
AREZ+

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
MEREE

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
Ms Yvette LI Yan-yi
FRMAEt

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
SWRELE

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
PN

Dr Ryan WONG Man-yeung
FX5E

Prof Bernard WU Tak-lung
RIBHEHIR
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Pok Oi Hospital
&R

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Dr CHAN Shou-ming, MH
fRE e

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl e R BITRARKERRK

Hospital Chief Executive

BlriTRAaE

Dr CHAN Kwok-ki, MH, JP

PREUEIE L+

Dr Lily CHAN LI Lei, MH
BREfeiE L

Mr Danny CHAU Chun-tat
[RIBRE SR

Ms Veronica HO
a4 22 £

Dr HO Wing-tim, BBS, MH
(CES N

Ms HUANG Xiao-jun
\EREEL L

Ms LAM Kwan, MH
B L

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRELSE

Mrs Winnie TAM KEUNG May-chu, MH
BEERKL

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BoKkERE

Ms YUEN Man-yee, MH
RERRL
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Prince of Wales Hospital

FAF 2T £ B8 B

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
Bk

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
PRR e Ix

Mr CHEUNG Chi-yin

RFELLE

Ms Wendy FUNG Ching-suet
BEELL

Mr HO Sai-king

Ittt =4

Ms Vivian HO Wei-wun (up to 31.8.2023)
B ER L (8= 2023F 8 A31 A)
Prof Enders NG Kwok-wai

REEHX

Mr WONG Fai-fan

EIEN A
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital
FFDRER

Chairman: Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai, BBS
EF LB
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT R
Members : Mrs Diana CHAN TONG Chee-ching, JP
BE : PREES XL
Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, SBS
MRRBLL
Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FRERL
Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
F=TiEL
Prof LI Chi-kong, JP
FENRHI
Mr Bernard MAN, SC
MRS S
Dr David NG Ka-sing
RRBIEL
Ms Nikki NG Mien-hua
EHELL
Mr Alec TONG Chi-chiu
B
Prof WOO King-hang, JP
A EHIE
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital
BEBRERESER

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Mr Philip TSAl Wing-chung, BBS, JP
B BEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Mr Adam KWOK Kai-fai, SBS
FESE L

Ms Sandra LEE Suk-yee, GBS, JP
FRER L

Mr Lincoln LEONG Kwok-kuen, JP
REE ST E

Ms Eva SIT Yat-wah, SC
BEHERL

Prof Grace TANG Wai-king, SBS, JP
BEIE s

Ms Jacqueline TONG Chun-ling
EIRE T

Dr Victoria WONG Wing-yee
EREABRE

Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee
BBt
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Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
EBERBERER

Chairman: Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP
FE: ZoxBE+
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE : B ERRITREISERE
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members : Prof Johnnie Casire CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP
KE : BRAEIRHIR
Prof Louis CHENG Tsz-wan
EF =R

Mr David FUNG Kai-man
BRUR A

Dr Henry KONG Wing-ming
TLoKERER

Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEEZHIK

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong, MH
ERHEE

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui
RREE

Mr Terry NG Sze-yuen
RETTESE

Dr Jeffrey PONG Chiu-fai, MH
REFAIEE

Mr Burji S SHROFF

Mr Neville S SHROFF, JP
feremstE

Mr Noshir N SHROFF
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH

Mr Robert SHUM Kai-kee
SRELE

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, GBS, JP
B R& S E
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Shatin Hospital
W HER

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Ms Maisy HO Chiu-ha, BBS, JP
BB+

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT TR

Mr AU Chi-fai
B T A

Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP (passed away in January 2024)

BB T2 (R 2024 4F 1 Agit)
Mr Derek LEE Ho-yin

BIERITE

Mr Kenneth LEUNG Ka-keung
RR@IE

Ir Peter MOK Kwok-woo
SEFLE

Dr David NG Tai-chiu

RAREEL

Ms WONG Kam-fung
"Rz

Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah
TREAFELT
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Tai Po Hospital

RIiHEERR
Chairman: Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
xE: FEFRELE
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members : Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
BB : BRXE 4.
Mr Ali FUNG Wai-cheong
HEERSE
Prof Simon KWAN Shui-man
B 3 SR
Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah
FERERE
Ms Jeanne LEE Sai-yin, BBS, JP
EXLE o
Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
RMESLSE
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The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay

RORBRELABRAREER

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong, BBS, JP
RERTE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl B RITRARR S ANK
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue
RBEFRE

Mr Anthony CHENG Kwok-bo
HEE L

Mr CHENG Ping-chuen
EREFEE

Prof Jason CHEUNG Pui-yin
BN S HR

Dr CHOW Chun-bong, BBS, JP
[EIEF B

Mr Renny LIE

FEREE

Mr NG Wai-yan

RER&ESE

Ir Dr Derrick PANG Yat-bond, JP
T—HBEL

Ms Bernadette TSUI Wing-suen
fRke R £
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Tin Shui Wai Hospital
RKEER

Chairman: The Hon Duncan CHIU
FE: ERER S
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Hospital Chief Executive
BlriTRAaE
Members : Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
BE : BREZEZESTE
Mr Kenny CHIEN Kwok-keung
BRI

Dr FOK Mei-ling
EREREL

Mr Jacob LEE Chi-hin
FEERE

Mr Robert LUI Chi-wang
BEAEE

Mr Calvin SZE TO Chun-hin
AR L A

Mr Ivan WONG Siu-kei, JP
TFHRELE

Ms Vicky WONG Wai-kei
BEHZL

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRIREX L

Dr YUEN Yin-fun

— -4+ EQ
e
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Tseung Kwan O Hospital

% BB

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

B3zt

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITEEISARE
Hospital Chief Executive

BT TR

Dr Lily CHAN LI Lei, MH
G

Dr CHEUNG Moon-tong
SR S B

Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP
SRS E

Dr the Hon David LAM Tzit-yuen
WEZBE

Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
FERKSE

Dr Desmond NG Tai-wing
RELEL

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP

B ESEE

Ms Frandia WONG Yuk-king
BEERR L

Mr Henry YEUNG Mun-kin
TR s

Dr Frederick YIP Yeung-fai
EpEE L
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Tuen Mun Hospital

R EERR

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

234 Hospital Authority

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP

oSSR S

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl e R BITRARKERRK

Hospital Chief Executive

BlriTRAaE

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP

BRETE

The Hon Judy CHAN Kapui, MH, JP

BRI 22 £

Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, SBS, JP
eR 22 o B8

Dr Ben FONG Yuk-fai, MH
FEEEAE

Dr LAU Chau-ming

2lksatE L

Mr Andrew LEUNG Chun-keung
iR,

Ms Alice TAl Yuen-ying, GBS, JP
BEL

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BES KL

Mr YUEN Siu-lam
ROMELE
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Tung Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Eastern Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Fung Yiu King Hospital
REBERRERGERRE=[RIFZWNER

Chairman:

EE:

Ex-officio members:

ERKE :

Members :

A :

Mr Herman WAI Ho-man, BBS
B

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B ERRITRESSERE
Hospital Chief Executive
BT T AR

Mr Charles CHAN Wai-dune
BRAEIH 5T AE

Ms Crystal CHOI Ka-yee
Zmart

Mr CHOW Chiu-sheung, JP
JEE S S

Mr Orlando HO Yau-kai
fa]BRIRR 5% A=

Dr Kevin LAU Chung-hang, MH
2l EE

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung, BBS
Skt

Ms Ginny MAN, BBS, JP
MRERR Lt

Mr Jonathan NG

(li=yiv

Ms Winnie NG, JP

itk

Mr SIN Yat-kin, SBS, CSDSM, JP
BHEREA

Mr Albert SU Yau-on, MH, JP
R RE

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok, BBS
EEEEb

Ms Mandy TANG Ming-wai
BERZ 2+

Mr York TSENG Hing-yip
BEXLE

Dr Homer TSO Wei-kwok, SBS, JP
T{EEIEE

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing, BBS
BB T

Mr Vinci WONG, BBS
FEFREE
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United Christian Hospital
EEHHE B

Chairman: Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
EE: FEGREE
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE : B ERRITREISERE
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members : Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
KE : PR EFRE
Dr CHAN Sai-kwing
BoR tth r] 25
Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP
HEaL+

Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse

ARZELZ+

Ms Esther CHOW Yin-yung

EE:E potam

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi, JP (from 25.5.2023)
BRBL L (B 20234 5 F 25 A#E)

Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu

AR ED

Prof KEUNG Sau-ho

EH R

Rt Rev Dr Timothy KWOK Chi-pei
PEAEH

Mr LAU Chun-chuen
2ERESE

Mr Michael LI Man-toa
FRBESE

Rev PO Kam-cheong

S S HAD

Mr David SUN Tak-kei, GBS, JP
BREELLE

Rev TEO Yun-sarm

SR5E /0 R

The Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP
A& E

Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
ks

Sr Dr James TSUI Siu-lung, MH
(EUN-S

Mr David WONG Tat-kee
HEHEL

Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling
|mEF A+

Bishop Jackson YEUNG Yau-chi
BELEER

Rev YUNG Chuen-hung
SEEARED
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Yan Chai Hospital
{ZEER

Chairman:

EE

Ex-officio members:
ERKE :

Members :

RE :

Mrs Mary SUEN CHOI To-may, MH
BEE e+

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl B RITRARR S ANK

Hospital Chief Executive

Bl THARES

Mr Leo CHENG Sze-kin

EPETER S

Dr Marcella CHEUNG Man-ka
KX EEEL

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
RIEERLE

Mr Anthony CHOI Po-kin

BREREE

Mr Gary CHU Tak-wing, MH
RIBERFTHE

Mr Nicholas FONG Lik-ho

FIESRSE

Mr HO Wai-ming

G

Ms Wendy LAW Wing-yee

EFEAR L

Mr Jason LEUNG Wai-kwong
RENFTE

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS, MH
EEREE

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
HiEm ks
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Membership of Regional Advisory Committees

EBiEZHEEERE

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee

EEEARHERS

Chairman: Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
FE: BRI

Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERARE : B EREBITHRASSERE

Director of Health or his / her representative

FEBERIERE
Members : De uty Hospltal Chief Executive, St. John Hospital
RE : M BRI BB b/ T B L

Ms CHAN Hang, MH, JP

BREZ L

Prof Cecilia CHAN Lai-wan, JP

PREEEHIX

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong, BBS, JP

SRIERSTAE

Mr Orlando HO Yau-kai

A ERRR 55 A

Mr HUNG Lin-cham, MH, JP

HE

Ms LAM Yuk-chun, BBS, MH

MEZ L+t

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong, MH

EERHKE

Ms Yvette LI Yan-yi

Bia+
Dr LIAO Shu-hang
BirEiE L

Dr Jeffrey PONG Chiu-fai, MH
RERAIRES

Ms Eva SIT Yat-wah, SC
EERELZLT

Dr Loletta SO Kit-ying, MH
@\* /éi)\)s Eg

Ms Jacgueline TONG Chun-ling
BRI

Prof Eric TSE Wai-choi

TR HIR

Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
ITHEEIBE

Ms YAU Chit-yee, MH
ERfER 2+
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Kowloon Regional

Advisory Committee

NEEHFEAEZES

Chairman:

EE

Ex-officio members:
ERKE

Members:

A :

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP
T bitea

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EIERITRAMSERSE

Director of Health or his / her representative

BAEFBERFIERRK

Mr CHAN Kwok-wai, MH
BRED(Z 54

Mr Kenny CHAN Ngai-sang, BBS
BRIRE S

Dr Marcella CHEUNG Man-ka
RN EET

Mr Tony CHOI Yuk-kwan, MH
EERmEAE

Mr Simon FOK Man-kin
EXEESE

Mr HO Hon-man, MH, JP
X o4

Mr Leo HO Kwan-chau
AN e A

Mr HO Tak-sum, BBS, MH
AL EL

Mr KAI Ping-chung, MH
EIRINFEE

Ms Sophia LEE Shuk-woon
E ot

Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
PEESLE

Mr Norman LIN Wei-giao
MER &

Rev Van LO Wai-chuen

[E 82 AR

Prof Joseph LUI Cho-ze
BIREHIX

Mr Stephen MA Chak-wa, MH
BEESYE

Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, BBS, MH, JP
Sl

Mr Kyrus SIU King-wai
mRELE

Ms Mandy TANG Ming-wai
BeAEZL+

Mr Alec TONG Chi-chiu

m R

Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
i Pt

Mr WONG Tsz-shing, MH
FFRESE

Ms Rabi YIM Chor-pik
BIEEL T

Mr Harry YU Kwok-kuen
REIRE

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP
RIS A
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee

HREEHBHEES

Chairman: Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
FE: EREHIE
Ex-officio members:  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE : Bl B RITRAASAENE
Director of Health or his / her representative
FEBERIERE
Members : Dr Lily CHAN LI Lei, MH
BE : BRZ=JETE +
Dr CHAN Shou-ming, MH
PRESEIEL
The Hon Duncan CHIU
ERER 4
Mr Ali FUNG Wai-cheong
HEELE
Dr Raymond HO Shu-kwong
falgt gLt
Ms Rebecca HUNG Tzu-wei
RRFER L
Ms IP Shun-hing, BBS, MH, JP
BEas A2+
Dr Patrick LAM Hak-chung
N
Ms LAM Pik-chu, MH
MEKRZ T
Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah
FERESRE
Mr Derek LEE Ho-yin
FENTE
Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, BBS, MH
FHBREE
Prof Leonard LI Sheung-wai
FEBHIE
Mr Edwin LIU Chi-hin
BEsEE
Mr Jimmy LIU Tsee-ming
2R E
Mr MA Siu-leung, BBS, MH
BHERSESE
Prof Enders NG Kwok-wai
REVEHIX
Mr Almon POON Chin-hung, JP
ERIBEE
Mr PUN Kwok-shan, BBS, MH, JP
EE L S
Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, BBS, MH, JP
HIERE
Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESEE
Mr WONG Fai-fan
EIBIN S
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Membership of the Board of Trustees of the Hospital Authority
Provident Fund Scheme 2023-24

2023-24 FEEREER AR ETEEETZEEESRE

Chairman:

FE:

Trustees:

CEETE

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BEOKBEE

Mr CHAN Chor-wing (up to 30.9.2023)
BRI (B % 2023 F 9 A 30 H)

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu

FROREI 2+

Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP (from 20.11.2023)
R a2t (A 2023 F 11 A 20 HFE)

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

RoxmBEE

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, BBS, JP (up to 19.11.2023)
BB L T (BZE2023F 11 A19H)

Ms Antonia LEE Yuen-chee

E i

Mr David MAK Chi-wai

BEREEE

Mr Dave NGAN Man-kit, CFA

BN &

Mr QUEK Yat-sum (up to 30.9.2023)
SRR (B 2023 F 9 A 30 H)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, SBS, JP

FHEESAE

Mr WONG Kwok-chiu (from 1.10.2023)
EEBIE (B 2023 F 10 A1 H#E)

Mr WONG Yiu-lun (from 1.10.2023)
SRS (B 2023 F10 A1 HAE)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

BEREE

Dr Joseph YEUNG Shing (up to 30.9.2023)
TG4 (B2 2023 4F 9 A 30 A)

Dr YIM Tsz-kin (from 1.10.2023)
BRFhREEE (A 2023 F 10 A 1 HEE)
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Public Feedback Statistics
ANRBRERGE

Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Received (1.4.2023 - 31.3.2024%)
S/ BR /EBEE (2023 481 H- 202443 A31H)

Public Complaints Committee A RIRFES S

Nature of cases Number of appeal cases
BREE LEHREREF
Medical services £/ iR 7% 183
Staff attitude BB &2/Z 17
Administrative procedure 1T FE 7 28
Others EA 5
Total number of appeal cases handled 2  3F{E S48 8 233

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics BEfR Rk / Z R [ BiE K

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
Rif /I BR | BBERLE RFEF BR¥ET HBEETF
Medical services /& fR7% 1064 4659 26 445
Staff attitude BB &/E 421 3776 12 206
Administrative procedure 1T FZ 7 300 3540 472
Overall performance B §ERIR 131 1901 136
Others EA 22 827 1053
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 1938 14703 40 312

BB/ BR  BEEY

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics ZBRIFIZ 2 FiRKF / 2R / BiEG

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
Rif /I BR | BBERME RFEF BREF BT
Medical services & /& iR 7% 71 378 1984
Staff attitude B B 28 /E 50 544 1093
Administrative procedure 1T IZ 7 34 639 22
Overall performance B ERIR 4 112 19
Others H A 0 60 38
Total number of complaint / feedback / appreciation received by GOPC 159 1733 3156

EENMTUDHRE  BER / EBAH

*General outpatient clinics
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Statistics of the Controlling Officer’s Report
EHABRESTET

The Hospital Authority (HA) generally achieved its performance targets
in 2023-24. With the subsiding of local COVID-19 epidemic situation and
cessation of anti-epidemic measures in early 2023, the HA has been
gradually resuming provision of all of its public healthcare services to tie
in with the Government’s normalcy measures.

The key activity data in respect of the HA are:

EREER(BER)AB EED 2023-24 F
EHREKRIREEZE - BEEDRBH 2019 & AR
FREREBEHBEMN  URKSHAEHZERRL
2023 FEVIHGE - BER—ERABFNES
B BN LEEREEEOELES -

ERBEERRENEIERENT

2022-23 2023-24

(I) Access to services ATEY FA 9 BR TS
inpatient services 1ZBzR%
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) BB RERE (BiZ=A=+—8H)

general (acute and convalescent) @R (2E M FEE)
mentally ill #54$%}
mentally handicapped &R
infirmary BE&&
overall #5t

ambulatory and outreach services H &R SMNE IR
accident and emergency (A&E) services 2 = IR 7%

percentage of A&E patient attendances seen within target waiting time

FHRRIRFEANERENSERARKZARE DX
triage | (critical cases - 0 minute) (%) 55 | 85| (fEF&1EZR — 0 DiE)
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) £ 1| £85 (B2 @z —

triage Il (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) 2 Il 85I (2 & @Z% — 30
specialist outpatient services ERIFI2 R

24 257 24325

3675 3710

675 675

1961 1961

30568 30671

(%) 100 100
15 93%) (%) 97 96
) (%) 74 71

median waiting time for first appointment at specialist outpatient clinics

SRIPIIE G R R A2
priority 1 cases 58— BRI EZ
priority 2 cases % — 1@ {8 RI(EZ%
rehabilitation and geriatric services (as at 31 March)
BEREARRBE(HEZE=A=+—H)
no. of geriatric day places # A H B &5
psychiatric services (as at 31 March) ¥&t# R RS (BE=A=1+—8)
no. of psychiatric day places #&4# %} A I E&Fr %58

<l week 25 <1week 28
5weeks E2H7 5weeks 2

757 787

909 909
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2022-23 2023-24
(II) Delivery of services T2t HIIRTE
inpatient services 15z AR 7§
overall Z85t
no. of patient days & A{EFt HiX 7975641 8750 456
bed occupancy rate (%) ERERZ (%) 82 88
no. of discharges and deaths ¥ KT8 A HBT AR RILT A 994539 1146 494
general (acute and convalescent) i@} (EE MFR1E)
no. of patient days & A{E8t HiX 6498776 7137219
bed occupancy rate (%) FIRERE (%) 85 91
no. of discharges and deaths {F5T% A HBT AIX R ILT- A 974192 1123107
average length of stay (days)* “FH{F bR (H)* 6.7 6.3
mentally ill #54$%}
no. of patient days & AEFt B 868 536 995 316
bed occupancy rate (%) fERER X (%) 66 76
no. of discharges and deaths {F5T% A HiBT A X R IET- A 16 577 19161
average length of stay (days)* FH{FBRsRE (H)* 60 55
mentally handicapped & FE#}
no. of patient days & A{EET B X 168 371 166 121
bed occupancy rate (%) FIRIEFE (%) 68 67
infirmary BE&&
no. of patient days Jm AERFt BiX 439 958 451 800
bed occupancy rate (%) BRER R (%) 81 84
ambulatory and outreach services H &R IMNERT
day inpatient services B B{E B A RIS
no. of discharges and deaths BT AR RIET- AR 731 487 809 505
A&E services £ ERTS
no. of A&E attendances 2JEEFLZ AR 1741091 2142830
no. of A&E first attendances =fE = B IX 2 AR
triage | 55 | $87) 26 825 28138
triage Il 25 11 851 50 852 56 566
triage Il 35 111 #8571 673998 820 353
specialist outpatient services ERIFI2 IR 7%
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) first attendances 829 584 878 903
HERIFI2 (BBR) BIRBE2 AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances 7214160 7489204
ERFIZ (BRR)BZ AR
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 8043744 8368107
ERFIZ (BRR) 2 B AR
primary care services £[E & & k7%
no. of general outpatient attendances &@EFIFIZ 52 AKX 4995348 6008083
no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances K fEEE 2 ERIFI2 322 262 351 698
total no. of primary care attendances £ [E &L 2 4 AKX 5317610 6 359781
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2022-23 2023-24
rehabilitation and palliative care services FE1E & 47 #E & 312 AR 7%
no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 64 514 100 987
FRIERAFHEZEEBBRBERZ AKX
no. of community nurse attendances #% < 1+ B T ARTE AR 869 158 916 504
no. of allied health (community) attendances Z8;E 8 ((L& ) gh2 AR 27 058 32268
no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances B8 EEE (P92 ) 7Le2 AR 3009437 3301186
geriatric services & ARHARTE
no. of geriatric outreach attendances &5 % ARIMNE IRFE AR 770143 785239
no. of geriatric elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1880 1767
BEXEERBIZORE AH
no. of geriatric day attendances & A% BBt AKX 89271 168 425
psychiatric services 1R RS
no. of psychiatric outreach attendances £ S 5 t# £ INE RIS AR 272 345 330549
no. of psychiatric day attendances 15185 A R ER L2 AKX 79620 194 070
no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances % & A fg 18RI INE IR A X 99 835 113 386
(IN) Quality of services BRIEE =&
no. of hospital deaths per 1 000 populations & A A jE ATEERTIE T A SN 2.8 27
unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general inpatients (%) 10.8 109
TBEHERL R ATE HBTE28 R AR ETELIBFAPTE (%)
(IV) Cost of services R B4
cost distribution FK 75 #
cost distribution by service types (%) IZ RIS BRI EI D EIK A DT E DR (%)
inpatient 1B AR 7S 54.2 53.1
ambulatory and outreach B [ & 9MNE IR#S 45.8 46.9
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 %8k A = A M) IR TSR A
share of cost of services (%) FRISFTL BN AT E 2 (%) 54.1 54.4
cost of services per 1 000 population (HKSMn) BT A AR RIEAK A GEE B EIT) 309 30.4
unit costs BV A
inpatient services 15z R %
cost per patient day (HK$) iE A& B A (BT)
general (acute and convalescent) E 3@ EH&E M EEE) 7,390 6,920
mentally ill FF1P %} 3,870 3,580
mentally handicapped & E &} 2,420 2,430
infirmary &%} 2,320 2,310
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2022-23 2023-24

ambulatory and outreach services H R SMNE IR

cost per A&E attendance (HKS) & =& N ZIEMK A (FBIT) 2,430 2,070

cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HKS) ERIFI2 &R AERRA (B TT) 1,620 1610

cost per general outpatient attendance (HKS) & @RI P92 & R 2 AEMIACA (B TT) 690 730

cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HK$) 1,410 1,450

REBEEMPIRERDIENKAEIT)

cost per community nurse attendance (HKS) #£EE &+ & X BRIGHIR A (BIT) 760 765

cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HKS) 2,220 1,990

BB RNE R ERAKA (L)

cost per geriatric day attendance (HK$) 2 A%} B BB 8X RIS A (BT) 3,480 2,670
fee waivers W& %

total amount of waived fees (HK$Mn) R W B 4E%E (B B ET) 11120 1,158.4

percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance fee waiver (%) ~ 141 14.0

AEtERERDKEREATDE (%) -

percentage of Old Age Living Allowance (OALA) fee waiver (%) ~# 13.7 15.2

REEEZBWEREEDE (%) *

percentage of other fee waiver (%) - H W B R EE DX (%) - 9.9 6.8

Notes:

*

246

Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the corresponding
number of inpatients discharged and treated.

Refers to the age-standardised hospital death rate covering inpatient and
day inpatient deaths in HA hospitals in a particular year. The standardised
rate, as a standard statistical technigue to facilitate comparison over years,
is calculated by applying the HA age-specific hospital death rate in that
particular year to the “standard” population in mid-2001.

Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge.

As announced in the 2021 Policy Address, the merging of Normal and Higher
OALA would be effective from 1 September 2022. Against this background,
2022-23 covers Higher OALA recipients aged 75 or above before the merger
and all eligible OALA recipients aged 75 or above upon the merger.
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Statistics on Number of Beds, lnpatient, Accident & Emergency and
Outpatient Services in 2023-24
2023-24 FERKEE ~ ERBRK - SEZERBERPOZRBATEFE

Inpatient
average
length
of stay (days) Famiy
Total IP & DP -general Medicine ~ Total Allied
No.of hospital ~ discharges (acute & Total SOP Specialist Health
beds (asat3l  anddeaths  Inpatient bed convalescent) (clinical) Clinic ~ (Qutpatient) General

March 204" EERER  ocoupancy  Inpatient ERAATH  Total ASE attendances™ at endance57 attendances®  Outpatient
BRREBE  BRRA  raed)  petientdays FEREE( (*J attendga‘g*c;s ENFY ZEES EREE attendances®

Institution BEANE WA hRL BB &R 5 f?) 8
g JASREE  RCAZ mREREMR  ERER (%JE&J?@) RPEAR HPEARY  HPAR BPEARY HPARE
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 5 5 B2 Bx Bt 48

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 240 396 711 62431 - - - - 261

B AEERR

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern 1929 152367 860 540485 55 118898 598344 59837 239286 372603
Hospital

RRLBRAIITRER

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 658 31382 874 177065 58 69783 149843 8953 92679 125900
BIAREER N

St. John Hospital &2z 87 3114 489 2683 72 9871 - - 9716 37161
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 2R3 262 9260 956 78344 205 - 137049 - 44254 26512
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital =171 26t 160 191 881 51585 - - - - -
Sub-total /)&t 3336 196710 85.7 912593 6.2 198552 885236 68790 386196 562176
Hong Kong West Cluster 7% & 79 BBz B 48

Grantham Hospital & =%k 389 18490 801 112287 125 - 130681 - 40879
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation 110 1003 597 22796 20.5 - 1670 - 247%

Centre

B ER

Queen Mary Hospital J52E 25t 1639 159152 753 391536 42 117148 675080 25617 142615 361301
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital 136 3469 529 19113 8.4 - 20763 - 46028 -
at Sandy Bay

AORBELBEAZEES

Tsan Yuk Hospital £7 Bt 1 159 - - - - 18491 - 4670

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 272 3233 686 59896 137 - 212 - 321

Fung Yiu King Hospital

RE=[ERNER

Tung Wah Hospital RZEEfT 532 32191 715 76407 9.7 - 52973 - 1195 32079
Sub-total /N5t 3079 217697 735 682035 56 117148 899870 25617 271263 393380
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Inpatient
average
length
of stay (days) Famiy
Total IP & DP - general Medicine ~ Total Allied
No. of hospital ~ discharges and (acute & Total SOP  Specialist Health
beds (as at 31 deaths  Inpatient bed convalescent) (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General
March 2024 &RRBE  ocoupancy Inpat|ent ERFATT  Total ARE  attendances?? attendances2 attendancesz4 Qutpatient
o EhmREH BN rate () patientdays E% Al J attendances  ERFY  ZEEZ  EEER attendances
Institution (EEOME  HRARR  BREA E%/\ LEp SEE (&) ﬁﬂf% (f2) LBRAY
i SRNR)  CAR RROREN  BRAA (SERES) GYRAR APANR  AAR EYEAR  EDAR
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.3E BB B 48
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 376 13663 886 160180 133 15798 1 24832 40939
BAGHER
Hong Kong Children's Hospital 278 19691 644 51704 73 60535 14979
BEARERR
Hong Kong Eye Hospital /&R RIE R 45 8722 300 2303 38 272053 44101
Kowloon Hospital /152 27 1363 19218 896 451656 186 99631 - 127951 -
Kwong Wah Hospital B2 £ 1229 100269 798 302504 43 133082 346430 6055 164760 172681
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 236 - - - - 64693 3034 34138 383296
PRER
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (FFI 0%k 2018 214671 916 616840 52 199427 686391 9971 253300 508892
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 531 11389 853 167606 136 1493 - 1944 -
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
RE=frEAIER
Sub-total /N5t 6076 387623 86.7 1752793 6.6 332509 1547024 19061 666005 1105808
Kowloon East Cluster J158 5 E&Fz B 49
Haven of Hope Hospital =& 25 601 11127 990 240248 194 10957 - 6514 -
Tseung Kwan O Hospital % R %5t 835 89342 992 258185 52 128849 397422 5334 213742 307019
United Christian Hospital 1574 119865 923 426790 57 157333 559802 64620 253995 580069
EEHMS 2
Sub-total /)&t 3010 220334 959 925223 6.6 286182 968181 69954 474251 887088
Kowloon West Cluster J1.5E 75 58 B B 48
Caritas Medical Centre B % 2 1297 82450 898 366212 60 118801 449493 4447 145067 315034
Kwai Chung Hospital 25 %5t 955 5226 883 274518 - - 252142 - 44347 -
North Lantau Hospital £ AL L1 B3 180 13137 1096 64194 68 90811 26989 2728 45845 103843
Princess Margaret Hospital 35 522U B 1818 161364 968 562167 57 117378 475231 20100 124553 378685
Yan Chai Hospital {=}E &6t 809 64 364 968 262564 57 121052 261401 5754 153245 286395
Sub-total N5t 5059 326541 93.9 1529655 58 448042 1465256 33029 513052 1083957
New Territories East Cluster 3757 5 &8 b Bt 48
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 620 69618 855 169003 46 101372 318832 6101 146011 247545
HBRRMPRIITRE
Bradbury Hospice B EHEEZEF L 26 626 939 8939 143 89 935
Cheshire Home, Shatin 7> FHZ& K& & 304 743 668 74289 26.2 - - - 185 -
North District Hospital 3t & &P 716 56 935 981 237521 58 96799 230907 11994 117509 273898
Prince of Wales Hospital 1901 201525 878 511741 55 166509 861582 53471 267422 495741
AR
Shatin Hospital 'J\EEIZ* 591 9461 948 194733 198 259 3465
Tai Po Hospital A8 1054 9985 943 309621 214 799 1154
Sub-total /N5t 5212 348893 89.8 1505847 6.7 364680 1412468 71566 536681 1017184
248 Hospital Authority Annual Report B8t &2 B £ 3% 2023-2024



APPENDIX 9
4% 9

Inpatient

average

length

of stay (days)

Total IP & DP -general

No.of hospital ~ discharges (acute &
beds(asat3l  anddeaths Inpatient bed convalescent)
March 204! (FEREE  occupancy  Inatient (EREATH
ERRREE  HRRA rate () patient days EFEH%E(EJ

Family
Medicine  Total Allied
Total SO Specialist Health
(clinical) Clinic ~ (Outpatient) General
Total ABE attendances™®  attendances®  attendances®  Outpatient
attendances  ERIY %JE%+ EREE attendances”

Institution (BENME  HRARE  ERRA  BREA (B SIE  (BF) BN %) EEMY

g IHAA)  RCA BREREN  BRER (SERBE) IYEAR sveAT WA mveAm  RgAR

New Territories West Cluster 3 5% 7 &8 P B4 48

Castle Peak Hospital 5 1L 2 1156 2980 639 267441 - 153159 - 27781

Pok Oi Hospital fHE 26t 822 57716 959 245890 58 99145 199726 16913 104486

Siu Lam Hospital MF EQﬁ 520 621 770 146519 - - - - -

Tin Shui Wai Hospital A7k EZ26z 300 29277 957 80672 58 122753 34001 21149 31934 -

Tuen Mun Hospital P96 2101 167607 1000 701788 68 173819 803186 25619 289537 958490

Sub-total /N5t 4899 258201 87.3 1442310 6.4 395717 1190072 63681 453738 958 490

GRAND TOTAL #&5t 30671 1955999 88.0 8750456 6.3 2142830 8368107 351698 3301186 6008083

Notes: 5

1. Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2024 is based on the Annual Survey 1. 20244 3 A 31 HHERRAEE KB 2023-24 5
on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2023-24. B A EHRAREE AE -

2. Outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under respective 2. ZPHRPIZH2 AREIBABERZT °
hospital management.

3. Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances also include attendances 3. BERMFZ(BR)MZARBeERERELTY
from nurse clinics in SOP setting. FTHy ?fuu//\//\

4, Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances exclude follow-up consultations 4 BERBE(M2)MZ2EARTEEREBHE
provided by the Medical Social Services Units. H&%%ETI{/\WEE£1.;( °

5. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances also include attendances from nurse 5 EBEBIFIZHZARNBEBELBERELIZAN
clinics in GOP setting and attendances in related healthcare reform initiative P ARREERERETE WE’J%@' SR
programmes in primary care. BHZ AR °

Abbreviations:

IP - Inpatient

DP - Day inpatient

A&E - Accident & Emergency
SOP - Specialist Outpatient
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APPENDIX 10
Bfi$% 10

Statistics on Community and Rehabilitation Services in 2023-24

2023-24 FEHEREERESATTEHF

Rehabilitation

Psychogeriatric Community day & palliative Psychiatric
Community Psychiatric outreach Geriatric  Allied Health careday  Geriatric day day
nurse outreach  attendances’  Assessment  (Community)  attendances attendances®  attendances
attendances  attendances! ESEAN Service®  attendances'  FERGE ZAH iR
Institution BRMRET  BREM BM HREATR  SHERKE)  HE0ERE el ek
i BBAR IREBAR NREEAR  BEE EDAR BDAR BUAR EDAR
Hong Kong East Cluster & & 5 B B 49
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok - 4 -
B AEKERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 90389 31799 12774 29121 8r1 608 17799 26 453
RRLBRAITRER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals - 81289 415 8305 16213
IR RN
St. John Hospital &HE 0t 5245 259 1 - -
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RZE5 5T - - 87 35998 -
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital =131 2kt - - - 991
Sub-total /N5t 95634 31799 12774 110669 1378 44911 35003 26 453
Hong Kong West Cluster 7% & 78 5557 B 48
Grantham Hospital B =150k - 4 4280 -
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre - 7 6295 -
EREERN
Queen Mary Hospital T2 &z 55339 20958 18357 971 696 - 14794
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at - - - 2 - - -
Sandy Bay
RORRBERERATRER
Tsan Yuk Hospital 25 26t - - - - 2217
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals - 65185 417 5779 -
Fung Yiu King Hospital
RE=[rHEHER
Tung Wah Hospital S 25 - 89 8501 6099
Sub-total /N5t 55339 20958 18 357 65185 1560 19772 11878 17011
Kowloon Central Cluster }1.3E B PR B 48
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital Z #5225z - 154 1661 -
Hong Kong Children's Hospital &8 52 & 26z - - - - 71 - - -
Kowloon Hospital J1EEEx 81376 20 404 10184 41249 883 3833 3100 10543
Kwong Wah Hospital 2267 44637 - - 79078 802 - 7385 -
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital £ &1 20 59531 10776 50 160 -
Queen Elizabeth Hospital I A& 3299 40224 2722 5696 10564
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals - - 81 280 15889
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
RE=RENIER
Sub-total /Mgt 188843 20 404 10184 171327 4763 11630 36938 10543
Kowloon East Cluster 1585 B&fx B 49
Haven of Hope Hospital & £fx 34838 8957 112 1424 6189
Tseung Kwan O Hospital #5 R &kt - - 1441 - i 3169 146 -
United Christian Hospital 2224 Bt 131284 36586 10021 55130 853 1133 18079 32175
Sub-total /N5t 166 122 36 586 11462 64 087 1042 5726 24 414 32175
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APPENDIX 10
Bfié% 10

Rehabilitation

Psychogeriatric Community day & palliative Psychiatric

Community Psychiatric outreach Geriatric  Allied Health careday  Gerfatric day day
nurse outreach  attendances’  Assessment  (Community) attendances  attendances®  attendances
attendances  attendances! BEREA Service®  attendances'  RERSS ZAM iRl

Institution BUIREL  EREEN BER HRZATE  ERBERE) EROEERR AEER AfER

Hig BBEAR ERBAR MBREAR RisE ‘oA RIAR FIARE FIAR

Kowloon West Cluster 152 75 & b B 49

Caritas Medical Centre BEE B 64 704 - 46166 333 509 13243 -

Kwai Chung Hospital 28 26t 99 361 31223 - 1808 - - 47190

North Lantau Hospital 3t U111 86 10963 3029 4 443 818 - 6747 -

Princess Margaret Hospital 35522120t 51810 - 46211 1497 2644 14179

Yan Chai Hospital {= 7% 24 35317 48904 551 - 7232

Sub-total /N5t 162 794 102390 31223 145724 5007 3153 41 401 47190

New Territories East Cluster ¥753% R ESBR B 48

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 39637 587 38090 2589 738 10480

BEXMYRTITESR

Bradbury Hospice B Z B EEH 1) 19 246

Cheshire Home, Shatin /> A& K #5ET - - - - - - - -

North District Hospital It 26 41599 13032 8450 35573 3820 3244 9343 7203

Prince of Wales Hospital Bl B8 T %6t 61505 - 2281 33425 3994 - - -

Shatin Hospital )2 - 25098 3286 - 526 5216 18792 14 436

Tai Po Hospital A3 11313 - 22 - 11901 8136

Sub-total /N5t 142741 49 443 14604 107 088 10970 9 444 40036 40 255

New Territories West Cluster 3 5% 75 &8 P B 48

Castle Peak Hospital 5 1L 27 - 68969 14782 - 2627 - - 13079

Pok Oi Hospital 5 & &6t 32061 - 55311 484 1350 8 484 -

SiuLam Hospital /] TF 2l - - - - -

Tin Shui Wai Hospital A7k EIE5z 8609 - 492 - - -

Tuen Mun Hospital TF9ER 64 361 67615 3945 5001 15750 7364

Sub-total /N5t 105031 68 969 14782 122926 7548 6351 24234 20 443

GRAND TOTAL #5t 916 504 330549 113 386 787 006 32268 100 987 213904 194070

Notes: S

1. Figures also include home visits and crisis interventions. 1. BFHBRRERIHREHEERY

2. Figures also include home visits. 2. BIFHhBERE -

3. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to total 3. EEXEARWMNERBHIAR &Tﬁgﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂ
number of geriatric outreach attendances and geriatric elderly persons ZHRE AWM - i 2020-21 FEE
assessed for infirmary care service. Starting from 2020-21, the overall service ERRELTHEZAFTFGENARIZE i )
model for Community Geriatric Assessment Team and Visiting Medical Officer BRRBER - #XEARUNERBHARE
in the Hospital Authority has been streamlined and the number of geriatric BREEZIDZEEBEAR - Bt - HEEA
outreach attendances also includes attendances from Visiting Medical RS ET AR R FRASINETER
Officer. Therefore, the service activity is not directly comparable with figures BELLEL ©
published in the past editions of this report.

4, Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations provided 4, BEREE(ER)EZA PIEREBTER
by the Medical Social Services Units. ﬁ‘%*ﬁk{, \E’JEEE’E FE

5. Geriatric day attendances also include attendances under Integrated 5 ZARBHBR®Z )\?Aﬁ@?‘ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%

Discharge Support Programme for Elderly Patients (IDSP).

The activity performed in different centres and teams are grouped under respective
hospital management.

Eh o kEBRNRBELGEAMES

iR ERT BN

B2 -
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APPENDIX 11(a)
Bié% 11(a)

Manpower Position — by Cluster and Institution

AFRR — RBRREB DR

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2024) %34
ZRZBABEE (2024 F 3 A 31 H&F)L234

Allied
Institution Medical Nursing Health Others Total
Hig BE EE  EREE HAitb st
Hong Kong East Cluster & 5 5 B x B 48 734 3031 971 4507 9 244
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok i B2 K iE & e 3 63 10 126 202
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 572 2061 681 2959 6 273
RELEBRAFITEEL
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 106 631 187 828 1752
FERUA REPEER B
St. John Hospital &/ &Pz 5 34 9 79 127
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RZERET 46 192 81 370 689
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital =173 8805 2 50 3 146 201
Hong Kong West Cluster & & 75 85 Bz B 48 760 2869 1066 3775 8 469
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay 17 93 59 166 335
AARBEABIATESRR
Grantham Hospital & =it 2 46 288 84 369 787
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 28385418 Bl 1 41 44 96 182
Queen Mary Hospital 35 EFR 641 2068 762 2593 6 064
TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital 5% =BT /52 E 16 78 32 142 268
Tung Wah Hospital &R 40 301 85 408 834
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.5E BT B4 1561 5725 1988 9088 18 363
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 6 81 86 337 510
BB T FERMARGF O
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital &/ #2422 21 204 64 344 632
Hong Kong Children's Hospital %C\E%EE% T 191 398 242 828 1659
Hong Kong Eye Hospital Z8AR T 286k 43 85 30 188 346
Kowloon Hospital J1EEEERT 78 841 206 1120 2245
Kwong Wah Hospital ZZEE&FT 387 1245 378 1659 3669
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital %% % 67 283 86 356 792
Queen Elizabeth Hospital {73 {F28 737 2317 825 3830 7709
TWGHSs Wong Tai Sin Hospital = B?ﬁ%j:ﬂh 32 272 70 427 801
Kowloon East Cluster J15E R BBz B 48 889 3548 1054 4762 10 253
Haven of Hope Hospital & & &6t 32 413 112 609 1166
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 1558 2&63 263 1043 302 1279 2887
United Christian Hospital &4 B 595 2093 640 2873 6 201
Kowloon West Cluster ﬂ%ﬁ%rﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ 1233 4838 1544 6 622 14 237
Caritas Medical Centre AR & B 272 1047 336 1435 3090
Kwai Chung Hospital %5 %8 80 846 164 735 1825
North Lantau Hospital itﬂﬁm 53 197 99 348 698
Princess Margaret Hospital f%ﬂ’i'i @5‘ 523 1825 674 2794 5816
Yan Chai Hospital {= 75 2&F5z 306 923 271 1310 2809
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APPENDIX 11(a)
Bié% 11(a)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2024) %234
ZRIZMABEEE (2024 F 3 A 31 HHTF)L234

Allied

Institution Medical Nursing Health Others Total
g B 2 HRBEER Hth Bt
New Territories East Cluster 3752 R &P Bt 4 1172 4744 1549 6851 14 316
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 195 738 289 1089 2311
TR AP i AT =5

Bradbury Hospice B ZI2E & A ) 2 34 8 26 69
Cheshire Home, Shatin > FHZ K #E & 3 94 12 147 255
North District Hospital 1t & 2% 213 866 281 1144 2 504
Prince of Wales Hospital g 8 2738 £ & Fx 667 2184 755 3201 6 808
Shatin Hospital 4 i 2F% 45 361 102 643 1151
Tai Po Hospital Kif 28k 47 468 103 601 1218
New Territories West Cluster ¥ 5% 75 5B B 48 986 4071 1242 6615 12913
Castle Peak Hospital & 111 2&B% 83 628 112 752 1575
Pok Oi Hospital fHE Bt 167 699 215 1067 2148
Siu Lam Hospital /M& &[5z 6 142 13 336 497
Tuen Mun Hospital /5 F9E6T 669 2311 785 3829 7593
Tin Shui Wai Hospital &7k B £&Fz 60 292 117 631 1100
Total #5t 7 336 28 825 9 415 42221 87 796
Notes: 5

1. This figure excludes 2 989 staff in the Hospital Authority (HA) Head Office.

2. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time and

part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary.

3. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.

4. Manpower figures of individual hospitals / institutions include management

staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services.

1l ERFIEEBRERR(BER)EMRER
B 2989 BB -

2. AFR [EAEBAE] it BEBERMA
EREFRBOTE  SONGRKEE -

3. BMREEAARME  SREFHEMEAES
ERBE

4 BERATHEERARERMBMPEREYR
MEEASR -
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APPENDIX 11(b)
Bifé% 11(b)

Manpower Position — by Staff Group
AFRR — ZBEAR D E

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2019-20 - 2023-24*

ZRZBAEHE!
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24?

Medical &
Consultant /&8 1 &8 961 1057 1123 1222 1305
Senior Medical Officer / Associate Consultant 2071 2076 2015 2011 1991
B A [ BIEER R
Medical Officer / Resident (excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 3148 3310 3332 3296 3499
B4 BirEACTRIERIEEE)
Visiting Medical Officer 2|5/ 5 15 15 14 12 12
Intern 5Tfr & & 475 436 445 499 530
Senior Dental Officer / Dental Officer 11 13 12 14 13
AT R A | TR
Medical Staff Total & A E425t : 6 681 6 906 6941 7 055 7 350
Nursing #E I
Senior Nursing Officer / Nurse Consultant and above 226 243 268 291 328
SRETR  EREAMA E
Department Operations Manager 2fP93& {E4E 32 199 202 202 208 206
Temporary Pupil Nurse /
Temporary Undergraduate Nursing Student 1554 1548 1686 2028 962
BT84  EEBEL
General ZiBF —

Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer/ 5279 5510 5848 6105 6 389

Advanced Practice Nurse / Associate Nurse Consultant

REAIE | BRlEL /B R/ BRER / 2R R

Registered Nurse T i€+ 16521 17127 16 807 16 146 16 209

Enrolled Nurse B+ 2476 2336 2166 1981 1825
Psychiatric #&1# %} —

Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 642 682 704 746 775

Advanced Practice Nurse / Associate Nurse Consultant

REAIE | BRlEL /B R/ ERER / 2R R

Registered Nurse s+ &+ 1547 1604 1662 1686 1766

Enrolled Nurse B+ 513 486 448 409 406
Nursing Staff Total EE A S#5t: 28 957 29736 29793 29 599 28 865
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APPENDIX 11(b)
Bf$% 11(b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2019-20 - 2023-24*
ZRTBASSAE!

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24*
Allied Health EHB g &
Audiology Technician ¥ 1 2 517 8 6 6 6 6 5
Clinical Psychologist Fa/R DIRER 188 202 213 211 221
Dietitian & 2 A 176 192 196 205 204
Dispenser R4 8 1409 1482 1487 1524 1560
MedicaL Technologist / Medical Laboratory Technician 1642 1732 1797 1810 1883
B cheEn / BRRE
Mould Technologist / Mould Laboratory Technician 20 20 16 12 9
R ERERINAD R ERERME
Optometrist 1% 3¢ Al 70 75 74 75 78
Orthoptist 17 & %8 [E£D 16 17 19 24 23
Occupational Therapist B354 %60 903 975 982 996 1043
Pharmacist -?é“*“lJEﬂi 741 780 782 813 852
Physicist #7312 & 89 89 97 95 101
Physiotherapist *«*@f%?é?%fﬁﬂi 1179 1248 1202 1239 1341
Podiatrist /& 75 B A 52 53 53 57 58
Prosthetist-Orthotist 2 BB FZAM 150 160 160 168 167
Diagnostic Radiographer / Radiation Therapist TRETRD / ARG A ZERD 1174 1216 1186 1194 1214
Scientific Officer (Medical) B2 F T (E%) 100 107 124 139 144
Speech Therapist & 8,8 &Rl 125 134 141 146 145
Medical Social Worker 754t T 376 393 402 414 445
Dental Technician ZF&HL it B 4 4 4 4 4
Allied Health Staff Total SREEA &G : 8420 8 886 8 941 9131 9 497
Supporting (Care-related) #E % &
Health Care Assistant fi& B iR 75 BhI2 1005 726 491 409 330
Ward Attendant 7% 5 AR 7% & 93 73 60 44 28
Patient Care Assistant & Other Supporting (Care-related) Staff 15180 16 434 17 342 17 547 18 024
AARRISENIE R EAM #EIR R A B
Supporting (Care-related) Staff Total BIEXEA B&5t: 16 278 17 233 17 893 18 000 18 382
Direct Patient Care Manpower Total E 25 A EE A F45t: 60 335 62 761 63 569 63 786 64 094
Others Hftb
Chief Executive / Director / Head 7 8 8 8 9
TR | B8 X5
Cluster Chief Executive / Hospital Chief Executive 20 20 19 20 19
BbrE R/ BhTIBE
Chief Manager / Senior Manager / Cluster General Manager / 111 110 110 107 112
General Manager
BTSSR | RRITIEASIE | B AR 4R 45 3E / 44538
Other Professionals / Administrator, System Manager, 3099 3362 3468 3593 3842
Analyst Programmer etc
HEBEX /1TBRAER - ZHKE - AGRRFONMGRREES
Other Supporting Staff - Clerks, Secretanes, Workmen, 20928 22 428 22638 22 526 22709
Operation Assistants, Executive Assistants etc
HEZBAE—XE - WE - TA - EERE  1THIESE
Non-direct Patient Care Manpower Total 24 166 25929 26 244 26 254 26 691
FEERAEEAFET:
HA Manpower Total BE B A F#5t: 84 501 88 690 89 812 90 040 90 785
Notes: 5

1. Manpower on FTE includes all full-time and part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e.

1L AFR [FRZ2RAR] & ERBERMAR

permanent, contract and temporary. Individual figures may not add up to the total

due to rounding.

2. FTE for temporary part-time staff is calculated based on their actual working hours 2.

started from January 2024.

BERBAEE  AOKGRBE - ARNER
ARBIER - BIRE AR ATRE TN NAERN -

B 2024 F 1 A [ZERZBA S ] AR R
ETAFHERZRMMERE TIEREGTE -
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APPENDIX 12(a)
Bié% 12(a)

Operating Expenditure! in 2023-24
2023-24 FEEEMRX!

Cluster

Lk

2023-24 (HK$Mn)
2023-24 FE(EKEET)

Hong Kong East Cluster 75 & 5 2 Fr B 48 8,780
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 & 7528 Vﬂﬁ # 8,749
Kowloon Central Cluster 138" S&Fz B 48 17,761
Kowloon East Cluster J1LEE5R &8 Fmﬂé‘ # 9,682
Kowloon West Cluster J1.52 75 8Bz B 43 14,100
New Territories East Cluster #7552 B B Bt 4% 13,692
New Territories West Cluster 3757 78 2& e Bt 43 12,149
Hospital Authority Head Office, and Others ? B[ 5 IR BRI = IR + M2 5,253
Total 45t 90,166
Notes: i

1. Operating expenditure refers to the expenditure to run Hospital Authority
(HA)'s day-to-day services. It covers manpower, drug, consumables and
daily maintenance of equipment and facilities, etc. but is separated from
expenditure for capital works projects, major equipment acquisition, major
corporate-wide information technology (IT) development and transactions
of self-financed items paid by patients.

The operating expenditure of a cluster depends not only on the size and
demographics of the population residing within its catchment districts, but
also on other factors such as service demand generated from cross-cluster
movement of patients and the provision of designated services (such as
liver transplantation). As such, the scope of hospital facilities and expertise
available in different clusters also vary. Therefore, operating expenditure of
individual clusters is not directly comparable.

2. Includes corporate-wide expenditures processed by Head Office (such as 2.

insurance premium, legal costs, claims paid and salary of medical interns)
and on IT, as well as recurrent expenditure for supporting the Government's
IT projects (such as Electronic Health Record Programme).
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APPENDIX 12(b)
Bé% 12(b)

Training and Development Expenditure'in 2023-24

2023-24 FEBEFZIIREHRAX!

Cluster

Ba

2023-24 (HK$Mn)
2023-24 FE(B¥BER)

Hong Kong East Cluster /& 5 5 BB 48 420
Hong Kong West Cluster /& & 78 B8P 5 48 44.7
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.3E A B8P Bt 48 715
Kowloon East Cluster J1. 525 & B B 48 30.0
Kowloon West Cluster J1.5E 75 28 Fr B 49 50.8
New Territories East Cluster 757 5 E&B Bt 48 41.7
New Territories West Cluster #7157 75 28 Bt B 48 48.0
Hospital Authority Head Office 2 B&fT & 12 B AN & 2 169.3
Total #&5t 498.0
Notes: 7

1. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce with 1 REERBERMEIINERNAN - BREEE

items including payroll cost of personnel with primary duties in providing or
supporting training activities in designated training units, course / conference
fees, passages and travel, teaching aids and devices, venue, publications,
trainer fees, examination fee and other relevant charges.

2. Expenditure includes a number of corporate-wide training programmes and 2
initiatives centrally coordinated by HA Head Office.

SR E R R IAB B E 2 TEK
B8 GHREM  RENBE - B R
85 TP SaER - ZHERAMEH
FIx o

X B A E AN F R T RAEIEIIRE
SEEIR
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APPENDIX 13
Bfié% 13

Five-year Financial Highlights
BERAFHNHHEE

Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March)

MEER(BEEF3A31H)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEET AY¥EER BYEER B¥aEn B¥EER
Income WA
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 89,194 87,964 81,585 78,597 73,985
TR B (R B R E AR NE)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 5,866 5,236 5,251 4,837 4,827
ERERWAFKRESR)
Non-medical fee income FEEEE AUA 3,073 1,782 1,162 1,263 1,513
Designated donations 15 18 % 93 269 159 361 202
Capital donations & 748 % 153 156 154 166 159
98,379 95,407 88,311 85,224 80,686
Expenditure X H
Staff costs B TR 7N (62,414)  (59,419) (58118)  (57665)  (53,700)
Drugs Z&¥) (13.127) (12,451) (9,642) (8,685) (8,102)
Medical supplies and equipment Z&&4) 7 K& % 1 (5,388 (6,325) (5,969) (4,956) (3,842)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation and (16,464) (16,734) (14,091) (13,383) (11,277)
amortisation)
Hith B (BIEITE L)
(97,393) (94,929) (87,820) (84,689) (76,921)
Results for the year FE#£R 986 478 491 535 3,765

Income by Source (in % of Total Income)

BERWARR(EBBABTDLL)
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APPENDIX 13
Bid% 13

Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March)

FEMBER(BEEF 3 A31H)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
AYEET BYRET BY¥EEBER B¥RER BYEER
Medical fee income (Note 1) & & AU A (5£ 1)
Inpatient fees {FFt U & 1,305 1,095 1133 1,093 1,228
Outpatient fees PI2 I E 1,979 1,805 1,814 1,688 1,802
ltemised charges DT8R E 3,683 3333 3,264 2,936 2,720
Other medical fees E fth E&/Z& U & 57 115 121 113 109
7,024 6,348 6,332 5,830 5,859
Less: Waivers (Note 2) #1B& : Hi% (5 2) (1158) (1112 (1,081) (993) (1,032)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 5,866 5,236 5251 4,837 4,827
BEERWA (HNRESR)
Additional allowance for expected credit losses charged to 48 29 32 56 50
the Statement of Income and Expenditure (Note 3)
EREEERAGNNTEREAEEREGE?3)
Expenditure by Category (in % of Total Expenditure)
FEIHEEZIHESL)
100%
90%
80% | ] | [ | ||
70% Other operating expenses
A A
60% Hith i@
50% ] Medical supplies and equipment
BEY) o R R
40%
30% Drugs
L2y
20%
10% u Staff costs
BIRA
0%
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
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Bié% 13

Notes:

L

260

Medical fee income

Fees for hospital services are governed by the Hospital Authority (HA) Ordinance.
There are three categories of charges: (i) public charges for Eligible Persons
(EP); (i) public charges for Non-eligible Persons (NEP); and (jii) private charges.
The definition of EP and NEP can be found in HA website whilst the fees and
charges schedules are listed in the Gazette and HA website.

Waivers

Under the Government policy, recipients of Comprehensive Social Security
Assistance (CSSA), Level O Voucher Holders of the Residential Care Service
Voucher for the Elderly (renamed since 1 April 2023) and Old Age Living
Allowance (OALA) recipients aged 75 or above (the merging of Normal and
Higher OALA was effective from 1 September 2022) can obtain free medical
treatment at HA's hospitals and clinics. Other persons with financial
difficulties in paying the medical fees and charges can apply for medical fee
waivers. The granting of waivers is subject to meeting the criteria under the
established waiving mechanism.

The waivers granted to EP and NEP for the year ended 31 March 2024 are
HK$1,009,000,000 and HK$149,000,000 respectively (for the year ended
31 March 2023 are HK$951,000,000 and HK$161,000,000 respectively).

Additional allowance for expected credit losses charged to the
Statement of Income and Expenditure

Each year, HA would make assessment on the collectability of outstanding
hospital fees and charges (accounts receivable). As a result of the
assessment, additional allowance (or reversal of allowance) would be
charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year.
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Financial Position (at 31 March)

BB (RE%F 3 A 31 H)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEET BYEERT BYEERT BAYEERT BYEER

Non-current assets JERENVE E 23,633 28,808 27,621 29,190 28,102
Current assets RV EE 66,641 52,963 46,598 38,163 34,061
Total assets EEHEE 90,274 81,771 74,219 67,353 62,163
Designated fund ¥ € E& 5077 5,077 5,077 5077 5,077
Revenue reserve W A& 9,288 8,358 7812 7243 6,672
Total funds E£ &% 14,365 13,435 12,889 12,320 11,749
Current liabilities RV B & 47,203 34,450 33,233 22,902 17,663
Non-current liabilities 3ERENEE 28,706 33,886 28,097 32131 32,751
Total liabilities B &2 75,909 68,336 61,330 55,033 50,414
Total funds and total liabilities E& & & &% 90,274 81,771 74,219 67,353 62,163

Total Assets™*® (in HK$ millions)

wmEEE(B¥AET)
100,000
90.000
80.000
Placements with the Exchange Fund
70.000 SNEESTF
Cash & bank
.00 P
60.000 e RBTEH
50,000 ] Fixed income instruments
BEEASTIA
40,000
Receivables, deposits & prepayments
20,000 u ;ﬁ\ﬂintories
FE
10.000 Fixed, intangible & right-of-use assets
l BT - S REREAE
0
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Note: Ea
Placements with the Exchange Fund have included HK$5,875,000,000 (2023: INEESTFAREERERBREIET LESFEREE
HK$5,665,000,000) held by HA on behalf of the Samaritan Fund. 5,875,000,000 7t (2023 : ¥ 5,665,000,000 JT)°
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Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)
FEHBRESR(RSF 3 A311H)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HKS$Mn
BEEHET BYEERT BAYEET BA¥EERT B¥EER

Inventories &

Drugs (Note 1) 2% (3£ 1) 1935 3,350 3515 1,484 1,410
Other medical and general consumables (Note 2) 1,497 1790 957 1,058 305
HA BB N —MOBREm (5 2)
3,432 5,140 4,472 2,542 1,715
Notes: G
1. Theincrease in inventory balance as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 1. BHE2023F 3 318K 20224 3 A 31 A
was mainly due to the oral antiviral drugs for treatment of patient infected MO FEE&ESTIELRANEERD 2019 BkE
with COVID-18. SREENORNESEEY -
2. For enhanced infection control measures to protect staff and patients, a 2. AREETINEANINRBLEHEN %

steady supply of Personal Protective Equipment of six months
has been maintained.

The average stock holding period for meeting daily operations use, other

in general

BT SEAREEESER N E AN ES -

than those

BRIt 1 ANGE 2 PrattSh AR AR BN IO B

mentioned in note 1 and note 2, is shown below: I
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Average stock holding period (weeks) for meeting daily
operations
ARBREFNTUFEERERB(ED)
Drugs %% 75 82 8.4 85 8.7
Other medical and general consumables 75 1.7 10.2 91 8.2

H At B M — B MM
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The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website

BB BB NRERE - WERE ESARBHFLE

www.ha.org.hk

Hospital Authority
Hospital Authority Building
147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BREER
EANBEIE G 147B BB /AAE

Tel % (852) 2300 6555
Fax 8E:  (852)2890 7726
Email |#: enquiry@ha.org.hk

Copyright©2024 Hospital Authority. All rights reserved.
©2024 BT ERS © WA °
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